
Page 1 of 5 
 

    
  
 
 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

And JOINT MEETING Of the 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Tuesday, December 2, 2014 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Council/Agency Member Guerrero 
Council/Agency Member Oliva 
Council/Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Markovich 
Mayor/Chair Garcia 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

4. INVOCATION 
 

5. PRESENTATOINS 
 
Presentation of “In a Drought, Shut Your Tap” program, by Mark Moss, a Representative from  
Central Basin Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
 
 

“Members of the Public are Advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are available for 
public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s office at City Hall located at 5220 Santa Ana 
Street, Cudahy, CA. 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the office of the City Clerk at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting.  
 

CUDAHY CITY  
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, Ca, 90201 

Phone: (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 77102072 

Chris Garcia, Mayor 
Cristian Markovich, Vice Mayor   
Jack Guerrero, Council Member  
Diane Oliva, Council Member 
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, December 2, 2014 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 

 

 Page 2 of 5  
 

PRESENTATIONS ITEM 5 (continued) 
 
“Certificates of Recognition” presented to the following: 
 

• Recognition of Former State Senator Richard Polanco for his Dedication and Public Service to 
the People of California most importantly to Latinos of the Golden State 

 
• Recognition of Newly Elected Los Angeles County Assessor Jeffrey Prang, for his Years of 

Service in Public Office and Newly Elected Position 
 

• Recognition of Assembly Member Anthony Rendon representing the California State 
Assembly, 63rd Assembly District for his dedicated Public Service and for a successful 2013-
2014 Legislative Session and in Recognition of his support in the passing (on the November 4, 
2014 ballot) of California Proposition 1 Water Bond (Assembly Bill 1471) 

 
6. ORAL COMMUNICATONS  

 
(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council/Agency on matters relating 
to City Business. Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the Council Chambers 
entrance and submit it to the City Clerk when approaching the podium.  Each person will be allowed 
to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When addressing the Council/Agency 
please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name and address.)   
 

7. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
(This is the time for the City Council/Agency to comment on any topics related to “City business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city / regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval/ consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council/Agency Member will be 
allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 

8. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
9. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

 
Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council/Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion. 
(COUNCIL/AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:  It is recommended that the City Council/Agency approve the waiver of full 
reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 
 
 
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, December 2, 2014 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 

 

 Page 3 of 5  
 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council/Agency Member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.  
 
A. Second reading, Adopt Ordinance No. 643, Adding Chapter 13.16 to the City of Cudahy’s 

Municipal Code Relating to Water Conservation 
 

B. Approve Professional Services Agreement (PSA) between the City of Cudahy and Donna 
Schwartz 
 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  Approve PSA between City of Cudahy and Donna Schwartz for Interim City 
Clerk Services. 
 

C. Approve Resolution Designating Holidays on which City of Cudahy’s Offices shall be Closed for 
Calendar Year 2015 
 
Presented by City Manager and Acting Human Resources Specialist 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 14-84, Designating Holidays on which City of 
Cudahy’s Offices shall be closed for Calendar Year 2015. 
 

D. Authorization to Apply for Grant Funds through the 2015 Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
(MTA) Call for Projects 
 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  The Council is requested to: 
 

1. Authorize the City Manager to submit up to three grant applications for citywide 
improvements through the 2015 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority (MTA) Call for Projects which are due by January 16, 2015;  

 
2. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Avant-Garde, Inc. (i.e., Avant-

Garde) in an amount not-to-exceed $24,520 for the submittal of one or multiple grant 
applications in response to the 2015 MTA Call for Projects.   

Project costs are according to the following breakdown:  
- First Application $10,520   
- Second Application $7,000   
- Third Application $7,000; and 

 
3. Amend the City’s existing (PSA) with Transtech, Inc. (i.e., Transtech) in the amount of 

approximately $12,500 for the preparation of engineering documents required for the 
submittal of one or multiple grant applications to the 2015 MTA Call for Projects. 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, December 2, 2014 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 

 

 Page 4 of 5  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM 10 (continued) 
 

E. Approve Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Vasquez & Company LLP for Audit 
Services for Fiscal Years (FYs) 2013-2014, 2014-2015, and 2015-2016 

 
Presented by Finance Department 

 
Recommendation:  Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Vasquez & 
Company LLP for audit and other services for a three year term to audit FYs 2013-2014, 
2014-2015, and 2015-2016 with an option for two one-year extensions.  
 

F. Continued from the Special Meeting of November 25, 2014 - Second reading, Adopt Ordinance 
No. 634, Amending the City of Cudahy’s Municipal Code Section 20 (Zoning), to add new 
definitions to subsection 20.08.010 adding “Emergency Shelters” and “Transitional and 
Supportive Housing,” modify CMC subsection 20.64.040 to add “Transitional and Supportive 
Housing,” and modify CMC subsection 20.68.080 to add “Emergency Shelters.” 

 
G. Continued from the Special Meeting of November 25, 2014 - Approve Renewal of the City-

County Municipal Services Agreement with the County of Los Angeles Department of Animal 
Care and Control Contract for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Service Level Request 
 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation: Approve Services Agreement with the County of Los Angeles Department of 
Animal Care and Control for Animal Control Services, Effective July 1, 2014 through June 30, 
2019 and FY 2014-15 Service Level Request – Billing Rates. 
 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Approve Resolution, Approving Projects/Programs for Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funding During the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director and Acting Human Resources Specialist 
 
Recommendation: The Council is requested to: 
 

1. Conduct a public hearing; 
 

2. Consider all public testimony; and 
 

3.  Adopt Resolution No. 14-85, approving Projects/Programs for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Funding during the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16. 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Tuesday, December 2, 2014 at 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers 

5240 Santa Ana Street, Cudahy, California 

 

 Page 5 of 5  
 

12. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS SESSION 
 
A. Appointment to the Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control District Board of Trustees 

 
Presented by Interim City Clerk 

 
Recommendation:  Council to appoint a representative to the Greater Los Angeles County Vector 
Control District Board of Trustees for a full 2 or 4 year term commencing on January 5, 2015. 

 
13. CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY BUSINESS SESSION  - None 
 
14. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  

 
A. Ethics Enquiry (Guerrero) 

 
15. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 

 
(Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will be limited to three 
(3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state 
your name and address.)   
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
16. CLOSED SESSION  

 
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2) and 54956.9(e) (1) –  

Conference with Legal Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or 
Significant Exposure to Litigation – [One (1) Matter] - This Matter will be heard jointly by the 
Cudahy City Council and the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as Successor Agency to the 
Cudahy Redevelopment Agency.   

 
B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and 54956.9(e)(1) – Conference with Legal 

Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure to 
Litigation – [One (1) potential matter] 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
17. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
18. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Cudahy City Council/Agency will adjourn to a Regular and Joint Meeting as Successor Agency to the 
Cudahy Development Commission on Tuesday, January 5, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 
I Donna G. Schwartz, hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing agenda was posted at Cudahy 
City Hall, Bedwell Hall, and Clara and Lugo Park not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting. A copy of said Agenda is on file in the Office of the City 
Clerk. 
 
Dated this 27th Day of November 2014 
 
______________________________________ 
DONNA G. SCHWARTZ, CMC 
Interim City Clerk  



1 

10A 
ORDINANCE NO. 643 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY ADDING CHAPTER 13.16 TO THE CUDAHY 
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO WATER 
CONSERVATION  

  

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2014, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. issued an 
executive order to strengthen the state’s ability to manage water and habitat effectively 
in drought conditions and called on all Californians to redouble their efforts to conserve 
water; and 

WHEREAS, Water Code section 1058.5 grants the California State Water Board 
the authority to adopt emergency regulations in certain drought years in order to: 
“prevent the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable 
method of diversion, of water, to promote water recycling or water conservation, to 
require curtailment of diversions when water is not available under the diverter’s priority 
of right, or in furtherance of any of the foregoing, to require reporting of diversion or use 
or the preparation of monitoring reports”; and 

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2014, the State Water Board adopted California Code of 
Regulations, Title 23, sections 863, 864, and 865, as emergency regulations; and 

WHEREAS, these regulations shall remain in effect for 270 days after filing with 
the Secretary of State (until April 25, 2014)  unless the State Water Board determines 
that it is no longer necessary due to changed conditions, or unless the State Water 
Board renews the regulations due to continued drought conditions as described in 
Water Code section 1058.5; and 

WHEREAS, the regulations authorize local agencies to fine, in addition to other 
civil and criminal penalties, for violations of certain prohibitions on water usage; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (“City”), as a local agency concerned with the 
ongoing drought conditions in its jurisdiction and in the State of California generally, 
desires to incorporate the state emergency regulations on water usage into its Municipal 
Code and implement a fine schedule for violations of the water usage prohibitions 
pursuant to its authority under 23 CFR section 864. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The facts set forth in the recitals above are true and correct.  

SECTION 2.  Chapter 13.16 is hereby added to Title 13 of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code to read: 



2 

Chapter 13.16  

WATER CONSERVATION 

13.16.010 Water Usage Prohibitions Applying to All Persons  

A. Authorization.  This chapter establishes water conservation measures to 
be applied City-wide pursuant to the authority granted to the City under 23 
CFR § 864. This chapter shall remain in effect so long as its provisions are 
authorized under Federal and State law. 

B. Application.  The water conservation requirements under this chapter shall 
apply to all persons within the City of Cudahy.   

C. Prohibitions on Water Usage.  To promote water conservation, each of the 
following actions is prohibited, except where necessary to address an 
immediate health and safety need or to comply with a term or condition in 
a permit issued by any state or federal governmental agency:  

1. The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner 
that causes runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, 
non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, 
parking lots, or structures;  

 
2. The use of a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor 

vehicle, except where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or 
device attached to it that causes it to cease dispensing water 
immediately when not in use;  

 
3. The application of potable water to driveways and sidewalks; and  
 
4. The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water 

feature, except where the water is part of a recirculating system. 

D. Enforcement. 

1. No person within the City of Cudahy shall use or permit the use of 
water in a manner contrary to Subsection C above.  For purposes of this 
chapter, the term “person” shall mean any natural person, corporation, 
partnership, sole proprietorship, public or private entity, public or private 
association, public or private agency, governmental agency or institution, 
school district, or college university. 

2. Unless otherwise provided, any person who violates any provision 
of this chapter shall be guilty of an infraction or misdemeanor as 
hereinafter specified at the City’s discretion, and each day or portion 
thereof such violation is in existence shall be a new and separate offense. 



3 

3. Fines.  The following penalty schedule shall apply to violations of 
this chapter: 

a. Any person who violates any of the prohibitions of this 
chapter shall be guilty of an infraction and shall be issued a 
Violation Notice for the first such offense in a single calendar 
year. 

b. Any person who violates any of the prohibitions of this 
chapter for a second time in a single calendar year shall be 
guilty of an infraction and shall be subject to a fine of one 
hundred dollars ($100.00). 

c. Any person who violates any of the prohibitions of this 
chapter for a third time in a single calendar year shall be 
guilty of an infraction and shall be subject to a fine of two 
hundred dollars ($200.00). 

d. Any person who violates any of the prohibitions of this 
chapter  four or more times in a single calendar year shall be 
guilty of an infraction and shall be subject to a fine of five 
hundred ($500.00). 

E. Additional Penalties.  Subsection D of this section notwithstanding, a 
violation under Section D above may be charged and prosecuted as a 
misdemeanor at the City’s sole discretion.   

1. In addition to the above penalties, such convicted person may, in 
the discretion of the court, be ordered to reimburse the City for all 
necessary costs incurred through investigation, discovery, analysis, 
inspection, abatement and other actual costs incurred by the City or 
its agents pertaining to the violation.   

2. The court shall fix the amount of any such reimbursements upon 
submission of proof of such costs by the city.  Payment of any 
penalty herein provided shall not relieve a person from the 
responsibility of correcting the condition resulting from the violation. 

SECTION 3. Inconsistent Provisions.  Any provision of the Cudahy Municipal 
Code or appendices thereto inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, to the 
extent of such inconsistencies and no further, is hereby repealed or modified to the 
extent necessary to affect the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 4.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it 
would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, subsection, sentence, 



4 

clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any 
portions of this Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.   

SECTION 5.  California Environmental Quality Act.  The City finds that the 
provisions of this Ordinance are exempt from the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act as an action to protect natural resources pursuant to Public 
Resources Code §15307. 

SECTION 6.  Publication.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to 
the passage of this Ordinance.  The City Clerk shall cause the same to be published 
once in the official newspaper within fifteen (15) days after its adoption.  This Ordinance 
shall become effective thirty (30) days after adoption. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of December, 2014. 

 

             
        Chris Garcia, Mayor 
        City of Cudahy 

ATTEST: 

 
 
      
Donna G. Schwartz, CMC 
Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 
I, Donna G. Schwartz, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that  
Ordinance No. 643 was introduced by the City Council at a special meeting on 
November 25th, 2014 and adopted at regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy on the _______day of______________, 2014 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
   
 
 
  ____________________________ 

Donna G. Schwartz, CMC 
Interim City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

STAFF REPORT 
!
Date:   December 2, 2014 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 

Subject: Professional Services Agreement Between the City of Cudahy and Donna 	  	  
	 	 Schwartz !
RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council is requested to approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) between the City 
of Cudahy and Donna Schwartz to provide Interim City Clerk services. 


!
BACKGROUND 
1. On July 24, 2014 the City of Cudahy entered into a (PSA) with MuniTemps to provide an 

assigned employee (i.e., Donna Schwartz) to function as the Interim City Clerk. 

2. The PSA term with MuniTemps is set to expire on December 5, 2014.


!
ANALYSIS 
In an effort to retain the current level of service in the City Clerk's Office, in a manner that is cost 
effective, it has been determined that bringing on Donna Schwartz as an independent consultant 
would reduce fiscal impact. The hourly rate to have MuniTemps continue to provide an assigned 
employee to carry out the duties of Interim City Clerk is currently $59.75 per hour Entering into a 
(PSA) with Donna Schwartz would reduce the hourly rate for the same service to $45.00 per hour, 
resulting in a savings of $14.75 per hour. 


!
CONCLUSION 
If a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) is not approved, the Human Resources Department will 
need to return to MuniTemps to work out a new agreement, at the existing hourly rate of $59.75, 
and seek out a new assigned employee to temporarily fill the position of Interim City Clerk position.


�  of 21
Staff Report 
12/2/2014

Item Number

10B



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

!
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Currently Ms. Schwartz works approximately 30 hour work week. At a rate of $45.00 per hour, the 
monthly fiscal impact would be approximately $5,400 per month.  Charges incurred for services 
were budgeted in the FY 2014-15 City Budget.


!
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Public Services Agreement between the City of Cudahy and Donna Schwartz

�  of 22
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



11 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

2014 
AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

(Engagement: Temporary City Clerk Services)  
(Parties: Donna Schwartz and the City of Cudahy) 

 
THIS 2014 AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES (“Agreement”) by and between the CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation 
and general law city (“CITY”) and Donna Schwartz an individual (hereinafter, “Consultant”) is 
made and entered into the last date of signature below, but shall not take effect until signed by 
all of the parties to this Agreement as indicated on the signature page below. For the purposes 
of this Agreement, CITY and Consultant may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term 
“PARTIES.”  The capitalized term “PARTY” may refer to City or Consultant interchangeably. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, CITY, pursuant to California Government Code Sections 37103 and 
53060, is authorized and empowered to contract with any person for the furnishing of services 
and advice in finance, economic, accounting or administrative matters if such persons are 
specially trained and experienced and competent to perform such special services required; and  
 

WHEREAS, the CITY wishes to engage the Consultant for the purposes of retaining a 
person to perform the duties and functions as mentioned in the attached Scope of Work for the 
CITY on an interim basis; and 
 

WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel are presently unable to perform the specialized 
services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, Consultant has proposed and CITY has agreed to appoint an assigned 
employee  (“Assigned Employee”) who possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, CITY and Consultant wish to enter into the Agreement in order to set 
forth the rights and obligations of the PARTIES. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, and based 
upon the recitals set forth above, CITY and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1.  DUTIES AND AUTHORITY 

 
1.1 DUTIES.  Under the direction of the City Council and City Manager, the interim City 
Clerk will provide professional City Clerk-related services in all functional areas including, but 
not limited to: agenda development/management process (City Council), minutes (date forward 
only), records management, Public Records Act requests, contract management, and Fair 
Political Practices Commission/Political Reform Act Filings. 
 
 
 



12 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

ARTICLE  2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS; TERMINATION FOR 
CONVENIENCE 

 
2.1 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  The PARTIES acknowledge, understand 
and agree that Consultant is, and shall at all times remain, a wholly independent contractor and 
shall not be considered an employee of the CITY.   Given the temporary and interim nature of 
this engagement, it is the desire and intent of the PARTIES that Consultant shall be an 
“independent contractor” who is not also an employee within the meaning of Government 
Code Section 20300(b), and by such status is excluded from compulsory enrollment in the 
California Public Employees Retirement System established under the Public Employees 
Retirement Law (“PERL”) (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.). 
 
ARTICLE 3.  TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
3.1 The term of this Agreement (“Term”) shall be deemed to have commenced on 
December 2, 2014 and shall end on June 30, 2015 and thereafter shall renew automatically on a 
month-to-month basis unless prior to the expiration of the Term or any extension term, the City 
Council declines to extend the engagement. Nothing in the foregoing sentence shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement prior to the 
expiration of the initial Term or any extension term as provided under Articles 11 and 12 of 
this Agreement below. 
 
ARTICLE 4.  PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE  
 
4.1 ATTENDANCE AND MEETINGS, CONFERENCES AND SPECIAL FUNCTIONS.  
Section 4.1 notwithstanding, Consultant, as directed by the City Council, shall also be available 
to attend public meetings, business meetings, conferences and functions that may be scheduled 
outside of normal CITY business hours, including but not limited to all regular, special, 
adjourned and/or emergency meetings of the City Council, and CITY shall be billed for all 
such hours Consultant attends such meetings required by CITY.     
 
4.2 RESTRICTION ON HOURS WORKED:  The Term of this Agreement and the 
provisions of Section 4.1 notwithstanding, in no event may Consultant’s total hours worked 
under this Agreement exceed more than 1,000 hours during any single fiscal year.  Consultant 
shall maintain a log of daily work hours (including start time and departure time) to monitor 
compliance with this provision.  Consultant shall have no obligation to continue performance 
once the 1,000 hour limitation has been attained.  Furthermore, CITY shall have the 
responsibility to monitor fees charged in relation to the not to exceed amount.  CITY shall be 
responsible for all charges for services in the event CITY fails to notify Consultant of 
termination of the assignment or fails to increase of the not-to-exceed amount.  For purposes of 
this Agreement, the term “fiscal year” shall mean the period of time commencing from July 1st 
of a calendar year and ending on June 30th of the calendar year immediately following.  
 
 
 
 
 



13 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

 
ARTICLE 5.  COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT 
 
5.1 COMPENSATION.   
 

A. Consultant shall perform all of the various services and tasks that comprise the 
Work in accordance with Exhibit “A.”  Consultant shall be paid for the number of 
hours in performance of the Work.  The Consultant shall not exceed Thirty (30) 
hours per work week, unless authorized by the City Manager. Consultant shall be 
billed out at an hourly rate of FORTY FIVE DOLLARS PER HOUR ($45.00/hour) 
(hereinafter “Hourly Rate”). 
 

B.  CITY shall pay Consultant at the Hourly Rate in a bi-weekly format to run 
stimulations to employee payroll as Consultant performs the various services and 
tasks that make up the Work.  At the end of each pay period during the term of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall submit to CITY a bi-monthly itemized statement 
indicating the work performed, costs incurred and hours of service rendered by 
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the specific tasks performed.  CITY shall 
not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made 
to Consultant.  

 
5.2 REIMBURSEMENT.  CITY recognizes that Consultant may incur certain expenses of 
a non-personal nature in the performance of duties under this Agreement.  CITY agrees to 
reimburse or to pay such business expenses that are incurred by Consultant in the performance 
of duties in accordance with CITY’s expense reimbursement procedures, as the same may be 
updated and/or amended from time to time by the City Council.   
 
ARTICLE 6.  NO BENEFITS 
 
6.1 Except as otherwise provided under Article 5 of the Agreement, Consultant shall not 
receive any benefits, incentives, compensation in lieu of benefits or any other form of 
compensation above the hourly compensation provided under Article 5, above.   As Assigned 
Employee is billed out on an hourly basis, the Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that 
Assigned Employee need not be enrolled under CalPERS.  
 
6.2 Consultant acknowledges, understands and agrees that they are not a regular employee 
of the CITY and is not entitled to receive any benefits generally available to employees of the 
CITY, including but not limited to medical insurance, dental insurance, sick leave, paid 
vacation, retirement benefits, unemployment benefits or otherwise which accrue to employees 
of the CITY, and hereby expressly waives any right or claim to such benefits.   
 
ARTICLE 7.  INDEMNITY 
 
7.1 To the extent permitted by law, Consultant will defend, and hold CITY and its 
directors, officers, agents, representatives, and employees (collectively “Indemnitees”) 
harmless from all claims, losses, and liabilities (including reasonable attorney’s fees) to the 
extent caused by Consultant’s breach of this Agreement; its failure to discharge its material 



14 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

duties and responsibilities as provided in this Agreement; or the negligence, gross negligence, 
or willful misconduct of Consultant in the discharge of those duties and responsibilities.  
 
7.2 CITY will defend, and hold Consultant from all claims, losses, and liabilities (including 
reasonable attorney’s fees) to the extent caused by the negligence, gross negligence, or willful 
misconduct of CITY or CITY’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the discharge of 
those duties and responsibilities specified under this Agreement.   
 
7.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due to 
Consultant under this Agreement any amount due CITY from Consultant as a result of 
Consultant’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this Article and 
related to Consultant’s failure to either (i) pay legally required taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  
 
7.4 The obligations of Consultant under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act. Consultant expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  
 
7.5 Consultant agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to 
those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other person or 
entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of Consultant in the performance of this Agreement.  
In the event Consultant fails to obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required 
herein, Consultant agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers 
from and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death 
or injury to any person and injury to any property resulting from any reckless, negligent, or 
otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of Consultant’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of Consultant’s in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by 
counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 
7.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against Consultant 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to be 
applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 
 
7.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the CITY 
may have at law or in equity. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
Consultant shall have no obligation of indemnity, or liability for any claims to the extent 
arising out of CITY negligence or willful misconduct, or failure to comply with the 
requirements of this Agreement. 
 
 



15 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

 
 
ARTICLE 8.  BUSINESS RELATED EQUIPMENT 
 
Assigned Employee acknowledges, understands and agrees that he will not receive, nor shall 
he be entitled to any type of personal mobile communication device for the performance of his 
duties under this Agreement such as a cell phone or an iPad.  
 
ARTICLE 9. CITY DOCUMENTS AND CONFIDENTIALITY 
  
9.1 CITY DOCUMENTS.  All data, studies, reports and other documents prepared by 
Consultant while performing duties during the term of this Agreement shall be furnished to and 
become the property of the CITY, without restriction or limitation on their use.  
 
9.2 CONFIDENTIALITY.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, procedures, 
drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written information, and 
other materials either created by or provided to Consultant in connection with the performance 
of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant to the extent permitted by 
applicable law.  Such materials shall not, without CITY’s prior written consent, be used by 
Consultant for any purposes other than the performance of Consultant’s duties.   
 
ARTICLE 10.  TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
10.1 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.  Consultant shall serve at the pleasure of the 
City Council.  Consultant’s engagement with CITY may be terminated for convenience at any 
time by the City Council without cause upon the issuance of written notice specifying the 
effective date of such termination, which may provide that such termination shall take effect 
immediately upon the issuance of the notice.  
 
10.2 NO PRE-TERMINATION HEARING.  Consultant shall not be entitled to any pre-
termination hearing or other similar proceeding or appeal proceeding as a precondition to any 
decision or action by the City Council to terminate CONSULTANT’s engagement. 
 
10.3 NO PROPERTY INTEREST.  It is understood and agreed by the PARTIES that 
Consultant’s engagement with the CITY is temporary in nature and that Consultant shall have 
no expectation of ongoing or long-term employment with the CITY.   Nothing in this 
Agreement shall confer upon Consultant any right or property interest in employment with 
CITY.   
 
10.4 NO SEVERANCE PAY.  Consultant expressly agrees that he/she shall not be entitled 
to any severance pay as the result of the termination of this Agreement prior to the expiration 
of the Term or any extension term. 
 
10.5 CONSULTANT TERMINATION.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement at any 
time without cause and for convenience, provided it provides the City Council with no less 
than fifteen (15) calendar days advance written notice prior to the effective date of termination.   



16 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

The City Council may shorten the effective date of any termination for convenience initiated 
by Consultant in the City Councils’ sole and absolute discretion.  
 
ARTICLE 11. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 
 
11.1 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT 
 

A. In the event either PARTY fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any such 
duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of default 
(hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the PARTY 
alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting PARTY 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature of 
the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date 
by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 10.1B and 10.1C below or if a cure 
is not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and 
diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting PARTY fails to cure the Event of 
Default within fifteen (15) calendar days of the non-defaulting PARTY’s issuance 
of a written notice of default (hereinafter, a “Notice of Default”) to the defaulting 
party.   

 
B. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

Consultant’s performance under this Agreement pending Consultant’s cure of any 
Event of Default by giving Consultant written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend 
Consultant’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue 
the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. 
Upon such suspension, Consultant shall be compensated only for those services 
rendered up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or asserted breach of 
this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict 
CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

 
C. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute 

a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a PARTY shall give the 
other PARTY any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
D. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 

remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement in 
the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, 
may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to Consultant, the CITY may immediately terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part; 



17 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

 
ii. Upon written notice to Consultant, the CITY may extend the time of 

performance; 
 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 
Agreement  to recover damages for Consultant’s breach of the Agreement  or 
to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CITY may seek legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY incurs upon 
Consultant’s breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies 
under this Agreement.  

 
E. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, Consultant’s sole remedy shall be 

the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any unpaid 
sums lawfully owed to Consultant under this Agreement for services rendered. 

 
ARTICLE 12. CONDITIONS OF CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 
 
12.1 CONFLICT-OF-INTEREST.  CITY shall direct Consultant to sign a separate writing 
stating the following obligations: Consultant shall not, during the term of this Agreement, 
individually, as a partner, joint venture, officer or shareholder, invest or participate in any 
business venture conducting business within the corporate limits of CITY, except for stock 
ownership in any company whose capital stock is publicly held and regularly traded, without 
prior approval of the City Council.  Consultant further agrees not to invest in any other real 
estate or property improvements within the corporate limits of CITY during the term of this 
Agreement without the prior consent of the City Council.    
 
12.2 CONSULTANT VEHICLE.   Consultant shall provide his transportation to and from 
the worksite. 
 
ARTICLE 13. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
13.1 NOTICES.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective upon delivery by hand or three (3) 
business days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, 
and addressed to CITY at the address below, and at the last known address maintained in 
CITY’s contract file.  Consultant agrees to notify CITY, in writing, of any change in 
Consultant’s address during Consultant’s employment with CITY.  Notice of change of address 
shall be effective only when accomplished in accordance with this Section. 
 
 CITY’s Notice Address: 
 City of Cudahy 
 Attn: Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 
 5220 Santa Ana Street 
 Cudahy, California 90201 



18 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

  
 Staffing Firm’s Address:  

Donna Schwartz 
461 Green Orchard Place 
Riverside, CA 92506 
Phone: 951-999-1617 

 
13.2 BONDING.  CITY shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of the 
Assigned Firm under any laws or ordinance. 
 
13.3 ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement, including the General Conditions of 
Assignment and the Terms of Payments incorporated herein and attached hereto as “Exhibit 
A,”   is intended to be the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of Consultant’s 
engagement with the CITY.  This Agreement supersedes all other prior and contemporaneous 
agreements and statements, whether written or oral, express or implied, pertaining in any 
manner to the engagement of Consultant Employee, and it may not be contradicted by evidence 
of any prior or contemporaneous statements or agreements.  To the extent that the practices, 
policies, or procedures of CITY, now or in the future, apply to Consultant Employee and are 
inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
13.4 AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement may not be amended except in the form of a written 
amendment to this Agreement approved by the City Council. 
 
13.5 WAIVER.  Failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of such right. 
 
13.6 ASSIGNMENT.  Consultant shall not assign any rights or obligations under this 
Agreement.  CITY may, upon prior written notice to Consultant, assign its rights and 
obligations hereunder. 
 
14.8 SEVERABILITY.  If any court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 
Agreement to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
14.9 ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding brought to 
enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 
 
14.10 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, with venue in the County of Los Angeles, 
State of California. 
 
14.11 INTERPRETATION.  This Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its 
fair meaning, and not in favor of or against any PARTY.  By way of example and not in 
limitation, this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of the PARTY receiving a benefit 
nor against the PARTY responsible for any particular language in this Agreement.  Captions 
are used for reference purposes only and should be ignored in the interpretation of the 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in 



19 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

writing, executed by the PARTIES to this Agreement and by no other means.  Each PARTY 
waives their future right to claim, contest, or assert that this Agreement was modified, 
cancelled superseded or changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel. 
 
14.12 ACKNOWLEDGMENT.  Consultant acknowledges that it has had the opportunity to 
consult legal counsel in regard to this Agreement, that it has read and understands this 
Agreement, that it is fully aware of its legal effect, and that it has entered into it freely and 
voluntarily and based on Consultant’s own judgment and not on any representations or 
promises other than those contained in this Agreement. 
 
14.13 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement shall be executed in four (4) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect. One counterpart shall be delivered to 
Consultant, one counterpart shall be retained by the Human Resources Department, one 
counterpart shall be retained by the Office of the City Manager, and the fourth counterpart 
shall be retained by the City Clerk for permanent archiving by the CITY. 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY has caused this Agreement to be signed and executed 
on the date first indicated above. 
 
 
      CITY OF CUDAHY 
 
 
By:      
       Chris Garcia, 
       Mayor 
 
Date:______________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:      
Rick Olivarez, 
City Attorney 

 
CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:       
       Donna Schwartz 
        
 
Date:______________________ 
 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
  
 
 
 
 



21 Version 1.0 – 08-27-2014 

 

 

 
 
                                                                     Exhibit A 

(“Scope of Work”) 
 

SUMMARY 
DESCRIPTION 

 
Under administrative direction from the City Manager, the City Clerk directs, 
manages, supervises, and coordinates the activities and operations of the City Clerk’s 
Office including preparation and recording of the activities and decisions of the 
City Council and the Successor Agency and codification and maintenance of  official 
City records; administers municipal elections; coordinates assigned activities with 
other divisions, departments and outside agencies; and provides highly responsible 
and complex administrative support to the City Manager and City Council. 

 
REPRESENTATIVE 
DUTIES 

 
The following duties are typical for this classification. Consultant may not perform 
all of the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different 
duties from those set forth below to address business needs and changing business 
practices. 

 
1. Assume management responsibility for all services and activities of the City 
Clerk’s Office including preparation and recording of the activities and decisions of 
the City Council and Successor Agency and codification and maintenance of official 
City records. 

 
2. Manage and participate in the development and implementation of goals, 
objectives, policies, and priorities for assigned programs; recommend and administer 
policies and procedures. 

 
3. Monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods 
and procedures; recommend, within departmental policy, appropriate service and 
staffing levels. 

 
4. Oversee and participate in the development and administration of the City Clerk’s 
Office annual budget; participate in the forecast of funds needed for staffing, 
equipment, materials, and supplies; monitor and approve expenditures; implement 
adjustments. 



 

22   
 

6. Supervise and coordinate the preparation and distribution of agendas and support 
materials for City Council and other meetings as needed. 

 
8. Attend meetings of the City Council and other meetings and record minutes; follow-up 
on action items as necessary. 

 
9. Ensure accurate up-to-date filing of City ordinances, agreements, resolutions, and 
minutes of City Council, commissions, and committees; sign and certify official City 
documents. 

 
10.  Ensure  City  agreements,  contracts,  and  other  legal  documents  are  signed  and 
recorded, associated records and documents are obtained, and public notices and 
ordinances are published. 

 
11. Coordinate the conduct of municipal and special elections; act as liaison to the Los 
Angeles County Registrar’s office; file state campaign statements and other forms; 
facilitate compliance with the Fair Political Practices Act; administer state campaign 
financing and disclosure laws. 

 
12. Administer Oaths or affirmations. 

 
13. Oversee and supervise all public records requests; notes and submits requests that 
need to be reviewed by the City Attorney before being fulfilled. 

 
14. Oversee and manage the City’s records management program including developing 
procedures for records management, retrieval and disposal; maintain, dispose, and 
preserve official city documents and records including resolutions, ordinances, deeds, 
Council  minutes,  agreements,  and  reports  in  accordance  with  legal  requirements; 
supervise the storage and protection of the City’s permanent records. 

 
15. Serve as the liaison for the City Clerk’s Office with other divisions, departments, 
outside agencies and the general public; negotiate and resolve sensitive and controversial 
issues. 

 
16. Provide responsible staff assistance to the Mayor, City Council, City Manager, City 
Attorney, and Successor Agency; conduct a variety of organizational studies, 
investigations, and operational studies; recommend modifications to City Clerk’s Office 
programs, policies, and procedures as appropriate. 

 
17. Attend and participate in professional group meetings; maintain awareness of new 
trends and developments in the fields related to the City Clerk’s Office including 
municipal records management and election administration; incorporate new 
developments as appropriate. 

 
18. Perform related duties as required. 

 



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

STAFF REPORT 
!
Date:   December 2, 2014 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director

                      By: Jennifer Hernandez, Acting Human Resources Specialist 

Subject:	 A Resolution of the City of Cudahy, California Designating Holidays on which 
	 	 City Offices Shall be Closed for Calendar Year 2015 

RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council is requested to approve Resolution No. 14-84, a Resolution of the City of Cudahy 
designating holidays on which City offices shall be closed for Calendar Year 2015.

 


BACKGROUND 
1. Section 6700 of the California Government Code designates days that are holidays. 


2. Section 6702 of the California Government Code provides that City offices shall be closed 
designated State Holidays unless otherwise provided by the City.


3. In the February 5, 2013 the Cudahy City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee's Association (CMEA) and the City. The 
term of the MOU was approved retroactively to July 1, 2012 through to June 30, 2015.  The 
CMEA negotiated the right to observe the holidays reflected on the attached resolution.  


4. Resolution No. 07-24, approved on July 1, 2007, allows management employees the right to 
observe those same holidays. 


!
ANALYSIS 
Designation of holidays on which City offices will be closed for Calendar Year 2015 will support the 
holidays negotiated in the 2012-2015 MOU, which are currently being observed by represented 
employees of the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees Association.  Non-represented Management 

�  of 31
Staff Report 
12/2/2014

Item Number

10C



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

employees also observe the same holidays as established by Resolution No. 07-24 adopted July 1, 
2007, which addresses compensation and fringe benefits.

Holidays currently observed by the City are as follows:

!
	 January 1, 2015	 	 	 New Year’s Day                                  

	 January 19, 2015	 	 	 Martin Luther King Jr. Day                                   

	 February 16, 2015	 	 	 President’s Day                                  

	 April 3, 2015	 	 	 	 Good Friday                                   

	 May 25, 2015	 	 	 	 MemorialDay                                   

	 July 4, 2015	 	 	 	 Independence Day                                   

	 September 7, 2015	 	 	 Labor Day                                   

	 November 11, 2015	 	 	 Veteran’s Day                                   

	 November 26, 2015	 	 	 Thanksgiving Day                                   

	 November 27, 2015	 	 	 Friday following Thanksgiving Day                                   

	 December 24, 2015	 	 	 Christmas Eve                                   

	 December 25, 2015	 	 	 Christmas Day


!
CONCLUSION 
City Council approval of this resolution allows observance of these City holidays. Observance of 
these holidays significantly reduce resources available to the public during operating hours.  Due to 
the inability to provide and maintain quality of service to the community on designated holidays, 
City offices will be closed in accordance to the calendar reflected above.  


!
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Costs associated with this holiday were incorporated into the FY 2014-15 City Budget, which was 
approved on October 22, 2014. There are no additional fiscal impacts.


ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution No. 14-84, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA DESIGNATING 

HOLIDAYS ON WHICH CITY OFFICES SHALL BE CLOSED FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2015


*California Government Code 6700.  The holidays in this state are:   (a) Every Sunday.   (b) January 1st.   (c) The third Monday in January, 
known as "Dr. Martin Luther King,Jr. Day."   (d) February 12th, known as "Lincoln Day."   (e) The third Monday in February.   (f) March 31st 
known as "Cesar Chavez Day."   (g) The last Monday in May.   (h) July 4th.   (i) The first Monday in September.   (j) September 9th, known 
as "Admission Day."   (k) The second Monday in October, known as "Columbus Day."   (l) November 11th, known as "Veterans Day."   (m) 
December 25th.     (n) Good Friday from 12 noon until 3 p.m.     (o) Every day appointed by the President or Governor for a public fast, 
thanksgiving, or holiday.   Except for the Thursday in November appointed as Thanksgiving Day,this subdivision and subdivisions (c) and 
(f) shall not apply to a city, county, or district unless made applicable by charter, or by ordinance or resolution of the governing body 

�  of 32
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

thereof.     If the provisions of this section are in conflict with the provisions of a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant 
toChapter 12 (commencing with Section 3560) of Division 4 of Title 1,the memorandum of understanding shall be controlling without 
further legislative action, except that if those provisions of a memorandum of understanding require the expenditure of funds, the 
provisions shall not become effective unless approved by the Legislature in the annual Budget Act.6701.   If January 1st, February 12th, 
March 31st, July 4th,September 9th, November 11th, or December 25th falls upon a Sunday,the Monday following is a holiday. If 
November 11th falls upon a Saturday, the preceding Friday is a holiday.   If any holiday designated in Section 6700 falls on a Saturday, the 
board of supervisors of any county may by ordinance or resolution provide that an alternate day shall be a holiday for the employees of 
the county, except those employees of the county working as court attachés.


**California Government Code 6702.   Every Saturday from noon to midnight is a holiday as regards the transaction of business in the 
public offices of the state and political divisions where laws, ordinances, or charters provide that public offices shall be closed on 
holidays. This section shall not be construed to prevent or invalidate the issuance, filing, service,execution, or recording of any legal 
process or written instrument during such period. Public offices of a city shall be closed on those holidays enumerated in Section 6700 
unless otherwise provided by charter, ordinance or resolution.

!

�  of 33
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-85 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY, 
CALIFORNIA DESIGNATING HOLIDAYS ON 
WHICH CITY OFFICES SHALL BE CLOSED 
FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2015 

WHEREAS, Section 6700 of the California Government Code designates days that 
are holidays in the State; and 

WHEREAS, Section 6702 of the California Government Code provides that City 
offices shall be closed designated State Holidays unless otherwise provided by the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council desires and deems it to be in the best public interest to 
designate those holidays on which City offices will be closed; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy, 
California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 
2. That the public offices of the City shall be closed on the following dates in 

observance of the indicated holidays: 

                       January 1, 2015                                      New Year’s Day 

                        January 19, 2015                                    Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

                        February 16, 2015                                  President’s Day 

                        April 3, 2015                                            Good Friday 

                        May 25, 2015                                           Memorial Day 

                        July 4, 2014                                              Independence Day 

                        September 7, 2015                                 Labor Day 

                        November 11, 2015                                Veteran’s Day 

                        November 26, 2015                                Thanksgiving Day 

                        November 27, 2015                       Friday following Thanksgiving Day 

                        December 24, 2015                                 Christmas Eve 

                        December 25, 2015                                 Christmas Day 



2 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its 
regular meeting on this 2nd day of December, 2014. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Chris Garcia, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:        
 
__________________________ 
Donna G. Schwartz, CMC 
Interim City Clerk       
 
 



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

STAFF REPORT 
!
Date:   December 2, 2014 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members


From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director
!
Subject: Authorization to Apply for Grant Funds through the 2015 Metropolitan 
	 	 Transportation Authority (MTA) Call for Projects 	 	 	  

RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council is requested to:


1. Authorize the City Manager to submit up to three grant applications for citywide improvements 
through the 2015 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) Call for 
Projects which are due by January 16, 2015; 


2. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Avant-Garde, Inc. (i.e., Avant-Garde) in 
an amount not-to-exceed $24,520 for the submittal of one or multiple grant applications in 
response to the 2015 MTA Call for Projects.  


Project costs are according to the following breakdown:	 

- First Application $10,520 	 

- Second Application $7,000 	 

- Third Application $7,000; and

!

3. Amend the City’s existing (PSA) with Transtech, Inc. (i.e., Transtech) in the amount of 
approximately $12,500 for the preparation of engineering documents required for the submittal 
of one or multiple grant applications to the 2015 MTA Call for Projects.


!
BACKGROUND 
1. On July 31, 2014, the City entered into a PSA with Transtech, 	Inc., to provide plan check 

services to include the review of plans submitted to subdivision improvements, commercial 

�  of 4112/2/2014

Item Number

10D



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

developments, and infrastructure improvements within the City’s right of way. Plans are to be 
reviewed for the conformance with local and other applicable ordinances and standards with a 
strict attention to details. Plan check services include but 	 are not limited to grading plans, 
traffic plans, and architectural, structural, electrical, mechanical, plumbing plans and other 
duties as assigned through an amendment to their agreement. 


2. On September 12, 2014, MTA announced the 2015 Call for Projects.

3. On September 30, 2014, City staff (Assistant City Engineer and Planning Technician) attended 
the 2015 Los Angeles County MTA Call for Projects training session in downtown Los Angeles.

4. On November 7, 2014, the City Manager and Acting Community Development Director met with 
representatives from Avant Garde (i.e., Lissette Calleros, Company Principal and Ana Marie 
LeNoue, Company Principal) to discuss this exciting grant opportunity that only comes around 
every other year. 

5. On November 12, 2014, Avant Garde submitted a proposal to prepare one or more grant 
applications for 2015 MTA Call for Projects.

6. On November 14, 2014, City Manager and Acting Community Development Director reviewed 
Avant Garde’s grant writing proposal for the 2015 MTA Call for Projects.


7. On November 17, 2014, both the City Manager and the Acting Community Development 
Director agreed that the City should pursue one or multiple grant applications through the 	
MTA’s 2015 Call for Projects.

!
ANALYSIS 
The Call for Projects is a competitive process through which the MTA awards Federal, State, and 
local transportation funds to the most regionally significant projects in different modal categories.  
The FY 2015 MTA Call for Projects applications are due January 16, 2015.  Multiple grant 
applications can be submitted with the adequate project study information for the same project in 
different categories, or multiple projects within the same category.  Upon completion of the design 
and cost estimate by Transtech, the project will be evaluated by Avant-Garde to determine which 
modes the City’s project will be the most competitive. 


Over the years, Avant Garde has built a strong reputation for providing innovative and successful 
solutions for a number of public agencies.  They have a successful track record with several 
municipalities in Los Angeles providing compliance management and grant writing services.  They 
have secured over $90 million in grant funds for their clients and have specific success in working 
on MTA funded projects and securing funds in previous MTA Call for Projects.  The Call for Projects 
applications requires very specific engineering information.  Transtech will provide the needed 
expertise and assistance with the technical data required for completion of the application(s).


Currently, staff is exploring submitting grant applications for these modal categories:  Pedestrian 
Improvements, Bicycle Improvements, and Transportation Demand Management:

�  of 4212/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

!
•Pedestrian Improvements: provide capital funds for construction of projects that improve 
the pedestrian environment in order to promote walking as a viable form of transportation.  
Design and right-of-way acquisition are eligible expenses as long as they are directly related 
to and part of the project’s construction. Eligible projects may include: sidewalk 
construction, extensions and widening; curb ramps (as part of sidewalk reconstruction); 
enhanced pedestrian crossing features; landscaping; signage; lighting; and street furniture. 
Improvements must be for the use of the general public and located within a public right of 
way, in a public easement, or some other guarantee of public use.


!
•Bicycle Improvements: fund projects that provide access and mobility for local and 
regional bicycle travel, gap closures that connect bikeway networks, on-street 
improvements to transit hubs, high-capacity bicycle parking, and innovative projects that 
promote bicycling. Rehabilitation, Restoration, and Resurfacing (3R) are eligible as a 
component of a larger project.
!
•Transportation Demand Management: implement strategies that improve transportation 
multi-mobility in Los Angeles County.  Demand management strategies may include policy 
changes, physical improvements, programs or operational changes that enhance multi-
mobility and air quality other that through building major new transportation infrastructure.

!
The 2015 MTA Call for Projects provides a significant amount of grant funds (i.e., between $1 million 
and $6 million) to successful cities.  It should be noted that depending on the modal category, funds 
will be available beginning FY 2016-17 and will be allocated for five years. 


The total number of grant applications submitted by the City to MTA will be determined by the 
design and cost estimates prepared by Transtech.  This information will then be used to determine 
in which mode or modes the City’s project(s) will be the most competitive in.
!
CONCLUSION 
City Council authorization for the City Manager to submit up to three applications for grant funds 
through the 2015 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) Call for Projects 
by retaining the services of Avant Garde through a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for grant 
writing work, and amendment of Transtech’s existing contract for the related grant application 
engineering work ensures that City remains consistent in its pursuit of grant funding to improve the 
community’s quality of life.


!
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The City will need to make a budget adjustment of between $10,525 and $24,525 for grant writing 
services and approximately $12,500 for engineering services at Mid-Year to the FY 2014-15 City 
Budget. 


�  of 4312/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

!
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Avant-Garde, Inc. fee proposal for preparation of one or more grant application(s) for the 	

2015 Metro Call for Projects.

B. Amendment to Transtech Professional Services Agreement with City for grant application 	

related engineering work.

C. Avant-Garde, Inc. Professional Service Agreement

�  of 4412/2/2014



 

3670 W. Temple Avenue #278, Pomona, CA 91768  

tel: 909.979.6586 • fax: 909.979.6585 • www.avant-garde-inc.com 

 

 

 

 

 
November 11, 2014 
 
 
Mr. Jose Pulido 
City Manager 
City of Cudahy 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
 
 
Subject: Fee Proposal for Preparation of the Grant Application(s) for the 2015 Metro 

Call for Projects. 
 

Dear Mr. Pulido: 
 
It is with great pleasure that I provide you this proposal to prepare a grant application(s) for the 
2015 Metro Call for Projects Program.  We have prepared this fee proposal, which will address 
the following: (A) our proposed scope of work, (B) the project schedule, and (C) our consulting 
fees. 
 
A. Scope of Work 

 
Our services will include the following:   
 

 Preparation and submittal of the program application(s), which consists of three parts: 1-
General application, 2-Financial plan, 3-Completion of the modal category application 
along with appropriate attachments including project location map. The application will 
be submitted on-line as required by Metro in addition to two (2) hard copies of the 
application and a CD that will be hand delivered to Metro. 
  

 Coordination with designated City Staff/Consulting Team to obtain the information 
required for development of the project scope and all required attachments. This 
information includes, but is not limited to: conceptual project renderings and/or 
illustrations, preliminary cost estimates, including a breakdown of all phases of the 
project, the type/amount of match funds, project schedule, and obtaining letters of 
support, etc. 
 

 Attendance at Project Development Team Meetings, review of existing studies and 
plans.  

 
B. Project Schedule 

 
The grant application will be completed and submitted to Metro by the deadline of January 16, 
2015. 
 



 

3670 W. Temple Avenue #278, Pomona, CA 91768  

tel: 909.979.6586 • fax: 909.979.6585 • www.avant-garde-inc.com 

 

C. Compensation 

 
Our fee will be billed on a not-to-exceed basis. The following is a breakdown of the estimated 
hours required to complete the application(s). 
 
Metro Call for Projects Application(s) Preparation: 

 

 Meeting(s) Attendance, Metro Call for Projects Application(s) Coordination including 
coordination with Engineering, review of feasibility studies prepared by the City and 
preparation of funding feasibility including review of City budget to determine match 
funds available as well as determining other grant/funding sources:   

 

A. Program Director   $130 x 15 hours = $1,950 
B. Program Assistant     $65 x 15 hours = $975 

 

 The application consists of three parts: General application, financial plan and 
completion of the modal category application.  We are offering a discounted hourly 
rate for grant writing services at $95.  

 
A. General Application: Program Manager $95 x 25 hours = $2,375.00 
B. Financial Plan: Program Manager $95 x 10 hours = $950.00 
C. Modal Category Application: Program Manager $95 x 45 hours = $4,275.00 

 
The proposed total is $10,525. Should the City wish to pursue more than one application under 
different modal categories, we are offering a reduced price of $7,000 for each subsequent 
application.  
 
If you have any questions or if I can be of further assistance, please feel free to contact me at 
(909) 979-6587. 
 
 
Sincerely,       Acceptance of Proposal: 
 
 
 
Lissette Calleros      ____________________________ 

Vice President      City Representative,          Date                                   



project Staff qualifications 

 

To provide exceptional grant writing services to the City of Cudahy, we present a highly 

qualified and experienced team of program managers and coordinators with years of 

experience.  We have assigned firm principals, Lissette Calleros and Ana Marie LeNoue, 

to serve as the Project Representatives.  Ms. Calleros will oversee all assigned staff and 

will ensure successful administration of grant writing, grant seeking, and fund 

administration services outlined in this proposal.   

 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART  

 

 
 

          

 Lissette Calleros    Ana Marie LeNoue 

                Company Principal / Project Director  Company Principal 

 

 

 

        Robert Beckman             Simona Ramirez 

                    Program Manager            Program Manager 

 

 

 

 

               Jerome Joaquin         Jose Montoya                Megan LeNoue              

              Program Assistant              Program Coordinator       Program Assistant       

 

 

 

 

Resumes of key project staff 



Lissette Calleros 

Principal / Program Director 

 

Ms. Calleros has 14 years of experience in Program Management and is the Vice 

President and CFO of Avant-Garde. Ms. Calleros expertise is in administering federal and 

state funded projects, program development, and records management. She provides 

funding administration to ensure that cities develop their projects in accordance with 

policy and procedural requirements, assists in determining eligible projects for various 

funding sources, and manages development and capital improvement 

programs/projects from conception to completion. She has experience in identifying 

federal and state fund allocation balances, programming funds, and administers long-

and-short range programs consistent with the economic capabilities of the City.  

 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE  

 

Ms. Calleros and her team have extensive experience in grant writing, project monitoring, 

labor compliance and provides fund administration services to ensure that the funding 

secured is spent per the requirements of the funding agency and within the required 

timelines.  She also has experience in strategic budget planning specifically with Capital 

Improvement Programs.  

Ms. Calleros has assisted various agencies in performing a variety of analyses and studies 

to identify State and Federal funding options; performed time-critical and confidential 

studies related to fiscal and administrative requirements of grant programs; assisted in the 

grants solicitation process; planned and coordinated the implementation of awarded 

grants to ensure that the City was in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 

and monitored and audited grant expenses. 

Ms. Calleros will be responsible for all quality assurance/quality control efforts. Ms. Calleros 

has over 12 years of experience in successful grant writing, research and strategic 

planning.  Her proven track record demonstrates her ability and competence in applying 



for and securing State and Federal grants funds from various programs for all project 

types. Under Ms. Calleros direction, the Program Management Team has secured over 

$92 million in competitive grant funds from various funding agencies for the following 

cities: Industry, Temple City, Hawaiian Gardens, Bell Gardens, Montebello, Monrovia, 

Perris, Lynwood, Maywood, and La Mirada. 

EDUCATION  

 

B.S. Business Management, California State Polytechnic University Pomona 

 

A.A. General Studies, Mount San Antonio College 



Ana Marie LeNoue 

Principal / Director 

Ms. Ana Marie LeNoue has over 25 years of experience in municipal services.  She is the 

President and C.E.O. of Avant-Garde.  Ms. LeNoue established the company’s 

foundation in municipal services based on her extensive program management 

experience that includes 17 years as a municipal employee managing various capital 

projects and programs.  She presently directs the company’s Community Outreach and 

Grants program with projects in the Cities of Industry, Montebello, Bell Gardens, La 

Mirada, and Hawaiian Gardens. Mrs. LeNoue directs the Community Outreach team in 

support of various capital projects for clients throughout the southland.  Under her 

direction, Ms. LeNoue ensures proper resource allocation in the research and 

development of grant opportunities, grant applications, and project development for 

various clients.  Her understanding of municipal government and project management 

make her uniquely qualified to identify funding opportunities and project/program 

amenities that complement grant program goals and objectives therefore, 

strengthening the potential success of the grant application. 

 

Ms. LeNoue is a versatile, dynamic, results-oriented leader with a strong track record of 

performance in high-paced and uniquely challenging organizations.  She utilizes keen 

analysis, insights and a team approach to drive organizational improvements and 

implementation of sound practices.  She is a strong organizer, motivator and team player 

with an established record of success in identifying new and emerging organizational 

opportunities.  Highly skilled in developing operational strategies and directing major 

marketing and service related projects from original concept through implementation, 

Ms. LeNoue has superior interpersonal skills, capable of resolving multiple and complex 

issues and motivating staff to peak performance.  She has an excellent understanding of 

the political culture and extensive administrative, operational, fiscal and program 

management experience. 

EDUCATION  

B.S. Business Management, University of Phoenix, 2001 

  



Support Staff: 

 

To carry out the activities proposed, the key staff, inclusive of Ms. LeNoue and Ms. 

Calleros, will be supported by Mr. Beckman, Ms. Ramirez, Mr. Montoya, Ms. LeNoue and 

Mr. Joaquin.  Based on the needs and time commitment/schedule, we will assign the 

proper personnel on a per project/assignment basis.  

 

Mr. Robert Beckman has over nine years of municipal government grant writing 

experience and has been very successful in identifying, defining, and developing funding 

sources to support planned for and existing program activities as well as coordinating the 

development, writing and submission of grant proposals to various agencies.  His years of 

municipal experience have provided him with the ability to understand the needs of 

governmental agencies and an in depth knowledge of the governmental process.  

Additionally, this experience has also shaped his approach to grant writing, placing an 

emphasis on the community and obtaining their input and support to ensure the success 

of the project. Mr. Beckman graduated from the University of La Verne with a B.S. in 2006. 

 

Ms. Simona Ramirez has eight years of experience in Program Management. Ms. Ramirez 

expertise is in program development, administration, and community outreach. An 

effective communicator, Ms. Ramirez’s multi-faceted skill set allows her to understand the 

needs of diverse audiences and provide them with practical solutions to problems. Ms. 

Ramirez has experience working with governmental agencies such as the Department 

of Motor Vehicles and the Employment Development Department. Ms. Ramirez has 

valuable knowledge of both state and federal regulations, making her capable to 

perform administrative and managerial duties as a program manager. Ms. Ramirez is a 

graduate of California State University, Los Angeles. She has earned both a Bachelor’s 

and Master’s degree in Political Science.  

 

Mr. Jose Montoya has been with the firm for five years. Mr. Montoya recently earned a 

Juris Doctorate from Whittier College with a concentration in Environmental Law and has 

a B.A. from University of California Riverside, 2010. His responsibilities include Grant Writing, 

Labor Compliance, Project Management Assistance and Community Outreach. He has 

worked in conjunction with the Project Managers of the company and has served as 



liaison to provide support on various projects. He specializes in government funding and 

grant sources with requirements ranging from basic applications and documentation to 

competitive project proposal submittals.  In concert with his grant team mates, Mr. 

Montoya has been instrumental in securing and managing millions of dollars for southern 

California Projects.  He will assist with identifying federal and state fund allocation 

balances, writing grant proposals, assisting in determining eligible projects, providing 

advisement of program requirements and will be available to prepare and administer 

the program as required by the funding agencies.  

 

Mr. Jerome Joaquin has been with the firm over two years.  Mr. Joaquin is a graduate of 

California State Polytechnic University, Pomona with a B.S. Urban and Regional Planning 

in 2010 and has a A.A. in General Studies with an emphasis on Architecture from Glendale 

Community College in 2007.  Mr. Joaquin’s responsibilities include grant researching and 

writing, community outreach support, and labor compliance. He has worked in 

conjunction with the project managers of the company and served as a liaison to 

provide support on various projects.  

 

Ms. Megan LeNoue has been with the firm just over one year, a recent college graduate 

of Saint Mary’s College in California.  Ms. LeNoue lends her extensive research and 

communication skills to the grants team.  Her responsibilities include Grant Research, 

Grant Writing, Labor Compliance, Project Management Assistance and Community 

Outreach. She has worked in conjunction with the Project Managers of the company 

and has served as liaison to provide support on various projects. She will assist with 

identifying potential funding opportunities; assist in the development of grant proposals, 

as well as the packaging and submittal of proposals.  

 



Page 1 
 

2014 
FIRST AMENDMENT  

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Engagement: Plan Checking Services)  

(Parties: City of Cudhay and Transtech Engineering, Inc.) 
 

  THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (the 
“Amendment”) to that certain document entitled “Professional Services Agreement” (the 
“Master Agreement”) executed as of July 31, 2014, by and between the City of Cudahy, a 
municipal corporation (hereinafter, “City”) and Transtech Engineering, Inc. (hereinafter, 
“Consultant”) is made and entered into this ____day of ____________________ 2014.  For the 
purposes of this Agreement, City and Consultant may be referred to collectively by the 
capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to City or Consultant 
interchangeably. 

 
RECITALS 

 
This Amendment is made with the respect to the following facts and purposes: 

 
WHEREAS, On July 31, 2014, the Parties entered into a Professional Service 

Agreement between the City of Cudahy and Transtech Engineering, Inc., for Plan Checking 
Services (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to continue the following additional professional 

services: assist Avant-Garde with the 2015 Call for Projects Fuding Application; and 
 
WHEREAS, Consultant has represented to City that it has the requisite skill and 

experience to safely and competently perform the desired professional services within the 
City; and 

 
WHEREAS, The PARTIES now desire to amend the AGREEMENT to: (1) assist Avant-

Garde in the 2015 Call for Projects Funding Application (2) implement the proposed Scope 
of Work (“WORK”) found in Exhibit “A1” (“Proposal For Technical Assistance to Avant-
Garde For 2015 Call For Project Application Preparation”) and (3) to establish a Not To 
Exceed Amount of $12,500 which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1.  Section ______ (Compensation) of the Master Agreement is hereby amended in part 
by increasing the amount of the Contract Price of Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($24,500) as compensation for the additional Work reflected in Exhibit “A1”.   

2.  Attachment “A” (“Scope Of Work”) of the Master Agreement is hereby amended to 
include the Scope of Work and Fee Proposal For Professional Consultant Services For Plan 



Page 2 
 

Checking Services found in Exhibit “A1” (“Proposal For Technical Assistance to Avant-
Garde For 2015 Call For Project Application Preparation”). 

3. Except as otherwise set forth in this Amendment, the Master Agreement shall 
remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect. This Amendment together with the 
Master Agreement shall constitute the entire, complete, final, and exclusive expression of 
the Parties with respect to the matters addressed in both documents. 

4. The provisions of this Amendment shall be deemed a part of the Master Agreement 
and except as otherwise provided under this Amendment, the Master Agreement and all 
provisions contained therein shall remain binding and enforceable. In the event of any 
conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the provisions of 
the Master Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall control, but only in so far as 
such provisions conflict with the Master Agreement and no further. 

5. This Amendment shall be executed in three counterparts, with one such fully 
executed counterpart returned to Consultant upon execution. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment to the Master 
Agreement to be executed on the day and year first appearing above. 

 
CITY OF CUDAHY:    TRANSTECH ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
By:_____________________________________ By:       
      Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date: ____________________________  Date:       
    
 
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By:_____________________________________  
       Isabel Birrueta, City Attorney 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(Master Agreement) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















































Page 4 
 

EXHIBIT “A1” 
(Proposal/Revised Scope of Work) 



 

 

13367 Benson Avenue   |   Chino CA 91710   |   T 909 595 8599   |   F 909 590 8599   |   www.transtech.org 

www.transtech.org 

855.595.2495 (toll-free) 

ISO 9001:2008 Certified 

 

 

 

November 11, 2014 

 

 

Mr. Jose Pulido, City Manager 

City of Cudahy  

5220 Santa Ana Street  

Cudahy, CA 90201 

 

Subject:   PROPOSAL FOR TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO AVANT-GARDE FOR 2015 CALL FOR 

PROJECT APPLICATION PREPARATION 

 

Dear Mr. Pulido, 

 

Transtech is pleased to submit this proposal for technical assistance to Avant-Garde for the 2015 

Call for Projects Funding Application (Call) sponsored by MTA.  

 

Transtech will provide the following technical assistance for the pedestrian modal application: 

1. Length of project. 

2. Length of cross sections. 

3. Summary of existing conditions and proposed features. 

4. Anticipated Project life. 

5. Potential environmental issues (none anticipated) and type of anticipated environmental 

processing required for this project. 

6. Input on Item no. 7 specifically how is the project to be compatible with and enhance the 

surrounding community. 

7. Identify/quantify the project areas existing level of pedestrian activity and the projected 

activities levels resulting from the proposed improvement- provide methodology used in 

determining estimates. 

8. Estimate/quantify the number of automobile trips that this project will replace. Provide 

methodology used in determining estimate.  

9. Conceptual – demonstrating proposed improvements. 

10. Cost Breakdown for Construction Items as indicated in the cost effectiveness of the Mode.  

11. Assistance in completing the impact checklist. 

12. Labeled project site photos. 

 

Completion of the items noted above in the application will satisfy the requirements of a PSRE as 

indicated on Page 152 of the application package. 

http://www.transtech.org/


November 11, 2014 

Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO AVANT-GARDE FOR 2015 CALL FOR PROJECT APPLICATION 
PREPARATION 

 Page 2 
 

 

PROPOSAL 

 

Our proposed fee is $12,500. 

 

Transtech has worked with Avant-Garde in previous applications and provided technical support. 

 

Following is a listing of various grant programs that our firm has been involved.   
 

Agency Grant Program Project Amount: 

City of Alhambra MTA Call for Projects 2012 and 

previous cycles 

Valley Boulevard, Fremont $3,000,000 

 Safe Routes to School Commonwealth Boulevard $250,000 

 Safe Routes to School Alhambra High School $320,000 

 Highway Safety Improvement Valley Boulevard $500,000 

 AQMD/CMAQ CNG Refueling $300,000 

 Metro Mini Call for Projects Bus Purchases $400,000 

 Energy CEC LED Signal Upgrade $950,000 

    

City of Arcadia Metro Call for Projects Huntington Drive $1,010,000 

    

City of Azusa Metro Call for Projects Azusa Transit Center $4,200,000 

 Metro Call for Projects Azusa Avenue $800,000 

    

City of Baldwin Park Metro Mini Call for Projects Bus Purchase $400,000 

 Metro Call for Projects Transit Center $4,200,000 

 Metro Call for Projects TDM Project $300,000 

 Metro Call for Projects Baldwin Bikeway $400,000 

 Metro Call for Projects Metrolink Overpass $1,100,000 

    

City of Bellflower Safe Routes to School Palm/Clark $320,000 

 Safe Routes to School Eucalyptus $430,000 

    

City of Carson Metro Call for Projects Avalon Boulevard $6,700,000 

    

City of Commerce MTA Call for Projects 2012 and 

previous cycles 

Highway Safety Improvement 

 

Garfield/Washington 

1,000,000 

$503,400 

 Highway Safety Improvement Washington Boulevard $254,700 

 Metro Call for Projects Garfield/Washington $538,000 

    

City of Hermosa Beach Highway Safety Improvement Valley School $108,360 

    

City of Inglewood Safe Routes to School Ivy Sidewalk $230,000 

 Safe Routes to School La Tijera Elementary School $276,000 

 Safe Routes to School Cable Way $239,470 

 Metro Call for Projects La Brea “S” Curve $6,300,000 



November 11, 2014 

Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO AVANT-GARDE FOR 2015 CALL FOR PROJECT APPLICATION 
PREPARATION 

 Page 3 
 

 

PROPOSAL 

 Metro Call for Projects Century Boulevard $3,200,000 

 Metro Call for Projects Florence Avenue $2,400,000 

 Highway Safety Improvement Crenshaw Boulevard $245,700 

 Highway Safety Improvement Manchester Boulevard $180,000 

 Energy CEC Street Lighting $650,000 

    

City of Inglewood TIGER Century Boulevard Multimodal 

Corridor Project  

$13,000,000 

 

    

City of Inglewood TIGER La Cienega Boulevard Multimodal 

Planning Study 

$1,000,000 

    

City of Lawndale Metro Call for Projects Inglewood/Marine $1,010,000 

 Highway Safety Improvement Marine/Mansel $240,000 

    

City of Pomona Metro Call for Projects SR 71/Mission $3,200,000 

 

 

TIGER, Pomona State Route “71” 

Complete Streets Corridor 

Improvement Plans 

 $1,500,000 

    

City of Redondo Beach Metro Call for Projects Transit Center $3,200,000 

 BOS FTA Discretionary Bus Stop Improvements $218,000 

 BOS ARRA ADA Improvements $200,000 

    

City of Rosemead Safe Routes to School Citywide Improvements $450,000 

 Highway Safety Improvement Rosemead Boulevard (SR 19) $430,000 

 Highway Safety Improvement Garvey Boulevard $339,500 

    

City of Temple City HSIP, Cycle 6 Safety Improvements $1,200,000 

 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  

 

Sincerely,  

Melissa Demirci  
 Melissa Demirci, Grants Coordinator / Associate Civil Engineer 
melissa.demirci@transtech.org; P: 909-595-8599 ext. 134; C: 714-598-8896 

mailto:melissa.demirci@transtech.org


 
Page 1 

 

 
2014 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Engagement: Professional Consultant Services and Grant Writing) 

(Parties: City of Cudahy and Avant Garde) 
     

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into this ___day of __December  2014_  (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by 
and between the CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and AVANT 
GARDE (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and 
CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The 
capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 

WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following 
specialized services: Professional consultant services and grant writing for the 
preparation and submittal of three grant applications for citywide improvement through the 
2015 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Call For Projects; and 
  

WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the 
specialized services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and 
  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set 
forth under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby  
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Scope of Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to 
CITY all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental 
and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete the 
services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the purposes of this 



 
Page 2 

 

Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the Scope of 
Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized term “Work.”    
 

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of one year from commencing from 
________________, 2014, unless CITY issues written notice of its intent not to 
authorize an additional extension term(s).   Nothing in this Section shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any 
time for convenience or for cause. 
 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which has 
been attached as part of the Contract  (hereinafter, the “Approved Rate 
Schedule”).     
 

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the budgeted 
aggregate sum of Twenty Four Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Dollars 
($24,520) (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such added 
expenditure is first approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the  City 
Manager and the Finance Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are 
projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of the Term 
or any single extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-
Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation 
terms of this Agreement.  

 
1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar 

month, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the 
services and tasks performed during the recently concluded calendar month, 
including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a 
function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice shall indicate 
the number of hours worked in the recently concluded calendar month, the persons 
responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such 
services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service 
performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) calendar 
days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any 
disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of 
receipt of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the 
invoice.  CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions 
from payments made to CONSULTANT.  

 
1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate 

records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of 



 
Page 3 

 

five (5) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have 
the right to access and examine such records, without charge, during normal 
business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such records, to make 
transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, 
and activities.  

 
1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT 
shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, records and 
other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of 
this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the 
reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work performed up to the time of 
cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any damages, costs or additional 
expenses which CITY may incur as a result of CONSULTANT’s cessation or 
abandonment. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and 
Michael Allen (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be 
the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall 
act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT 
shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than the CITY 
Representatives or their designee. 
 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates 
LISSETTE CALLEROS, Company Principal/Project Manager to act as its 
representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT 
Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full authority to 
represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this 
Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and 
direct the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be 
responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and 
for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  
Notice to the CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to 
CONSULTANT.  
 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 
Representatives at all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall 
be subject to inspection and approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 



 
Page 4 

 

 
2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 

represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 
highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 
 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory 
to the CITY; 
 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government 
Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 
81000 et seq.); 

 
D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 

performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

 
F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally 
required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this 
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and 
made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 
 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement 
from CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions 
caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set 
forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such 
effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be 
commenced immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be 
completed within seven (7) calendars days from the date of discovery or 
such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY Representatives 
in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge 
and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT 
or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency 
or delay in performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 
agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of 



 
Page 5 

 

CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the representation that 
CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT 

are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY 
has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will 
perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this 
interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or 
indirectly or by operation of law, this Agreement or the performance of any of 
CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any 
attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis and 
not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of 
CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and 
control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such 
personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social 
Security and Medicare payments and the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible 
for all reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but 
not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment 
insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and the like. 
 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by 
the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in 
a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 
subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT and 
shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 



 
Page 6 

 

   
2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 

compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with all 
applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 
 

2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand 
and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by 
CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors 
and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  
CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions 
of its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. 
CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT shall have 
no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, nor to incur any 
obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by 
contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY 
in writing. 

 
III. 

INSURANCE 
 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 
polices of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under 
this Article. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance 
coverage, at its own expense: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and 

maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad 
as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage 
(occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have 
minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations, products and 
completed operations, and contractual liability. 
 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 



 
Page 7 

 

Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  
 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide 
legal defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or 
damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any 
worker employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of 
carrying out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 
 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s 
profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.   

   
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the 

Automobile Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and 
CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers 
as additional insureds.  
 

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from 
insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured 
by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than BBB 
according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the CITY 
Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set forth in 
this Section.   
 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All polices of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 



 
Page 8 

 

employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation 
against CITY.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 

and agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial 
well-being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall furnish 
CITY with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the 
coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole and 
absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and 
approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of 
any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall 
also provide CITY with certified copies of all required insurance policies and 
endorsements.   

 
IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other 
cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. 
Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties 
to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest 
protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would 
not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to 
indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of work hereunder or its failure 
to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss 
or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 
CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 



 
Page 9 

 

arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

 
4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 

provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and 
CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

  
4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 

identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or 
any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees 
to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s 
elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from 
and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due 
to death or injury to any person and injury to any property resulting from any 
alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or 
omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees 
incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

 
4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty 

to indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or 
remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 

time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
five (5) calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.   Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services  and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination.   CONSULTANT may 
not terminate this Agreement except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, 



 
Page 10 

 

below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, CITY may require 
CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, as 
defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT 
shall be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar 
days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on 
the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as 
provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task 
set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform 
any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an 
event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events 
of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to 
the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which 
shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to 
cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be 
cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth under 
Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within 
the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such 
cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the 
applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the 

following time periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 
for any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s 
employees or agents with any information and/or written reports, 
documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is obligated to 
provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or agents under this 
Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to 
cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  
The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end of 
the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 



 
Page 11 

 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 
Notice for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to 
the expiration of the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit 
a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon 
a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the 14-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, 
CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure 
of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty 
(30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure period. 

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any 
duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure 
to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or 
task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but 
shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform any of the services or tasks called for under the Scope of Services;  
(ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under this 
Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a 
reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) 
the initiation of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, 
reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether 
voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or 
observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by 
CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous 
in any material respect. 

 
C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within 

forty-five (45) calendar days of  CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default 
Notice, unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 
45-day cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY 
may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default 
upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of 
Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 
45-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default 
dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to 
CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by 
CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 



 
Page 12 

 

(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension 
Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, 
or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights 

and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation 
of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law 
or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, 
in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the 
following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time 
of performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the 

terms of the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s 
breach of the Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or 

remedy.  
 

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and 
expenses that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s 
exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 

remedy shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the 
recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

 



 
Page 13 

 

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 
shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or 
provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 
or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, 
analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, 
notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, 
data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by 
or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, 
at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate 
and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 
embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all 
subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the 
same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to 
Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  

 
6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 

developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT 
without prior written consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure 
is legally required. Upon request, all CITY data shall be returned to CITY upon the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s 
name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity pertaining to the Work in any 
magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar 
medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 



 
Page 14 

 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 
CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or 
has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or 
tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., 
Section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government Code 
Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the 
respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
AVANT-GARDE 
3670 W. Temple Ave. #278 
Pomona,  CA  91768 
Attn: Lissett Calleros 
Phone: (909) 979-6586 
Fax:  (909) 979-6580 
Email: lcalleros@agi.com.co 

 City of Cudahy 
Community Development Division 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  Michael Allen 
Phone:  (323) 773-5143 
Fax:  (323) 771-2072 

 
Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, 
forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class 
postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 

Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 
subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 
 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to 
employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 
 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 



 
Page 15 

 

working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, CITY shall 
have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this 
Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his or her 
service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision 
of this Agreement. 
 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County 
Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that 
all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without 
exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in the City of Los 
Angeles, California. 
 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, 
either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such 
action. 
 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 
 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 
 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be 
void and invalid. 



 
Page 16 

 

 
6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or 
describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 
 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, 
whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to 
the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, representations or other 
agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not embodied 
herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the 
Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 
 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall 
be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 
6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 17 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
By:______________________________ 
       Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
      
 
 

 AVANT-GARDE 
 
By:______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________  
        
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 18 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(SCOPE OF SERVICES) 



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

STAFF REPORT 
!
Date:   December 2, 2014 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members


From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director

	 	 By: Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director

	 	       Isabel Birrueta, Assistant City Attorney 

Subject: Professional Services Agreement with Vasquez & Company LLP for Audit 
	 	 Services For Fiscal Years (FYs) 2013-2014, 2014-2015, and 2015-2016 

RECOMMENDATION 

The City Council is requested to approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Vasquez & 
Company LLP for audit and other services for a three year term to audit FYs 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 
and 2015-2016 with an option for two one-year extensions.  


!
BACKGROUND 

1. Between 2000 to 2011 Vasquez & Company LLP ("Vasquez") provided audit services to the City 
of Cudahy. 


2. The City of Cudahy is in a unique position that requires coordination of the auditors of the City 
of Cudahy and the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (EDC). The City of Cudahy's FY 
2012-2013 Financial Statements included a disclaimer of opinion.  One of the primary reasons 
given for the disclaimer was that a Component Unit of the City, the EDC, a non-profit 
corporation, was not included in the financial statements as required by Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 61. 


3. In October 2014 Vasquez & Company LLP was appointed by the board of directors of the EDC 
to perform the initial audit of the EDC through the period ended December 31, 2013. Due to the 
close relationship between the City and the EDC and the requirement of GASB to include the 
EDC in the financial statements of the City it makes the most sense to utilize the same auditor 
as the EDC.


�  of 31
Staff Report 
12/2/2014

Item Number

10E



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

4. On September 19, 2014 the Finance Director met with Vasquez & Company LLP to discuss the 
scope of audit for the City of Cudahy and its component units.  A proposal was requested to be 
submitted to the City Clerk by October 10, 2014.  


5. A proposal for an audit of the annual financial statements of the City of Cudahy and other 
services for FY 2013-2014 through 2017-2018 was submitted to the City Clerk by October 10, 
2014 with copies of the proposal being provided to the Finance Director and the Deputy 
Purchasing Office.  


6. The proposal was provided on or about October 17, 2014 to a Finance Director and an 
Assistant Finance Director in the South East Los Angeles region for their review and input on the 
qualifications and pricing. 


7. The proposal was provided to two additional individual who reviewed and provided an 
evaluation of the proposal on or about October 23, 2014.


8. In their proposal Vasquez & Company LLP provided five references in their proposal and those 
references were contacted on November 4-5, 2014.


9. The Cudahy Municipal Code only expressly mentions contracting for professional services in 
Section 3.16.110.  In the section it expressly exempts professional services from the bidding 
procedures.  In pertinent part the section states "Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, 
purchases and contracts for supplies, services (other than professional services), and 
equipment and the sale of personal property of estimated value greater than $5,000 shall be by 
written contract with the lowest or highest responsible bidder, as the case may be, pursuant to 
the following procedure..."


10. Under Government Code Section 53060 public agencies can exercise their authority to contract 
for professional services without a formal bid/proposal process.  Cudahy has expressly carved 
out professional services from a bid/proposal process.  Government Code section 53060 is the 
statutory authority permitting the City to provide such a carve out.  It is important to note, that 
while agencies are not required to comply with a formal bid process or RFP process, it is not 
unusual for a city to use some proposal process in order to get a variety of proposals to 
determine if they are getting the best rate for the city.  


!
ANALYSIS 

Vasquez prior work relationship with the City gives them a competitive advantage that other vendors 
cannot offer. Vasquez has a presence in the South East Los Angeles region and either currently or in 
the past have audited the cities of Cudahy, Huntington Park, Montebello, Norwalk, Pico Rivera, 
South Gate, and Vernon.  Vasquez has submitted a proposal that demonstrates the qualifications of 
the firm, the project manager and key personnel.  Their proposal demonstrated their understanding 
of the project and provided an approach to accomplish the project. The depth of their experience 
indicates that they will be able to address the issues that are unique to local governments and have 
the resources to help the City achieve success in moving the City forward with financial statements 
that are fairly presented.  Their approach will include an evaluation of the City's internal controls and 
recommendations for improvements to satisfy the findings and recommendations provided by the 
outside entities.  


�  of 32
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

The price of the annual audit was determined to be within the parameters of a City the size of the 
Cudahy and risk factors for the City.  The initial cost of the audit firm meeting professional standards 
to document the opening fund balance appears fair since no reliance can be placed on opening 
balances. Their references verified the claim that Vasquez & Company LLP is competent to conduct 
an annual audit and single audit and meet deadlines.  


!
CONCLUSION 

Since time is of the essence, a single CPA firm was contacted to submit a proposal for audit 
services  for the City.  Additionally, there was not sufficient time for the contract sub-committee 
members Mayor Garcia and Councilmember Sanchez to convene and review the related 
documents.  It has been determined by a review of the proposer's qualifications and verification of 
references that the firm of Vasquez & Company LLP is qualified to perform the annual audit of the 
City of Cudahy.  

The planning/interim phase of the annual audit will be conducted December 2014 to January 2015.  
The final fieldwork for the audit will be concluded in February 2015 with a draft of the financial 
statements being presented to the City for review prior to February 28, 2015.  It is anticipated that 
the report will be reviewed and finalized prior to the March 31, 2015 deadline. If a formal request for 
proposals was performed the selection of the audit firm and completion of the audit would be after 
March 31, 2014.  Accordingly, the deadline would be missed for annual financial statements to be 
submitted to the California State Controller's Office and the Federal Clearing House when a Single 
Audit is performed.  The proposal submitted was for three fiscal years beginning with FY 2013-2014 
with two one-year options.  The proposal included a cost of living each year of 2.8%. The City 
negotiated the rate increase down to 2%.


!
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The total cost for audit and other services for the FYs 2013-14, 2014-15, and 2015-16 would be 
$205,733.  The General Fund's share of the cost would be $151,786 with the remaining $53,947 
being paid for by Special Revenue Funds and the Successor Agency.

The funding for the annual audit and other services for Fiscal Year 2013-14 would be as follows:

	 	 	 	 FY 13-14

General Fund	 	 	 $57,889

Successor Agency	 	 $10,000

Special Revenue Funds	 $  9,940

Total	 	 	 	 $77,829

!
!
!
!

�  of 33
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

As part of the Mid-Year Budget review the audit fees for the General Fund and Special Revenue 
Funds will be amended to reflect the negotiation price of the audit and other services.


ATTACHMENTS 

A. 1st Amendment to Professional Services Agreement (includes Exhibit A-Master Agreement)

B. Exhit B - Audit Services Planning Calendar

C. Vasquez and Company Proposal

�  of 34
Staff Report 
12/2/2014















































18 

 

 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 [AUDIT SERVICES PLANNING CALENDAR] 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Due date for Proposals October 10, 2014 
 

City Council Award of Contract November 18, 2014 
 

Interim Audit December 2014/January 2015 
 
 
 

CAFR and Single Audit 
 

Year End Field Work Begins January 8, 2015 
 

Draft Financials Submitted to City February 28, 2015 
 

Final reports submitted to City March 31, 2015 
 
 



                                                                                                                                        
Members AICPA Division of Firms Center for Public Company Audit Firms ♦ Associate member Government Finance Officers Association 
Member of Association of Local Government Auditors ♦ Member of the California Special Districts Association 

 
 

PROPOSAL FOR AUDIT SERVICES (REVISED)       
        

Submitted by: 
Roger A. Martinez, CPA 

801 S. Grand Avenue 
Suite 400 

Los Angeles, CA 90017-4646 
Tel: 213-873-1703 

Fax: 213-873-1777 
www.vasquezcpa.com 

Date: 11/19/2014 
 

http://www.vasquezcpa.com/


 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
TRANSMITTAL LETTER ........................................................................................................... 1 

INDEPENDENCE ...................................................................................................................... 3 

LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA ................................................................................ 4 

FIRM’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE ........................................................................ 5 

PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE ..................15 

SIMILAR ENGAGEMENTS WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES.....................................29 

SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH .................................................................................................31 

COST PROPOSAL ...................................................................................................................51 

 

 



 

1 
 

TRANSMITTAL LETTER 
October 9, 2014 
 
Mr. Jose Pulido 
City Manager 
City of Cudahy 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
 
RE: Request for Proposal for Audit Services 

Vasquez & Company LLP (Vasquez) appreciates the opportunity to respond to the City of Cudahy’s (City) 
request for proposal to audit its financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. Our direct 
experience as a former auditor of the City and our hands-on commitment to superior service, integrity and 
knowledge make us particularly qualified to provide the professional services requested. 

Experienced Leaders: The team to be assigned to the City engagement will be led by two partners both 
of whom were previously partners with KPMG. Margaret McBride is a former KPMG partner-in-charge of 
government advisory services to the Western Region and Roger Martinez is a former KPMG national 
office practice partner who served as a quality technical reviewer of governments at a national level.   

Largest Government Practice in Los Angeles County: The Vasquez Government Industry Group is 
the largest such group of any accounting firm in Los Angeles County. Our government expertise includes 
audit and advisory services to many local municipalities in Los Angeles County including Carson, El 
Monte, Huntington Park, Lynwood, Montebello and Norwalk among others. 

Anticipating your needs: Our professionals, with extensive experience in government, will bring an 
unbiased, fresh perspective to the City’s systems, operations and practices.  Our experience will allow us 
to assess risk and compare existing policies and procedures to those used by other efficient, reputable 
municipalities. We will focus on critical areas such as separation of funds, compliance with 
program/federal/and state requirements), safeguarding of assets and authorized expenditure of 
resources.  Our observations and suggestions for improvement, where applicable, will be shared with 
management on a timely basis in order that corrective action can be implemented expeditiously. 

Communication with the City:  The value of a talented, knowledgeable and experienced engagement 
team is directly dependent on the City’s access to and interaction with the team members. Our 
established practice, which is also our plan for the City’s audit, is to hold regular scheduled status 
meetings with partner, manager and in-charge in attendance.  These meetings include detailed agendas, 
meaningful status reports and active participation by the Vasquez team in presenting the audit results, 
responding to City observations and questions, and developing effective solutions to identified 
challenges. These meetings are supplemented by regular ongoing less formal communication and the 
availability of all team members, including the engagement partner and quality control partner, on a year-
around basis.  

Addressing critical accounting matters: As your accounting and business advisor, we embrace a 
forward-thinking approach on upcoming accounting pronouncements and will work with the City to 
facilitate timely implementation. We provide guidance and training to your personnel on the 
implementation of new GASB and SAS requirements and specifics of Federal and State of California 
regulations as they pertain to local government accounting early so that City personnel will be able to 
provide the necessary information that will allow for an efficient and cost effective audit. 

 

 



 

2 
 

Team continuity: Beyond partner leadership and support, an audit is only as good as the people doing 
the bulk of the work on a day-to-day basis. We are committed to providing a staff resource pool that 
embodies the attributes that you expect of your auditor, including technical expertise and softer skills such 
as respect, empathy, and timely response to questions. Each team member that we have allocated to 
serve the City brings relevant experience and receives industry training through our Continuing 
Professional Education program. We are committed to maintaining the engagement continuity you 
require, and we can back this up with our impressive staff retention rate of 96% for the calendar year 
ended December 31, 2013. However, in the event some of our staff leaves the firm for other career 
opportunities, you can be assured that through our industry training, we have the resources to provide 
you an appropriate replacement. 

Timeliness: At Vasquez we understand and appreciate the importance of adhering to agreed-upon 
timelines and meeting deadlines.  We recognize that you must meet the reporting requirements of the 
federal and state governments, as well as those of your Governing Board.  Therefore, we structure our 
audit approach to include year around involvement which allows us to recognize issues early, plan for the 
orderly completion of our work and avoid end-of-the-audit surprises.  

Providing an effective and efficient audit: Audit quality is fundamental to our firm. Our risk-based 
approach, our high caliber management team and experienced staff ensure that critical issues are not 
overlooked but instead are promptly identified, communicated to you and resolved to the City’s 
satisfaction. This proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer for a minimum of not less than 180 days from the 
submission date. 

We thank you for this opportunity to present our firm’s professional qualifications to the City. We trust that 
you will find Vasquez uniquely qualified to provide the City with professional auditing services. Should you 
have any questions or desire further assistance, please contact me at the information below. 

VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 

 
Roger A. Martinez, CPA 
Partner 
801 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 400 
Los Angeles, CA 90017-4646 
t) 213-873-1703 
f) 213-873-1777 
e) rmartinez@vasquezcpa.com



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  3             
 

   
 

INDEPENDENCE 
 

Vasquez meets the independence requirements of the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the Government Auditing Standards, 2011 revision, published by the United 
States General Accounting Office (“Yellow Book”) as it relates to the City and its component units. 

It is our profession’s nature to be objective and unbiased.  People depend on the opinions of Certified 
Public Accountants and look upon their reports as fair and accurate representations. The nature of our 
work is detailed and analytical, yet highly cognizant of the overall perspective.  It is also one of our 
professional tenets to be independent and impartial in expressing our opinions. We have often been 
placed in the position of being the bearer of unpleasant news in situations of non-compliance. It is our 
strict policy to be straightforward and impartial whether the news is favorable or unfavorable. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
Vasquez & Company LLP has had no professional relationships involving the City or any of its component 
units/agencies, for the past five (5) years.  We further covenant that in the performance of this work, no 
subcontractor persons having such an interest shall be employed.  We will provide written notice to the 
City of any professional relationships entered into during the period of this agreement. 
 
Independence Policies and Monitoring Programs 

One of the primary objectives of our system of quality control is to provide reasonable assurance that our 
firms and personnel comply with relevant ethical requirements when discharging professional 
responsibilities. Relevant ethical requirements include independence, integrity and objectivity.  

Our firms satisfy this objective by establishing and maintaining policies and enforcing specific procedures 
relative to the following:  

• Personnel adherence to relevant ethical requirements such as those in regulations, 
interpretations and rules of the AICPA, Securities and Exchange Commission, Department of 
Labor, Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, U.S. Government Accountability Office, 
state CPA societies, state boards of accountancy, state statutes and any other applicable 
regulators. 

• Communicating independence requirements to firm personnel and, where applicable, others 
subject to them.  

• Identifying and evaluating possible threats to independence and objectivity, including the 
familiarity threat that may be created by using the same senior personnel on an audit or attest 
engagement over a long period of time, and to take appropriate action to eliminate those 
threats or reduce them to an acceptable level by applying safeguards. 

• Withdrawing from engagements if effective safeguards to reduce threats to independence to 
an acceptable level cannot be applied.  

• Written confirmation, at least annually, of compliance with policies and procedures on 
independence from all firm personnel required to be independent by relevant requirements. 

• Confirming the independence of another firm or firm personnel in associated member firms 
who perform part of an engagement. 

• Rotating personnel for audit or attest engagements where regulatory or other authorities 
require such rotation after a specified period. 

• Advising acquired practice units of our policies related to independence, integrity and 
objectivity. 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  4             
 

   
 

LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA 
 

Vasquez and all assigned key professional staff are properly licensed to conduct public accounting in 
California.  Furthermore, Vasquez holds valid business permits and other documents as required by the 
City, County, State, and other governmental and/or regulatory bodies to legally engage in and perform the 
services requested. We further assure that management-level engagement team members are properly 
licensed Certified Public Accountants in California. Vasquez certifies that upon notification, it will inform 
the City of any suspension, termination, lapse, non-renewals, or restrictions of its licenses, certificates, or 
other required documents. 

 
 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  5             
 

   
 

FIRM’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 
 
Vasquez & Company LLP is a full service Certified Public Accounting firm comprised of 72 professionals 
and administrative staff.  Founded in 1967, the Firm has over 40 years’ experience in performing financial 
and compliance audits for all types of governmental entities, nonprofit organizations, privately held and 
publicly traded companies. As a local firm, we are able to offer timely, personalized attention. Our 
professionals deliver innovative yet practical solutions that help clients gain competitive advantage.  The 
following represents a partial list of benefits that would accrue to the City as a client of the firm: 

• Specialty and expertise in the government sector 

• Knowledge of  Government “best practices” 

• Extensive partner involvement 

• Keeping up with current trends 

• Routine consultation 

• Cutting-edge technology utilized to minimize audits costs to you 

• Quality assurance 
 
OUR STRATEGIES TO ADDRESS YOUR NEEDS 
Our approach to your audit will take into account the following strategies outlined below and described in 
more detail in the sections to follow: 

• Communication throughout the year 

• Advanced planning of the audit process to ensure there are no surprises 

• Detailed examination of your internal controls 

• Well planned and executed audit fieldwork 

• Full understanding of local government issues 

• Extensive quality control procedures 

As a client of Vasquez you will have unlimited access to the many resources our firm has to offer. Your 
complete client service team is available to consult with the City throughout the year, whenever questions 
or issues arise.  Day-to-day contact between the staff at the City and Vasquez ensures that the audit is 
efficient, focused appropriately on risk areas, and functioning to keep management well informed. 
 
PERSONNEL RESOURCES 
The Vasquez staff is comprised of 72 professionals and administrative staff as follows: 

 
Partners 9 
Directors 2 
Managers 6 
Supervisors 11 
Senior Auditors 18 
Staff Auditors 22 
Professionals   68 
Administrators 4 
Total 72 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services               6  
 

   
 

GOVERNMENT PRACTICE GROUP 
Vasquez has been providing professional services to governmental entities for over 40 years.  Our government practice includes local 
municipalities, utilities including water districts, K-12 local education agencies, community college districts, transportation authorities, joint powers 
authorities and other special districts.  For the City engagement the number of professionals on a full-time basis will be four (4).  Our Government 
Practice Group is structured as follows: 

 

 

Christine Lim, CPA 
Manager 

Marilen Santos, CPA 
Senior Auditor 

Marialyn Salvador, CPA 
Manager 

Isidro Conde, CPA 
Manager 

Cynthia Villamin, CPA 
Supervisor 

Usman Ilyas, CPA 
Manager 

Marcy Caragan, CPA, CISA 
Supervisor 

Carmen Vallarta, CPA 
Senior Auditor 

Dennis Viray 
Senior Auditor 

Vivien Chang, CPA 
Senior Auditor 

Jack Bautista, CPA 
Senior Auditor 

Ryan King 
Staff Auditor 

Margaret McBride, CPA 
Government Practice Leader 

Roger Martinez, CPA 
Assurance Partner 

Mark Siegfried, CPA 
Manager 

Kelly Arteaga 
Staff Auditor 

Gerardo Gonzalez 
Staff Auditor 

Oscar Chacon, CISA 
IT Partner 

Linda Narciso, CPA 
Director 

Arlene Cembrano, CPA 
Director 

Phil Padua, CPA, CFE, CIA 
Supervisor 

Arlene Pingul 
Supervisor 

Dorrett Lambey 
Supervisor 

Ethan Quiambao 
Senior Auditor 

Louella Sugui 
Senior Auditor 

Barbara Stutz 
Senior Auditor 

Sophia Verdida 
Senior Auditor 

Nympha Magkamit 
Senior Auditor 

Steven Teng 
Staff Auditor 

Alejandro Cuevas 
Staff Auditor 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  7             
 

   
 

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (GFOA)   

Margaret McBride, Vasquez Government Practice Leader has served as a reviewer for the GFOA’s 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting program. In working with our clients in an 
audit engagement, when we review the CAFR in connection with the issuance of our audit opinion, we 
often bring in our subject matter specialists to assist with technical questions and offer a “cold review” as 
to “what would the review committee say” about a particular position or issue.  We often begin our review 
by analyzing the GFOA’s prior year comments to insure that the City has been able to correct and 
implement.  We also utilize the GFOA’s preparation checklist as our review checklist to ensure that the 
CAFR has met all of the requirements and incorporate any additional recommendations into our review 
comments provided to the City to provide recommendation and assistance to insure that the Certificate 
can be maintained. 

We support the City’s goal to have the CAFR completed and issued to meet the statutory deadline to 
obtain the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. To accomplish this, 
Vasquez will: 

• Review the closing process with the City, including required materials from all City agencies and 
outside providers 

• Develop a timeline with critical milestones to measure our collective process 
• Seek prompt approval of the audit plan and scope from the Audit Committee 
• Develop dual tests of internal controls and compliance 
• Implement interim fieldwork testing as soon as possible 
• Provide training in new GASB and SAS standards to identify potential issues early 
• Coordinate weekly status calls with the team leaders and City management.  

 
GOVERNMENT CLIENTS 

The Vasquez team has performed numerous audits of governmental organizations subject to financial 
and compliance audits.  These audits were performed in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States, Government Auditing Standards, OMB Circular A-133 and its Compliance 
Supplement (when applicable), and the Office of the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements and 
Reporting Guidelines for California Special Districts (when applicable).  Below is a list of governments 
served by members of the Vasquez team: 

Government 
Type  Financial 

Audit 
A-133 
Audit 

Counties County of Los Angeles  x x 

County of San Diego x x 

County of Riverside x x 

County of Orange x x 

Cities City of Anaheim x x 

City of Baldwin Park x x 

City of Pasadena x x 

City of San Diego x x 

City of Riverside x x 

City of Santa Ana x x 

City of Huntington Beach x x 

City of Orange x x 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  8             
 

   
 

Government 
Type  Financial 

Audit 
A-133 
Audit 

City of Carson x x 

City Corona x x 

City of Colton x x 

City of Cudahy x x 

City of El Monte x x 

City of Gardena x x 

City of Hawthorne x x 

City of Huntington Park x x 

City of Montebello x x 

City of Norwalk x x 

City of Ontario   

City of Pico Rivera  x x 

City of La Puente x x 

City of La Verne x  

City of Lynwood x x 

City of San Fernando  x x 

City of South Gate x x 

City of Temple City x x 

City of Vernon x x 

Utilities Central Basin Municipal Water District x x 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California x x 

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District  x x 

Water Replenishment District of Southern California x  

Walnut Valley Water District x  

Valley County Water District  x  

Municipal Water District of Orange County x x 

Riverside Flood Control District x x 

Eastern Municipal Water District x x 

El Toro Water District x  

Garden Grove Public Works, Water Division x  

Pasadena Water & Power x  

Anaheim Public Utilities x x 

Riverside Public Utilities x  

Needles Public Utility Authority x  

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power x x 

San Gabriel Basin Water Company  x 

Transportation Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority 

x  

Foothill Transit x x 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  9             
 

   
 

Government 
Type  Financial 

Audit 
A-133 
Audit 

OMNITRANS – San Bernardino County x  

Monterey-Salinas Transit x  

Sun Tran – Tucson, Arizona x  

Antelope Valley Transit Authority x  

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority x  

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System x x 

San Diego Metropolitan Transportation Development 
Board 

x  

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority x x 

Oakland International Airport x x 

Orange County Transportation Authority x x 

McCarran International Airport x x 

Phoenix Sky Harbor International Airport x x 

City of Santa Monica Big Blue Bus x  

Joint Powers 
Authorities 

Alameda Corridor East Construction Authority x x 

San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments x  

Southern California Association of Governments x x 

Harbor 
Activities 

Port of Los Angeles x  

Port of San Diego x  
 
GASB 

Our firm encourages early adoption of all applicable Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
statements. Some of these standards have been monumental in establishing new financial reporting 
requirements for state and local governments throughout the United States, and restructured much of the 
information that had been presented in the past. In prior years, the major focus has been Statement No. 
34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments; Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and 
analysis- for public colleges and universities. Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; Statement No. 38, 
Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures and GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and 
Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements.  In 
addition, the challenges posed by Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions have strained educational accounting staff to great 
lengths.   

In the future, the City will face the challenges of implementing standards for the recording of unfunded 
pension and post-employment benefit liabilities.  Our professionals will assist the City in determining the 
impact of these statements on the City's financial statements, developing informative disclosures and 
communicating the significance of these standards to the governing body and the citizenry upon request.   

We take a proactive approach in assisting our clients understand GASB activities from exposure drafts to 
implementation of new standards.  We accomplish this through our collaborations with GASB, GFOA, 
ASBO, AICPA Government Audit Quality Center, and by taking the time to sit down with clients to discuss 
and plan for the impact of new GASB standards. 
 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  10             
 

   
 

OMB Circular A-133 

A large number of our government and nonprofit clients receive federal funds. Our success in effectively 
serving these entities in based in part, on our significant knowledge and experience with U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations.  Our successful audits include those for large complex engagements such as the County 
of Los Angeles Single Audit, with more than $3.5 billion in federal expenditures, the Community 
Development Commission of the County of Los Angeles with over $300 million in federal expenditures 
and Los Angeles Community College District with approximately $200 million of federal funds. 

We are proposing for the City an engagement team with substantial experience in auditing governmental 
entities for both financial audits and compliance audits. Our industry-focused staff has undergone training 
coursed dedicated to governmental accounting, auditing and financial reporting, as well as specialized 
training in the compliance requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and the new OMB Super Circular 
regarding changing Single Audit requirements. A summary of our qualifications is as follows: 

• Vasquez has performed the OMB Circular A-133 Single Audit of the County of Los Angeles 
consisting of $3.5 billion in federal expenditures. 

• We have performed over 250 Single Audits in the past five years. 
• We audit entities with large funding (such as the Community Development Commission of the 

County of Los Angeles consisting of over $300 million in federal expenditures 
• We are familiar with all the funding sources and federal agency guidelines. 
 

Management Letter Comments 
Recent changes to the Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) have made identifying and 
communicating weaknesses in internal controls around reliable financial reporting noted during the course 
of the audit, a presumptive requirement.  Vasquez makes value-added management letter comments a 
high priority.  Our clients have realized many benefits including: improved operational efficiencies, 
security and proactive prevention of potential future audit issues. Value-added recommendations to 
strengthen the administration and internal controls through meaningful management letter comments that 
meet AICPA standards are provided to all our audit clients at no additional cost. 

Our Management Letter Comments are issued in the form of a report and presented as part of the exit 
conference, during the exit conference we will list the current year’s comment(s) and management’s 
response(s); we will also review the prior year’s management comments and advise on the status of the 
implementation of recommendations.  
 
OFFICE LOCATION 

The location of the office from which the work on this engagement will be performed is at 801 S. Grand 
Avenue, Suite 400, Los Angeles, CA 90017.   
 

RANGE OF SERVICES 

Vasquez provides audit, consulting, tax, financial advisory, review and compilation services. Our audit 
services include financial statement audits of companies in private, nonprofit and public sectors.  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  11             
 

   
 

 

 
QUALITY CONTROL 

Vasquez has an extensive quality control program designed to monitor compliance with the audit and 
accounting professional standards and firm policies. Our client service approach requires the active 
involvement of experienced partners and managers in the audit process to make sure that critical issues 
are identified and resolved on a timely basis. In fact, every audit engagement requires the following 
supervisory reviews: 

• In-charge auditor review 

• Comprehensive review by the audit manager 

• Engagement partner review 

• Report review by a designated Yellow Book specialist partner (if applicable) 
 

Quality Control History 

Vasquez is very proud of its record of quality professional service throughout it’s over 40-year history of 
professional service and we state with pride that our firm has: 

• Never had any disciplinary actions filed against it with the California Board of Accountancy or 
any other State regulatory body, 

• Never received a negative desk or field review from any of our clients’ cognizant agencies.  
 
Performance Monitoring and Assessment 

The objective of the engagement performance element of our quality control is to provide reasonable 
assurance that: 

• Engagements are consistently performed in accordance with applicable professional standards 
and regulatory and legal requirements  

• Our firm or engagement partner issues reports that are appropriate in the circumstances 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  12             
 

   
 

Policies and procedures for engagement performance address all phases of the design and execution of 
the engagement, including engagement performance, supervision responsibilities and review 
responsibilities. Policies and procedures require that consultation takes place when appropriate. Also, our 
firm has established criteria against which all engagements are to be evaluated to determine whether an 
engagement quality control review should be performed.  

We satisfy the above objectives by establishing and maintaining the following policies and procedures: 

• Planning for engagements meets professional, regulatory and firm requirements. 

• Qualified engagement team members review work performed by other team members on a timely 
basis. 

• The firm has criteria for determining whether an engagement quality control review should be 
performed; evaluates all engagements against the criteria; performs an engagement quality 
control review for all engagements that meet the criteria; and completes the review before the 
report is released. 

• The firm establishes procedures addressing the nature, timing, extent and documentation of the 
engagement quality control review. 

• The firm establishes criteria for the eligibility of engagement quality control reviewers. 

• The firm requires that consultation take place when appropriate; that sufficient and appropriate 
resources are available to enable appropriate consultation to take place; that all the relevant facts 
known to the engagement team are provided to those consulted; that the nature, scope and 
conclusions of such consultations are documented; and that conclusions resulting from such 
consultations are implemented. 

• Management follow-up procedure internally called “Voice of the Client” to set tone of “how we did” 
and “where can we improve”. 

 
PEER REVIEW REPORT 

Vasquez is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Division of Firms and 
received an unqualified opinion from the AICPA on its peer review, dated July 18, 2013  This review covered 
several government engagements comparable in size and audit scope to the City.  A copy of the peer review 
opinion follows: 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  13             
 

   
 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  14             
 

   
 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  15             
 

   
 

PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF QUALIFICATIONS 
AND EXPERIENCE 
 
 
Vasquez is able to assemble and manage multi-disciplinary teams of highly qualified and experienced 
professionals, drawing upon audit staff resources and the complementary capabilities of technical 
advisory groups.  Based on our many years of experience, we are able to integrate the roles and 
functions of professional, administrative, and supporting staff into a common effort. 
 
PARTNER INVOLVEMENT 

Our structure ensures that senior engagement team members are able to spend time on-site, checking 
the quality of our work, not just verifying we are on target to meet deadlines. Our senior engagement 
team members are responsible for ensuring delivery of quality work. Our senior members will engage in 
regularly scheduled meetings with you to answer questions, provide guidance, and help ensure issues 
are identified and resolved in a timely manner. With our partners on site, informal meetings can more 
readily occur, and issues get resolved in front of your desk rather than behind ours. 

Vasquez has built its reputation on close partner involvement and maintaining strong client 
relationships. The ultimate success of our client relationships is largely attributable to one key component 
– our people. We have structured our engagement team with extensive partner involvement.  You will find 
our average partner-to-staff leverage ratio is higher than most other firms. Our budgeted hours include 
higher partner involvement than what you may have experienced in years past.  

 
 
CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION PROGRAM 

To ensure that our professional staff remains up to date on the latest audit and accounting developments, 
and to meet the requirements for maintaining active licensure in good standing, we see to it that our 
professional staff receives the required number of CPE hours within the established period. The Firm also 
conducts in-house seminars for the professional staff.  Our team is held to a high standard of quality, we 
offer the following CPE Programs for our staff: 

• Continuing Education offered by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), 
which the firm sponsors live, in-house seminars for its staff and clients conducted by highly qualified 
professionals from the AICPA and the California CPA Education Foundation, 

• Attend conferences and seminars related to government accounting sponsored by the Government 
Finance Officers Association, the Association of Local Government Auditors and the California 
Society of Municipal Finance Officers and various other professional associations. 

• A wide array of in person and webinar training courses offered by the McGladrey Alliance.  The 
available curriculum includes auditing, accounting, performance measurement, risk assessment and  
management, information technology, and person development. 

Following is a list of CPE course provided by Vasquez & Company LLP for the past three (3) years:  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  16             
 

   
 

Course Provider Date Hours 

GAAP Update-HO1 
CalCPA Education 
Foundation 4/21/2014 2 

Audits of Health & Welfare Plans 2014 McGladrey 4/24/2014 2 

EBP – Considerations of Law and Regulations McGladrey 5/06/2014 3 
Advanced Auditing of HUD Assisted Projects: 
Common Pitfalls 

CalCPA Education 
Foundation 1/30/2014 8 

HUD Audits of Multifamily Housing Vasquez 1/16/2014 8 
Government Update 2014 Accounting, Auditing 
& Risk Management Vasquez 7/24/2014 8 
Designing and Performing Analytical 
Procedures McGladrey 12/18/2013 2 
Government and Not-for-Profit Entities 
Accounting and Auditing Update AICPA 8/20/2013 8 

New Substantive Testing Policies McGladrey 8/06/2013 2 

Q2 Emerging Topics in Auditing 2013 McGladrey 7/24/2013 2 

Q2 Current Accounting Topics Quarterly Update McGladrey 7/16/2013 2 

Introduction to the Single Audit 2013 McGladrey 7/12/2013 2 

Introduction to Government Auditing Standards McGladrey 7/11/2013 2 
Introduction to Governmental Audit and 
Accounting Issues 2013 McGladrey 7/10/2013 3 

2013 Not-for-Profit Organizations Conference 
CalCPA Education 
Foundation 5/16/2013 8 

McGladrey’s Risk Assessment Process McGladrey 5/16/2013 2 

Q1 Emerging Topics in Auditing – 2013 McGladrey 5/16/2013 2 
Introduction to MAPS and CaseWare Working 
Papers AICPA 5/10/2013 12 
Techniques to Improve Audit Management and 
Execution AICPA 4/26/2013 4 
New Directions in Auditing Construction and 
Public Works Projects 

ALGA 4/09/2013 1 

What Auditors Can Learn from Lean Processes ALGA 3/12/2013 1.5 
Not-for-Profit Workshop: What’s New in A&A and 
A-133 

CalCPA Education 
Foundation 

7/30/2012 8 

Avoiding Problems in Conducting Single Audits CalCPA Education 
Foundation 

7/23/2012 8 

Governmental Accounting and Auditing Update AICPA 6/29/2012 8 
 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  17             
 

   
 

COMMITMENT TO STAFF CONTINUITY 

Our commitment to long-term engagement continuity is accomplished through early planning and 
thorough management which increases audit efficiency and streamlines the audit process for the City. We 
consider it imperative that the selected engagement team: 

• Possess and demonstrate the necessary technical skills to perform their assigned tasks in an 
efficient manner, 

• Establish a “track record” of effective coordination among each other and with the client in 
order to meet the stated audit objective, and 

• Establish continuity of effort from year to year and among each other in order to avoid 
“retraining” our personnel in subsequent years. 

The engagement team we propose for the City’s audits has been chosen based on the above criteria and 
their prior experience on similar engagements.  A synopsis of the team members and their respective 
roles followed by their resumes is as follows: 

Team Member Role 

Margaret J. McBride, CPA 
Lead Partner 

Margaret (Peggy) McBride, Vasquez Government Practice Leader and 
former KPMG partner-in-charge of government advisory services to the 
Western Region with over thirty (30) years of public accounting 
experience will be responsible for leading our delivery of services to the 
City.  She will develop our engagement strategy, provide on-site direction 
to our team, work closely with City management and be available 
throughout the year to ensure proactive issue identification and service 
delivery. 

Roger A. Martinez, CPA 
Engagement Quality Control 
 

Roger Martinez, Vasquez Quality Control Partner and former KPMG 
national office partner with sixteen (16) years of public accounting 
experience will have the responsibility of technical reviewer for the City 
engagement.  He will be the professional standards reviewer of reports 
issued and will work closely with the Lead Partner in reviewing 
workpapers and financial reports prior to release. 

Oscar Chacon, CISA 
I.T. Partner 

Oscar Chacon, Vasquez Information Technology Partner and former 
KPMG Information Risk Management Practice Manager with over fifteen 
(15) years of public accounting consulting and corporate management in 
the areas of information systems audit/assurance will oversee our audit of 
the City’s financial systems. 

Usman Ilyas, CPA 
Manager 
 

Usman Ilyas, Manager with the Vasquez Government Practice Group 
with eleven (11) years of comprehensive experience in audit and advisory 
services to local governments will work closely with the Lead Partner in 
planning, coordinating and reviewing the fieldwork for the City 
engagement. He will manage the day-to-day activities and task 
accomplishments, monitoring progress, and ensure schedule compliance.   

Arlene Ibañez-Pingul 
Supervisor 

Arlene Ibañez-Pingul, Supervisor with the Vasquez Government Practice 
Group with fifteen (15) years of public accounting and auditing experience 
will work closely with engagement management on planning and 
performing audit procedures, report preparation for the City engagement. 
Arlene has been associated with the City audit in prior years and 
possesses valuable understanding of the City’s operations, systems and 
processes.  

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  18             
 

   
 

 
TEAM ORGANIZATION 
 

Usman Ilyas, CPA 
Manager 

Roger Martinez, CPA 
Quality Control Partner 

Arlene Pingul 
Supervisor 

Margaret McBride, CPA 
Lead Partner 

Senior Auditors 

Staff Auditors 

Oscar Chacon, CISA 
IT Partner 

City of Cudahy 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  19             
 

   
 

 
 
 
 

Margaret (Peggy) McBride; Vasquez Government Practice Leader and 
former KPMG partner-in-charge of government advisory services for the 
Western Region with over thirty (30) years of public accounting 
experience will oversee our delivery of service to the City. Peggy will 
develop our engagement strategy, provide on-site direction to our team, 
work closely with the City and will be available throughout the year to 
ensure proactive issue identification and service delivery. 

Areas of Expertise  
Peggy has worked principally in the governmental (federal, state, municipal, special district including 
water districts and primary and secondary education districts, public colleges and universities) and 
not-for-profit industries (foundations, private schools and universities, health and welfare and arts 
organizations). 
 
Representation of Experience  
 

• City of Riverside 
• City of Los Angeles 
• City of Long Beach 
• City of Anaheim  
• City of Baldwin Park 
• City of Brea 
• City of Carson 
• City of Colton 
• City of Corona 
• City of Compton 
• City of Dana Point 
• City of Encinitas 
• City of Huntington Beach 
• City of Irvine 
• City of Laguna Beach 
• City of Las Vegas 
• City of Lynwood 

• City of Newport Beach  
• City of Norwalk  
• City of Oakland 
• City of Orange 
• City of Pasadena 
• City of Phoenix 
• City of Pico Rivera 
• City of Redlands 
• City of San Francisco 
• City of Santa Ana 
• City of Temple City 
• County of Los Angeles 
• County of Riverside 
• County of San Bernardino 
• County of San Diego 
• County of Santa Barbara  
• County of Orange 

 

Professional Background and Affiliations 
Peggy served as the Assistant Director of Finance for the City of Columbia, Missouri prior to joining 
KPMG.  In that capacity she participated in the implementation of a financial accounting system, 
supervised the municipal accounting and reporting functions, implemented the City’s cash and 
investment management program, and developed and implemented debt management strategies. 
She served on the State Board of Directors of the California Society of Certified Public Accountants 
and as the Chairperson of its Audit Committee, and as President of its Orange/Long Beach Chapter. 
She has also served as a review for the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)’s 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting program.   
 
Educational Background  
Peggy received her Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of Missouri-
Columbia. She remains current on accounting and general financial business activities by participating 
in conferences, seminars and webinars. Peggy meets the Firm and professional CPE requirements. 

MARGARET J. MCBRIDE, CPA 
Lead Partner 

 

 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  20             
 

   
 

Continuing Professional Education 

Following are the continuing professional education courses completed by Margaret McBride in the past 
three years: 

Course Title 
Subject 
Code Date Hours 

Government al Update Conference GV 7/24/2014 12 

Fair Labor Standards Act RR 6/26/2014 1 

Auditing for Fraud in a Governmental Environment GV 4/18/2014 8 

The New A-133 Super Circular Grant Reform AA 1/30/2014 2 

Designing and Performing Analytical Procedures AA 12/18/2013 2 

Fraud Update FR 5/30/2013 8 

Ethics for California CPAs E 5/28/2013 4 

California Regulatory Review RR 5/27/2013 2 

Introduction to MAPS and CaseWare Working Papers AA 5/10/2013 12 

Government Audit Efficiencies AA 4/26/2013 8 

Techniques to Improve Audit Management and Execution AA 4/26/2013 4 

Government Auditing Update 2013 AA 3/23/2013 8 

County Audit Training AA 4/20/2012 8 

2011 Yellow Book Training AA 4/02/2012 8 

Government Training GV 3/23/2012 8 

Government Training – Instructor Preparation G 3/22/2012 6 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  21             
 

   
 

 
 
 
Roger Martinez, Vasquez Quality Control Review Partner and former 
KPMG national office practice partner dealing with some of the most 
complex audit, accounting, and risk management issues at a national level 
will have the responsibility of technical reviewer for the City engagement. 
He will be the professional standards reviewer of reports issued and will 
work closely with the Lead Partner in reviewing and evaluating the 
fieldwork. 
    

 

Areas of Expertise  
Roger’s areas of expertise include overseeing all aspects of financial and compliance audits including 
internal control reviews, single audits performed in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, program 
specific audits, financial statement reviews, compilations, forecasts and projections to some of the largest 
and most complex governmental or regulated entities in California. His expertise also includes serving as 
a quality technical reviewer of utilities at a national level, ARRA accounting and compliance and acting as 
an instructor on accounting, auditing and reporting issues in the public sector throughout the United 
States.  
 

Representation of Experience  
• City of Long Beach 
• City of Vernon 
• City of Adelanto 
• California State University System 
• Chicago Heights Park District 
• Township of Addison 
• Village of Hillside 
• Village of Posen 
• Village of River Grove 

• Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
• Los Angeles World Airports 
• The Port of Los Angeles 
• Southern California Association of 

Governments 
• Los Angeles Unified School District 
• The Metropolitan Water District 
• Imperial Irrigation District 
• Foothill Transit 

 

Professional Background and Affiliations 
Roger’s professional background includes partner in KPMG National Office for a total of 17 years in the 
profession. Roger has served an extensive number of special purpose governments concentrated in the 
Western region of the United States. He has provided professional audit and consulting services to some 
of the largest, most complex governmental entities in California. He is a member of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants, the California Society of Certified Public Accountants, Los Angeles 
Chamber of Commerce, Association of Latino Professionals in Finance and Accounting and the Rotary 
Club of Los Angeles. He is a former member of the board of directors for the Los Angeles Economic 
Development Corporation and currently serves on the board of directors for LINC Housing, the Salvation 
Army and the Los Angeles County Medical Association. 

 
Educational Background 
Roger received his Bachelor of Arts, Major in Economics and Minor in Accounting from the University of 
California, Los Angeles. 

ROGER A. MARTINEZ, CPA 
Quality Control Partner 

 

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  22             
 

   
 

Continuing Professional Education 
Following are the continuing professional education courses completed by Roger Martinez in the past 
three years: 

Course Title 
Subject 
Code Date Hours 

McGladrey Audit Training Levels 2 and 3 AA 8/15/2014 8 

Governmental Update Conference GV 7/24/2014 12 

SEC and Financial Reporting institute Conference AA 7/5/2014 7 

Designing and Performing Analytical Procedures AA 12/18/2013 2 

Audit Sampling Self-Study AA 7/06/2013 3 

Introduction to Government Audit and Accounting Issues G 7/10/2013 1.5 

Q2 Emerging Topics in Auditing 2013 AA 7/23/2013 2 

New Substantive Testing Policies AA 8/09/2013 2 

Private Foundations and Form 990 T 8/23/2013 1 

Techniques to Improve Audit Management and Execution AA 4/26/2013 4 

Introduction to MAPS and CaseWare Working Papers AA 5/10/2013 12 

School District Conference Webcast AA 5/08/2013 8 

PDM 2012 – A&A Busy Season Reminders AA 01/08/2013 1 

Oil and Gas Industry – Accounting for Derivatives AA 1/08/2013 1.5 

December 2012 Oil and Gas Audit Update AA 01/08/2013 2 

Audit Planning, Evaluating and Testing Controls AA 06/11/2012 2 

How to Conduct a Review Under AICPA Practice-Monitoring 
Program T 11/28/2012 16 

School District Conference Webcast G 5/08/2013  

Intermediate A-133 Training G 6/08/2012 6 

LEA State Compliance Training G 4/06/2012 9 
 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  23             
 

   
 

 
 
 
 

Oscar Chacon, Vasquez Information Technology Partner and former KPMG 
Information Risk Management Practice Manager with over fifteen (15) years 
of public accounting consulting and corporate management in the areas of 
information systems audit/assurance, information security, financial auditing 
and professional consulting services will oversee our IT audit procedures 
including our evaluation of IT General Controls and application controls. 
 

 
Area of Expertise 
Oscar’s practice is focused on the evaluation of technology related processes and controls and 
overseeing the implementation of technology assurance and information security initiatives.  His expertise 
covers the development of work standards and methodologies in conducting information system control 
reviews.  He is a bank regulatory controls specialist for information technology.  Other areas of Mr. 
Chacon’s expertise are in: Internal Audit Outsourcing and Co-sourcing, Sarbanes-Oxley Readiness, Bank 
Regulatory Compliance, Third Party Assurance Services under SSAE 16, and Information Security 
Architectures.  
 
Representation of Experience 
• Los Angeles World Airports 
• Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority  
• Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad 
• Union Pacific Rail Road 
• Los Angeles County Museum of Art 
• Southern California Association of Governments 
• Sterling Savings Bank 
• City National Bank 

 
Professional Background and Affiliations 
Oscar’s experience includes eight years with KPMG LLP’s Information Risk Management Practice, and 
head of information security for Citi National Bank. He was commended by the Comptroller of the 
Currency for key information security initiatives at the largest private bank in California. Oscar is a 
Certified Systems Information Auditor, certified by the Information Systems Audit Control Association.  
 
Educational Background 
Oscar received his Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Information Systems, emphasis in Systems 
Analysis and a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration, emphasis in Accounting with a 
Minor in Economics from California State University, Los Angeles.  He holds a certificate in EDP 
Auditing/Quality Assurance from University of California, Los Angeles. 

OSCAR CHACON, CISA 
Information Technology Principal 

 

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  24             
 

   
 

Continuing Professional Education 

Following are the continuing professional education courses completed by Oscar Chacon in the past two 
years: 

Course Title 
Subject 
Code Date Hours 

Government Accounting Principles G 2013 9 

Audits of State and Local Governmental Units G 2013 8 

Computer Security Concepts, UCLA Extension OT 2012 40 

Presentation on IT Risk Management  OT 2012 10 

Computer Security – Preventing Computer Crimes OT 2011 14 

Applications for Cyberspace Technology OT 2011 10 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  25             
 

   
 

 
zz 
 
Usman Ilyas, Manager with the Vasquez Government Practice Group with 
eleven (11) years of comprehensive experience in providing audit and 
advisory services to local governments will work closely with the Lead 
Partner in planning, coordinating and reviewing the fieldwork for the City 
engagement. He will manage the day-to-day activities and task 
accomplishments, monitoring progress, and ensure schedule compliance.  
He will also work to ensure on-going timely communication among all 
levels of the engagement team and will spend significant time on-site, 
ensuring the smooth operation of our audit process. 

 
Areas of Expertise  
Usman’s expertise is in managing audits of government agencies and nonprofit organizations; 
preparation of comprehensive annual financial reports, State Controller’s reports, and compliance reviews 
and single audits in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.   
 
Representation of Experience 
 
• City of Baldwin Park 
• City of Hawthorne 
• City of Huntington Park 
• City of Lynwood 
• City of Rolling Hills Estates 
• City of Santa Monica 
• City of Vernon 
 
Professional Background and Affiliations 
Usman’s professional background includes senior consultant, internal audit division PwC and audit manager 
positions with Macias Gini & O’Connell and Stanislawski and Harrison.   
He is a Certified Public Accountant licensed to practice in the states of California and Illinois. He is a 
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He remains current by attended 
numerous courses; seminars and conferences related to accounting and general financial business 
activities.  
 
Educational Background  
Usman received his Bachelor of Science in Accounting from Purdue University.   

USMAN ILYAS, CPA 
Manager 

 

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  26             
 

   
 

Continuing Professional Education 

Following are the continuing professional education courses completed by Usman Ilyas in the past three 
years: 

Course Title 
Subject 
Code Date Hours 

Auditing for Fraud in the Government Environment 
webcast GV 4/18/2014 8 

Fair Labor Standards Act AA 6/26/2014 1 

CCH Accounting and Research Manager (ARM) 
Training AA 7/09/2014 2 

Existence of Fraud in Auditing AA 7/16/2014 1 

Governmental Accounting Update GV 7/24/2014 9 

Q2 Current Accounting Topics Q Update – 2013 AA 7/23/2013 1.5 

Introduction to Single Audit Webcast AA 7/12/2013 2 

Introduction to Government Auditing Standards 
Webcast G 7/11/2013 2 

Introduction to Government Audit and Accounting 
Issues Webcast G 7/10/2013 3 

Introduction to Not-for-Profit Audit and Accounting 
Issues Webcast AA 7/09/2013 3 

Student Financial Aid Training AA 6/28/2013 4 

Introduction to CaseWare and MAPS AA 5/16/2013 8 

Audit Documentation AA 5/15/2013 2 

Audit Sampling AA 6/14/2013 2 

Not-for-Profit Workshop: What’s New in A&A and A-
133 AA 7/30/2012 8 

Avoiding Problems in Conducting Single Audits AA 7/23/2012 8 

Government Accounting and Auditing Updates G 4/12/2012 16 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  27             
 

   
 

 
 
 
 

Arlene Ibañez-Pingul, Supervisor with the Vasquez Government Practice 
Group with fifteen (15) years of public accounting and auditing experience 
will work closely with engagement management on planning and performing 
audit procedures, report preparation for the City engagement.  
 
 

 

Areas of Expertise  
Arlene’s expertise is in financial and compliance audits and internal control review of governmental 
entities and nonprofit organizations.  Her expertise includes single audits performed in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133, audit planning, conducting fieldwork, ascertaining client’s compliance with 
applicable requirements, discussing findings with management, and preparing and finalizing audit reports.   
 
Representation of Experience 
 

• City of Lynwood 
• City of Carson 
• City of La Puente 
• City of Hawthorne 
• City of Huntington Park 
• City of Norwalk 
• Community Development Commission of Los Angeles County 

• City of Cerritos 
• City of Temecula 
• City of Irvine 
• City of San Juan Capistrano 

City of Lake Elsinore 
• City of Santa Clarita 
• City of Healdsburg 

 

Professional Background  
Arlene’s professional background includes auditor positions with Diehl Evans & Company LLP. 
 
Educational Background 
Arlene received her Bachelor of Science in Business Administration in Accounting from Tarlac State 
University.  She earned her Masters of Business Administration from De La Salle University. She remains 
current on accounting and auditing matters by attending numerous seminars, conference and continuing 
education courses.   

 

ARLENE IBAÑEZ-PINGUL 
Supervisor 

 

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  28             
 

   
 

Continuing Professional Education 

Following are the continuing professional education courses completed by Arlene Pingul in the past three 
years: 

Course Title 
Subject 
Code Date Hours 

Auditing for Fraud in the Governmental Environment – 
webcast GV 4/18/2014 8 

Q1 Emerging Topics in Auditing 2014 – webcast AA 4/23/2014 2 

Fair Labor Standards Act GV 6/26/2014 2 

Accounting Research Manager Training AA 7/09/2014 1 

Introduction to Government Auditing & Accounting 
Issues GV 7/09/2014 3 

Introduction to Government Auditing Standards GV 7/10/2014 2 

Introduction to Single Audit GV 7/11/2014 2 

Existence of Fraud in Auditing GV 7/16/2014 2 

Government Accounting Update GV 7/24/2014 8 

Techniques to Improve Audit Management and 
Execution AA 4/26/2013 4 

Introduction to MAPS and CaseWare Working Papers AA 5/10/2013 12 

Advanced Governmental Accounting GV 
1/25/2012-
1/27/2012 20 

Government Training GV 3/23/2012 8 

Government Accounting and Auditing Update GV 5/11/2012 8 

Nonprofit Auditing and Accounting Update AA 5/18/2012 8 

School District Conference GV 5/24/2012 8 

Avoiding Problems in Conducting Single Audits AA 7/23/2012 8 

Not-for-Profit Workshop: What’s New in A&A AA 7/30/2012 8 

Government Accounting and Auditing Update AA 5/12/2011 8 

School District Conference GV 5/25/2011 8 

Government Accounting and Auditing Update GV 6/09/2011 8 

Everyday Ethics – Doing Well by Doing Good E 7/13/2011 4 

Everyday Ethics – Doing Well by Doing Good RR 7/13/2011 2 

Accountants Responsibility for Fraud F 8/11/2011 8 

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  29             
 

   
 

SIMILAR ENGAGEMENTS WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES 
Financial statement and compliance audits of governmental entities, particularly large municipal 
governments have been and continue to be a key focus area for Vasquez and its professionals.  As a 
firm, Vasquez has or is currently auditing more than 15 cities in Los Angeles County.  We also provide 
audit services to a number of special districts and nonprofit organizations, including the Los Angeles 
Economic Development Corporation, the Los Angeles County Employees Retirement Association 
(LACERA), and we recently concluded a performance audit of the Los Angeles World Airports which 
includes LAX, Ontario, Burbank and Van Nuys airports. 
 
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 
Large governmental compliance audits 

Margaret McBride, Vasquez Government Practice Leader and former KPMG partner-in-charge of 
government advisory services to the Western Region has overseen the audits of the cities of: Riverside, 
Ontario, Corona, Colton, Long Beach, Los Angeles. Anaheim and Santa Ana among many other local 
municipalities within California. Roger Martinez Vasquez Quality Control Partner and former KPMG 
national office department of professional practice partner has experience with the audits of the cities of 
Long Beach and Vernon,  and its enterprise operations, Los Angeles World Airports, Port of Los Angeles, 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power and the California State University System. 

Our governmental audit experience includes our conduct of the OMB Circular A-133 audit for the County 
of Los Angeles, with more than $3.5 billion of federal funds and 17 major programs, the Community 
Development Commission of the County of Los Angeles with more than $300 million in federal fund and 5 
major programs, and the Los Angeles Community College District with approximately $187 million of 
federal funds and 5 major programs. We conduct numerous audits of local municipalities/successor 
agencies and special districts including the Consolidated Audit of the 88 cities that receive Department of 
Transportation Funds, Proposition A and C funds for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority. Our experience with large, complex engagements in the government industry is significant and 
qualifies us to readily help you address the accounting, auditing and financial reporting issues pertinent to 
City. 
 
REFERENCES 

The following firm clients are available to the city to use as references. 

Client/Contact/Address Nature of Engagement  Partners Total  

Hours 

Community Development 
Commission of Los 
Angeles County (CDC) 
Mr. David Chang 
Director Financial 
Management Division 
(626) 943-3898 

Annual financial, compliance audit for inclusion in the 
CDC CAFR prepared in conformance with the GASB 
34 requirements, Single Audit (OMB A-133),  Rental 
Housing Construction Programs audit, CDC 
Foundation audit, Cannon Apartments Project audit, 
Intra County Housing Corporation audit.  GFOA 
Award.   

2005 to 2008 and 2010 to present 

M. McBride 
R. Martinez 
 

990 

City of Norwalk 
Ms. Jana Stuard 
Director of Finance 
(562) 929-5700 
 

Annual financial, compliance audit for inclusion in the 
City’s CAFR prepared in conformance with the GASB 
34 requirements, Single Audit (OMB A-133),  Norwalk 
Facilities Financing Authority, Norwalk Transit 
System Fund, I-5 Consortium, and AQMD audits, 
calculation of GANN Appropriations Limit, State 
Controller’s Report. GFOA Award.   

M. McBride 
R. Martinez 

 

950 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  30             
 

   
 

Client/Contact/Address Nature of Engagement  Partners Total  

Hours 
 
2008 to present 

City of Hawthorne 
Ms. Lani Emmich 
Finance Manager 
 (310) 349-2920 

Annual financial, compliance audit for inclusion in the 
City’s CAFR prepared in conformance with the GASB 
34 requirements, Single Audit (OMB A-133) AQMD 
Compliance, South Bay Workforce Investment Board. 
GFOA Award.   
2011 to present 

M. McBride 
R. Martinez 
 

880 

City of Vernon 
Mr. William Fox 
Finance Director 
 (323) 583-8811 

Annual financial, compliance audit for inclusion in the 
City’s CAFR prepared and in conformance with the 
GASB 34 requirements, Single Audit (OMB A-133), 
Vernon Light and Power, calculation of GANN 
Appropriations Limit, State Controller’s Report. GFOA 
Award. 

2013 to present 

M. McBride 
R. Martinez 
 

775 

City of Temple City 
Ms. Tracey Hause 
City Manager 
9701 Las Tunas Dr. 
Temple City, CA 91780 
(626) 285-2171 

Annual financial, compliance audit for inclusion in the 
City’s CAFR prepared in conformance with the GASB 
34 requirements, Single Audit (OMB A-133),  Temple 
City Financing Authority, review of GANN 
Appropriations Limit, State Controller’s Report. GFOA 
Award. 

M. McBride 
R. Martinez 
 

470 



City of Riverside 
Proposal to RFP Professional Auditing Services  31 
 

 www.vasquezcpa.com  
 

SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH 
At Vasquez & Company LLP we want to build strong relationships with our clients and continuously seek 
to understand ways in which we can ensure the services we are providing are in alignment with their 
needs. We believe it is important to strive for continuous improvement in the ways we interact with and 
deliver services to clients. We do this, in part, by adhering to defined client service standards and seeking 
feedback on our performance from our clients.  Vasquez utilizes several key technology systems to 
improve audit efficiency and effectiveness.  Our use of technology in the audit process benefits you in the 
following ways:  

• Efficiency.  Your audit files are designed with you in mind including planning forms, audit programs 
and procedures.  This promotes efficiency and allows for easy documentation, exchange and review 
of information. 

• Communication.  When you have a question, all client information is at our fingertips to access at 
any time no matter where we are located, even from prior year audits.  Questions on workpapers or 
other issues can be accumulated and sent via e-mail in order to reduce the number of interruptions to 
your daily routine during audit fieldwork. 

• Technical Information.  In addition to our extensive industry experience, the ARM system allows us 
to provide up-to-date technical information quickly.  Accounting standards and support can be 
provided to management at any time during the audit process.  

 
ACCOUNTING RESEARCH MANAGER 
Accounting Research Manager (ARM) is a comprehensive online database of expert-written analytical 
accounting, auditing, as well as primary source data.  It includes the full suite of publications from the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the GAO, Financial Accounting Standards Board, Emerging 
Issues Task Force, Securities and Exchange Commission, American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, and International Accounting Standards Board.  In addition, interpretive analyses are 
provided in many areas.  

 
PAPERLESS AUDIT SYSTEM 
Vasquez utilizes CaseWare audit software tool. This paperless audit system helps to ensure quality and 
uniformity in the audit process.  
 
FILE INTERROGATION SOFTWARE 

We use IDEA software to analyze data in unique ways and for the audit sampling process. Some 
examples of procedures we can perform with IDEA include: 

• Merging, analyzing and evaluating large amounts of data 
• Perform statistical sampling over a population for effective analysis 
• Search for duplicate testing (vendors, invoices, checks, adjustments, etc.) in minutes 
• Matching vendors with employee addresses for any unusual activity 
• Efficient and effective search for purchase stringing 
• Gap detection testing to ensure that the data is complete when we perform our analysis 
• Search for related parties 
• Search for payments to vendors, right below bid requirement amounts 
• Sort all payments after year-end, by amount, to look for material unrecorded liabilities/expenses 
• Sort all cash receipts after year-end, by amount, to look for material unrecorded assets/revenues 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  32             
 

   
 

SAMPLING 
Sampling is one of the methods we use to obtain efficiency in the audit process. In designing and 
implementing a sample plan, we consider the specific audit objective to be achieved and determine that 
the audit procedures to be applied will achieve that objective. We will: 

• Define the objective of the test 
• Define the population to be sampled, the element of the population to be examined (sampling 

unit), and what an error is 
• Determine which sampling technique is most appropriate 
• Determine an appropriate sample size and select a sample that is intended to be representative 

of the population 
• Examine each sample item to determine whether it is an error. 

 
DATA FLOW 

To assist in managing the flow of data for our testing, we intend to utilize our Vasquez FTP PORTAL, a 
secure and regulatory compliant tool to more effectively and efficiently manage the many requests for 
information necessary to conduct an engagement of this size. The Vasquez FTP Portal is a secure, web-
based repository that allows our auditors to post requests for audit information and for client personnel to 
respond (most often uploading and downloading attachments). All requests/responses and 
questions/answers are maintained in an easy-to-access website. Requests are tracked by assigned 
individual and notifications are received via e-mail. This will allow both the agency being audited and the 
audit team to easily monitor the audit progress and quickly address any issues in the audit information 
request/response process. The Vasquez FTP Portal will be a valuable tool for Foothill to monitor the status 
of our progress throughout this engagement. Finally, it eliminates the sometimes non-secure data exchange 
through the use of thumb drives, CD ROMS and paper.  
 
CRITICAL AUDIT AREAS 

Critical Audit Area Background and Audit Considerations 

Financial Reporting Background. Governments have unique requirements for financial 
reporting—that is, how they present information in their entity-wide financial 
statements, fund financial statements, notes to those financial statements 
and other required supplementary information.  
Audit Considerations. We will work closely with management to ensure we 
understand and evaluate the controls in place over the financial reporting 
process.  We will perform a materiality calculation to highlight accounts that 
are considered material at the financial statement level. We will perform a 
major fund determination at the planning and final stage of the audit to 
ensure that all funds are reported in compliance with the reporting standards. 
We will analyze potential components units to determine the nature of their 
reporting in the comprehensive annual financial report. We will evaluate and 
review the government’s control process and entries involved in the 
conversion from the fund level to the entity-wide level in compliance with 
GASB 34. In the event the City elects to apply for the GFOA Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, we will advise the City of 
potential areas for consideration. 

Financial Instruments Background. Governments have certain unique requirements that apply to 
their financial instruments including cash; investments such as reverse 
repurchase agreements, securities lending transactions; and derivative 
instruments.  
Audit Considerations. We will work with management to gain a full 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  33             
 

   
 

Critical Audit Area Background and Audit Considerations 
understanding of the controls and procedures in place over the cash and 
investments cycle. We will review the City’s investment policy to gain an 
understanding of the City’s investment objectives. To ensure all financial 
instruments are recorded on the books, we will confirm cash and investment 
balances from outside third parties. For more complex investments, we will 
rely on our due diligence procedures to ascertain the propriety of information 
reported in the financial statements. We will consider the adequacy of 
financial statement disclosures for conformance with GASB pronouncements 
and transparency to users of the financial statements. 

Revenues and 
Receivables 

Background. Governments have a variety of revenue and receivable 
sources that play a significant role in their operations.  
Audit Considerations. We will work with management to gain a full 
understanding of the controls and procedures in place over the revenues and 
receivable cycles.  We will devise our procedures to ensure that reported 
revenues represent amounts relating to the period and pertain to the 
government, revenue transactions and events have been recorded in the 
correct accounting period and revenue transactions and events have been 
recorded in the proper accounts. Our tests will include consideration that the 
reported receivables represent amounts uncollected as of the end of the 
period, that for grants, the related events have occurred that entitle the City 
to the related revenue, and receivables are reported at the proper amounts. 
We will analytically review revenues from budget as well as prior period to 
identify plausible trends. We will confirm certain receivables (property and 
certain other taxes, grants, shared revenues) and perform a search of 
unrecorded receivables by analyzing receipts subsequent to year end. 

Capital Assets  Background. Governments usually acquire general capital assets with the 
resources of the general, special revenue, capital projects, and enterprise 
funds. A government’s budgeting policies usually affect how the government 
finances and accounts for general capital asset acquisitions of different sizes 
and types.  
Audit Considerations. We will gain an understanding of the controls and 
procedures in place regarding capital assets. We will review the entity’s 
capital asset policy to ensure the controls in place are in compliance with the 
prescribed policy. We will consider our tests of construction activity and 
capital assets inventory controls to support our evaluation of capital asset 
balances. We will devise our procedures to ensure reported capital 
expenditures and depreciation and amortization expense represent amounts 
relating to the period and pertain to the government, have been recorded in 
the proper accounts and in the correct accounting period.  

Expenditures and 
Liabilities 

Background. Expenditures and liabilities represent outflows of resources 
from the government. Many resource outflows are reported based primarily 
on events or transactions that require cash disbursements during the current 
period or shortly thereafter; examples are payroll, rent, utilities etc. Other 
resource outflows are reported based primarily on known or estimated 
future-period cash disbursements; examples are compensated absences, 
and claims and judgments, etc.  
Audit Considerations. We will gain an understanding of the controls and 
procedures in place to relating to the purchasing and cash disbursements 
cycle. We will devise our procedures to ensure reported expenditures 
represent amounts relating to the period and pertain to the government, 
expenditures have been recorded in the proper accounts and correct 
accounting period. We will devise our procedures to ensure  reported 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  34             
 

   
 

Critical Audit Area Background and Audit Considerations 
liabilities represent amounts unpaid as of the end of the period, the financial 
statements report all liabilities as of the end of the period and liabilities are 
reported at the appropriate amounts. We will agree selected liabilities to 
detail ledgers, such as lists of outstanding debt, and to subsequent 
payments, and we will review subsequent payments to help identify 
unrecorded liabilities. 

 
Debt and Debt Service Critical Audit Areas 

Critical Audit Area Background and Audit Considerations 

Debt and Debt Service Background. Most governments have large financial needs as they seek to 
grow their economies and provide for social needs of their citizens. In theory, 
public borrowing is an effective tool for generating economic development 
and distributing fairly the debt burden between current and future 
generations of taxpayers. Public borrowing and debt can expand the 
production and consumption choices of current and future generations, 
allowing governments to increase productive investments and distribute the 
tax burden more fairly between current and future generations. 

However, public borrowing and debt entail significant risks if they are not 
managed properly. An unsustainable public debt can impair the 
government’s ability to reduce unemployment and poverty levels precisely 
when counter-cyclical budget actions are most needed, during an economic 
recession or financial crisis.  

Audit Objectives. Our objectives are to determine if the debt management 
function of the City has adequate internal controls in place to ensure that the 
appropriate processes and procedures are functioning as intended. In order 
to accomplish this, the scope of our audit includes the following: 

1. Document whether audit procedures for debt and debt service 
expenditures will be performed across opinion units or for 
individual opinion units.  If procedures will be performed on 
individual opinion units, identify those opinion units in the 
documentation. 

2. Using an analysis of debt and interest activity during the period, 
perform the following procedures: 
(a) Analytically review long-term debt balances by comparing 

balances in the liability accounts and related interest 
accounts with those of prior years or other expectations. 

(b) Compare debt terms and balances as of the balance sheet 
date to amounts confirmed with standard financial 
institutions’ confirmations or similar confirmations. 
Investigate any differences. 

(c) Select a sample of debt issuances and determine whether 
they comply with compliance requirements that could have a 
material effect on the financial statement amounts 

(d) Review loan and debt agreements, and determine whether 
assets are pledged and whether there are any restrictive 
covenants. Identify disclosure points for pledged assets and 
restrictions. 

(e) Determine by inquiry, reading minutes or agreements, etc., 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  35             
 

   
 

Critical Audit Area Background and Audit Considerations 
whether any new debt issued is an advance refunding 
transaction resulting in defeasance of debt. If there has been 
such an advance refunding, determine that the accounting 
and disclosure requirements of GAAP have been met. 

(f) Review documentation prepared by the governmental unit, 
or prepare documentation, supporting compliance with debt 
covenants, restrictions, etc. 

(g) Analytically test the reasonableness of interest 
expenditures/expenses and interest payable. 

(h) Examine significant lease agreements entered into during 
the year, and determine whether any leases should be 
capitalized. Identify disclosure points for both capital and 
operating leases. 

 
Throughout the audit we will communicate our planned audit approach, by phase and timing, and the 
results of our audit procedures through regular meetings, status reports and adhoc discussion when 
merited.  We may also modify or expand audit procedures depending on the results of our risk 
assessments, the results of our tests of internal controls and unexpected issues identified during the 
audit.   

Recent GASB Pronouncements 

Listed below are the recent accounting and reporting developments and issues impacting the state and 
local governments relative to the recent pronouncements issued by the Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB): 

GASB No. and 
Effectivity 

Background and Audit Considerations 

GASB No. 65 
Items Previously Reported 
as Assets and Liabilities 
Issued in March 2012 
Effective for periods 
beginning after December 
15, 2012 

Background. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of 
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities. This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance 
related to the impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the 
determination of the major fund classifications and limiting the use of the 
term deferred in financial statement presentations. 

Audit Considerations. This is not currently required for fiscal year 
2012/2013 but earlier application is encouraged. We will closely work with 
the City management to identify the affected accounts and provide guidance 
to the City accounting staff on the proper determination and recording of 
these transactions.  

GASB No. 66 
Technical Corrections – 
2012-an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 10 
and No. 62 
Issued in March 2012 
Effective for periods 
beginning after December  

Background. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving 
conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, 
Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements. This Statement amends specific provisions of: 

- GASB No. 10 that limits fund-based reporting of risk financing 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  36             
 

   
 

GASB No. and 
Effectivity 

Background and Audit Considerations 

15, 2012 activities to General Fund and Internal Service Fund by using GASB 
54. 

- GASB No. 62 for operating lease payments, purchased loans of 
groups of loans, servicing fees related to mortgage loans sold. 

Audit Considerations. We will coordinate with management to determine 
the applicability of this Statement to the City. If applicable, we will provide 
guidance to the City on the proper recording and presentation of the 
transactions.  

GASB No. 67 and 68 
Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions and 
Plans 
Issued in June 2012 
GASB 67 Reporting of 
Plans effective for periods 
beginning after June 15, 
2013 
GASB 68 
Employer/sponsor 
accounting/reporting 
effective for periods 
beginning after June 15, 
2014 

Background. These Standards address: 
- Changes in governmental accounting and financial reporting, 

principally the introduction of accrual-based government-wide 
financial statements. 

- A perceived need among the users of governmental financial reports 
for comparable information about pensions. 

- The continuing development of GASB concepts regarding what 
constitutes a liability and an outflow of resources. 

One of the major accounting change is a government employer will report its 
financial statements a net pension liability for defined benefit pension equal 
to the difference between the total pension liability and the value of assets 
set aside in a pension plan to pay benefits to current employees, retirees, 
and their beneficiaries. 

Audit Considerations. We will review with City management on its future 
applicability and provide guidance on the presentation.  

GASB No. 69 
Government Combinations 
and Disposals of 
Government Operations 
Issued in January 2013 
Effective for periods 
beginning after December  
15, 2013 

Background. The Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards related to government combinations and disposals of government 
operations such as mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. 

Audit Considerations. We will coordinate with the City management to 
determine applicability of this Statement to the City and provide guidance on 
the valuation, recording and presentation of the transaction in the financial 
report.  

GASB No. 70 
Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange 
Financial Guarantees 

Issued in April 2013 

Effective for periods 
beginning after June 15, 
2013 

Background. This Statement requires a government that extends a 
nonexchange financial guarantee to recognize a liability when qualitative 
factors and historical data, if any, indicate that it is more likely than not that 
the government will be required to make a payment on the guarantee. 

Audit Considerations. We will closely work with the City management to 
identify its applicability to the City and provide guidance to management on 
the proper valuation of the liability.  

 
1. Proposed segmentation for the engagement. 

We have summarized our planned audit approach and procedures below: 
 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  37             
 

   
 

 
Phase I          Phase II  Phase III    Phase IV 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Audit 
Planning 

    
Completion 

• Familiarize ourselves 
with operating 
environment 

• Perform risk 
assessment 
procedures 

• Perform preliminary 
analytical review 

• Identify major 
programs for Single 
Audit testing 

• Develop Audit Plan 
• Discuss and agree on 

financial statement 
format 

• Reevaluate the 
progress of the audit 
and make any 
changes on audit 
approach and 
procedures, if 
necessary. 

• Training of City 
personnel on new 
accounting and 
auditing 
pronouncements 

 

 

• Assess internal control 
environment 

• Perform IT Controls 
testing and evaluation 

• Perform SAS 99 
(Fraud evaluation) 
procedures 

• Evaluate design and 
implementation of key 
controls 

• Test controls over 
financial reporting and  
administration of 
federal funds 

• Identify internal control 
strengths and 
weaknesses 

• Draft internal control 
management letter 
comments 

 

• Plan and perform 
substantive  audit 
procedures 

• Perform substantive 
compliance audit 
tests over federal 
programs 

• Conduct  final 
analytical review 

• Consider Audit 
Evidence 
Sufficiency 

• Conclude on critical 
accounting matters 

 

• Perform completion 
procedures 

• Perform overall 
evaluation of the financial 
statements and 
disclosures  

• Draft management letter 
• Draft auditors’ reports on 

federal compliance 
• Conduct Exit Conference 

with management, 
including discussion of 
proposed audit 
adjustments, internal 
control and compliance 
findings  and 
management letter 

• Issue auditors’ reports 
and management letter 

• Presentation to the 
Governing Board. 

 

     
Substantive 

Testing 

Internal  
Control 
Evaluation  

 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  38             
 

   
 

Phase I – Audit Planning 
The planning phase lays the foundation for the direction of our audit efforts.  It encompasses the following 
steps: 
 

• Conducting entrance conferences with the appropriate City management personnel.  The 
agenda would include, but need not be limited to, the following: 
− The application of generally accepted accounting principles 
− Concerns of City management 
− Report requirements, refinements and deadlines 
− Initial audit approach and timing schedule 
− Assistance by City personnel 
− Establishment of principal contacts 
− Progress reporting process 
− Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit 
− The auditors’ responsibility for fraud prevention 
− Scheduling inquiries of management and others (including non-accounting personnel) 

about the risk of fraud 

• We believe it is important for us to assist the City implement new accounting, auditing and 
compliance requirements. It is for that reason we intend to schedule training with City personnel 
involved in all phases of the audit for them to have a clear understanding of the latest technical 
changes for their respective areas as well as have a clear understanding of the audit 
requirements and timeline. The training with be provided in the form of live or webcast as 
desired. 

• Expanding our understanding of the City and its operating environments.  We will accomplish 
this by familiarizing ourselves and updating our knowledge of applicable background 
information pertinent to the City, its grants and fund structure through our review of the 
following: 
− Applicable state legislation 
− Organizational structure 
− Minutes of meetings 
− Policies and procedures manuals, administrative codes, rules and regulations 
− Description of the City’s financial and other information systems 
− Recent financial statements and key operating statistics 
− Contracts and major commitments 
− Grant agreements 
− Cost allocation plans 
− Possible effects on the City of the actions of regulatory agencies 
− Fraud Risk Assessment Process 
− Utility rate ordinances 
− Bond ordinances and offering statements 

• Through our background knowledge of the City, and because of our fact-finding process, we 
will develop an in-depth understanding of the areas of concern.  We will be in a position to meet 
with the City management to discuss areas that might have a significant impact on the timing 
and completion of the audits or that may be of special concern to management.  We will review 
such areas in-depth to obtain an early understanding and resolution of any "problem" areas that 
may impede our progress and to develop our overall approach so that the City will have 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  39             
 

   
 

sufficient time to develop the data necessary for completion of the audit with a minimum 
amount of disruption of the day-to-day routine. 
Our planning process will include a specific review of computer activities performed by the City 
personnel in order to: 
− Determine the organizational and operational controls over the data being processed, 

including, but not limited to; system development and maintenance controls, hardware 
controls and access controls 

− Evaluate the degree of "control consciousness" among personnel 
− Determine the potential impact of general control strengths and weaknesses 
− Consider the possibility of management override of controls. 

 
Our principal sources of information for this review will be interviews with responsible accounting and 
computer operations personnel, reviews of program documentation for the City’s system, as well as direct 
observations made by our audit team. 

• The audit team will use our analytical review techniques to identify other areas that may require 
attention.  Until the year-end account balances are finalized, our review will focus on budgets 
compared to actual/projected information.  We can thus identify sensitive areas to determine 
whether they are indeed areas requiring extra attention.  We will also focus on unusual 
fluctuations occurring within individual funds to identify accounts and areas which merit further 
investigation. 

• Based on our understanding of the City’s operating environment, through our analytical review 
and other planning procedures, we will meet with City personnel to highlight areas to be 
emphasized during the audit.  We will concentrate our efforts on the identified areas of audit 
concern and areas that we know to be important to City management.  Some of our preliminary 
audit concerns are elaborated as follows: 
− Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and reporting requirements 
− Receipt of all revenue to which the City is entitled 
− Purchases authorizations within budgetary limitations 
− Adequate safeguarding of City cash, investment and inventory assets 

• We will work directly with appropriate the City personnel to discuss financial statements and 
footnotes, in accordance with all authoritative accounting systems and interpretations.  
Accordingly, we will meet to discuss and agree upon the format for the individual and general 
purpose financial statements and any additional requirements that may be relevant because of 
recent or pending professional pronouncements.  (See "Phase IV - Completion" for a more in-
depth discussion of our financial reporting capabilities.) 

 
Interim audit testing  
Our audit approach is flexible and can be tailored to fit the evolving needs of the City. We will work with 
you to review the current audit schedule to determine the best approach for the various phases of the 
financial statement audit. We provide you the option of interim audit effort or after year-end. There are 
several advantages to performing interim testing, such as:  

• It shifts the timing of our testing into less busy periods of the year for your staff and for our staff  
• It allows us to focus on the high-risk areas before the year-end close, which provides more time 

to deal with issues, if any 
• It affords us the opportunity to judge the quality of interim period, rather than solely year-end, 

financial statement information and cut-offs which allows more opportunity for us to identify and 
City to implement best practices over internal controls and processes. 

Clearly there are advantages to performing interim audit testing and, as we stated previously, we will work 
with you to determine the best approach, and you will control this process.  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  40             
 

   
 

Phase II – Control Evaluation 
The steps included in this phase are as follows: 

• Our systems evaluation approach enables us to obtain a better understanding of the various 
transaction cycles and sub-cycles and how they relate to each other.  By using narrative and 
flowcharting techniques for each cycle, we will identify the critical points in the flow of financial 
information.  Our basic technique begins with information contained in the financial statements 
and traces such information back to source data.  This process is infinitely superior to the 
traditional tedious method of going from source data to financial statements. 

• We will identify the strengths and weaknesses in each of the transaction sub-cycles and sub-
audit areas that have a bearing on the audit objectives.  This identification of internal control 
strengths and weaknesses will enable the audit team to determine the emphasis to be placed 
on audit testing.  It will also serve as a basis for the development of conclusions and 
recommendations regarding weaknesses in the systems of internal accounting control and 
opportunities for improving efficiency and effectiveness. 

• Our engagement service team will prepare a tailored audit program unique to the City based 
upon the identification of internal control strengths and weaknesses. Our audit programs are 
tailored into a unique, efficient and effective document addressing the audit objectives, issues, 
and systems of the City 

• We will inquire of management and others (including non-accounting personnel) to identify 
fraud risks. 

• Our engagement team will discuss and consider the susceptibility of financial statement to fraud 
and to emphasize professional skepticism.  We will obtain information necessary to identify 
risks of material misstatement due to fraud.  We will identify risks that may result in material 
misstatement due to fraud. We will assess the identified risks after considering an evaluation of 
the antifraud programs and controls.  We will respond to the identified risks.   

• We will test transaction cycles using statistical and judgmental sampling methodologies to 
determine whether the necessary control procedures are prescribed and followed satisfactorily.  
The sample size for a low risk auditee could range from 11 items to 25 items, depending on 
how we assess control audit risk and audit detection risk.  In addition, if there are any deviations 
in our sample selection, we will expand the sample size and if the additional sample confirms 
the deviation problem, we will use statistical techniques to extrapolate the dollar value of the 
deviation. 

• We will obtain reasonable assurance that controls are functioning properly.  

• We will identify any failures to execute control procedures and prepare an initial management 
letter recommendation.  In addition to documenting the condition and criteria, we will develop 
the cause and effect, and propose a recommendation. 

• We will communicate and review the initial management letter comments with the City 
management. 

• We will provide periodic written progress reports on the planning and test work performed 
during the planning and interim fieldwork phases and discuss the schedule to complete the 
audits in the most economical manner. 

 
Phase III – Substantive Testing 
Sampling is one of the methods we use to obtain efficiency in the audit process. In designing and 
implementing a sampling plan, we consider the specific audit objective to be achieved and determine that 
the audit procedures to be applied will achieve that objective. We will:  

• Define the objective of the test  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  41             
 

   
 

• Define the population to be sampled, the element of the population to be examined (sampling 
unit) and what an error is  

• Determine which sampling technique is most appropriate  
• Determine an appropriate sample size and select a sample that is intended to be representative 

of the population  
• Examine each sample item to determine whether it is an error  

Substantive Testing – The purpose of the substantive tests is to provide reasonable assurance of the 
validity of the information produced by the accounting system.  These tests will include various detail tests 
and analytical procedures, including ratio analysis, comparisons of actual-to-budget information and other 
procedures. Specifically, tests that we have found to be effective and efficient for City includes tests such as 
confirmation of cash, grants receivable and loan balances, test of subsequent receipts for selected 
receivables. 

Analytical Review Procedures – Analytical review procedures, consisting of statistical, ratio and trend 
analyses are performed during every phase of the audit, from planning to reporting.  These analytical testing 
techniques provide feedback on potential areas of audit concern as well as provide comfort concerning the 
overall reasonableness of the financial statements. 
 
Consideration of Fraud – The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with 
both those charged with governance and management.  It is important that management, with the 
oversight of those charged with governance, places a strong emphasis on fraud prevention, which may 
reduce opportunities for fraud to take place, and fraud deterrence, which could persuade individuals not 
to commit fraud because of the likelihood of detection and punishment.  This involves a commitment to 
creating a culture of honesty and ethical behavior, which can be reinforced by active oversight by those 
charged with governance.  Oversight by those charged with governance includes considering the 
potential for override of controls or other inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process, such 
as efforts by management to manage.  

We are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error.  As part of our audit planning process, we will 
perform procedures to obtain information that will be used for identifying the risks of material 
misstatement due to fraud, such the following: 

• Discussions with management and others within the City. These discussions would focus on 
obtaining an understanding of management’s:  (a) assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated due to fraud, including the nature, extent, and frequency 
of such assessments;  (b) process for identifying, responding to, and monitoring the risks of fraud 
in the City, including any specific risks of fraud that management has identified or that have been 
brought to its attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosures for which a 
risk of fraud is likely to exist;  (c) communication, if any, to those charged with governance 
regarding its processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the City; and (d) 
communication, if any, to employees regarding its views on business practices and ethical 
behavior.  We will also make inquiries of management, and others within the City as appropriate, 
to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected, or alleged fraud affecting 
the City. 

• Discussions with those charged with governance.  We will obtain an understanding of how those 
charged with governance exercise oversight of management’s processes for identifying and 
responding to the risks of fraud in the City and the internal control that management has 
established to mitigate these risks. 

• Evaluation of unusual or unexpected relationships identified.  Unusual or unexpected 
relationships, variances or balances that we may identify during our preliminary analytical review 
procedures will be evaluated for indication of risks of material misstatement due to fraud.   

• Discussions among our audit team members.  This discussion will involve an exchange of ideas 
or brainstorming among our audit team members about how and where the City’s financial 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  42             
 

   
 

statements might be susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud, how management could 
perpetrate and conceal fraudulent financial reporting, and how assets of the City could be 
misappropriated. 

 
Adjusting Journal Entries – Adjusting journal entries proposed by our auditors, if any, will be discussed and 
explained to the Chief Financial Officer/Financial Services and Compliance.  It is our practice to discuss 
issues and proposed audit entries with the program manager or management personnel immediately 
responsible for the program to ensure that we have not misunderstood that particular situation.  This will 
ensure that the proposed entry or management comment and recommendation are accepted by the 
immediate manager in charge, and will ensure that the recommendation is feasible and makes business 
sense.   It is also our policy to address issues and resolve them as they arise, rather than at the end of the 
audit.  In short, there will not be any surprises. 

The final element in our work plan is the continual reporting to City management personnel in order to 
apprise them of our progress.  We believe communication is vital.  We have stressed the importance of 
continuous close relationships throughout this proposal and have indicated the various points where we will 
meet for specific discussions and decision. 
 
Phase IV – Completion 
The last phase of our audit involves preparation of the Independent Auditors’ Reports and management 
letter comments.  Because of our emphasis on early problem resolution and ongoing communication 
throughout the audit, the reporting phase will be mainly concerned with reviewing the fair presentation of the 
final numbers that will appear in the annual financial reports.   

All audit engagements are reviewed by report review specialist not otherwise associated with the 
engagements. Prior to commencement of fieldwork and as the engagement progresses toward 
completion, the report review specialist will aid the partner and the audit team in resolving difficult 
accounting, auditing and reporting issues. Upon completion of the partner review and before release of 
the report, the report review specialist will review the financial statements, our report thereon, and the 
letter communicating reportable control structure conditions and any other special reports or letters to be 
issued. 
 
Management letter  

At the completion of our audit, separate from any significant internal control deficiencies or items of 
noncompliance we may have identified and included in the respective auditors’ reports, we will also 
provide our comments and observations for improvements to operating, accounting and business 
practices. The diverse experience of our personnel, the fresh perspectives of our team members, 
combined with their independent and objective viewpoints will likely yield valuable information. The 
findings and other comments will contain, as warranted and appropriate:  

• Specific recommendations for improvement of the accounting practices and procedures and the 
internal accounting and administrative controls  

• Comments on the design, controls and audit trails of new and redesigned automated systems, 
along with suggestions to improve processing methods and procedures  

• Suggestions for operational improvements or cost efficiencies noted during the course of our 
examination  

• Comments relative to ensuring compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations  
• Comments regarding implementation of the new FASB pronouncements 
• Other comments, recommendations or observations regarding best practices that we believe may 

be of interest. 

This approach will not only allow us to render an opinion on the financial statements and on compliance 
pursuant to regulatory requirements; it also permits us to add value to our audit services and share the 
knowledge gained from surveying a wide range of organizations.  
 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  43             
 

   
 

Risk Assessment 

We will also perform risk assessment procedures in accordance with SAS No. 109, Understanding the 
Entity and Its Environment and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement sufficient to obtain an 
understanding of the entity and its environment, including its internal control to establish a frame of 
reference to determine whether any of the assessed risks are significant risks that require special audit 
consideration or risks for which substantive procedures alone will not provide sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence.  

Based on the understanding obtained from our SAS No. 109 procedures, we will design and perform audit 
procedures in response to the assessed risks identified and audit evidence obtained in accordance with 
SAS No. 110, Performing Audit Procedures in Response to Assessed Risks and Evaluating the Audit 
Evidence Obtained. 
 
INFORMATION SYSTEMS CONTROLS 

Understanding how key systems and processes contribute to your overall processing environment and 
affect the reliability of financial information is a primary element of our audit approach. Our objective is to 
assess whether the standards of security, integrity, continuity and control are conducive to reliable 
processing, consistent with the City’s technology standards and appropriate to safeguard your information 
assets.  
 
IT general controls  

IT general controls are pervasive controls within the IT environment. The following types of IT general 
controls are typically addressed in our audit approach:  

• Logical security (access to programs and data)—includes the components of management 
governance over Information Technology (policies and procedures, monitoring), application 
configuration (passwords, service accounts, super users, user identification/authentication), and 
security of the physical assets.  

• Change control management—assesses program changes (upgrades, service patches, source 
code) moved into the production environment and the processes applied to ensure the 
appropriate initiation, authorization, segregation, testing and approval are evident.  

• Data backup and recovery—reviews that the data backup process and ability to recover data for 
the financially significant applications, databases, spreadsheets and operating systems for the 
given opinion period are complete, tested and maintained, including the handling of errors.  

• Job processing—tests for the completeness of data interfacing into the financially significant 
applications and the change management processes for handling errors, script changes and 
interface edits.  

• Security administration—addresses the user access provisioning (new hire on-boarding, 
position/role changes, employee separation) for the financially significant applications, databases, 
spreadsheets and operating systems, along with management’s review of access for 
completeness, segregation of responsibilities and accuracy.  

 
IT application controls  

IT application controls apply to the business processes they support. These controls are embedded within 
the software applications to prevent or detect unauthorized transactions. When combined with manual 
controls, application controls verify completeness, accuracy, authorization and validity of processing 
transactions. Our methodology for assessing application controls is as follows:  

• Define materiality by system, using business process mapping as a starting point  
• Map various transaction types to clearly identify key controls and determine if the control is an 

application control or a manual control  
• Utilize our proprietary questionnaires to help verify and test various types of automated controls  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  44             
 

   
 

• Through inquiry, review of written policies and procedures, and on-site testing, evaluate 
application security controls, which are controls to verify that minimum access to applications is 
allowed for individuals to perform their job  

• Through inquiry, review of written policies and procedures, and on-site testing, evaluate input 
controls which ensure that transactions are initially recorded, entered and accepted by the 
application accurately and completely  

• By developing and testing a sample of transactions, evaluate processing controls, which ensure 
that transactions are processed by the application programs accurately and completely  

• Through inquiry and review of written policies and procedures, evaluate output controls, which 
ensure that output is complete and is delivered (standard or customized) to the appropriate 
parties in an appropriate manner  

• Through inquiry, review of written policies and procedures and tests of a sample of transactions, 
evaluate interface controls, which ensure that transactions between multiple systems are secure 
and integrity of the information transmitted is maintained, accurate and complete  

 
IT Systems Review 

In addition to the previous page, we will document our understanding of specific elements related to the 
City’s key applications. The following graph illustrates our approach:  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

• Application Security 
• Operating Security 
• Database Security 
• Interface Security 
• Network Security 
• Rules, Roles and 

Routings for workflows 
• Control and configurations 

of the key System Catalog 
and Application Data 
Tables 

• Job Scheduling & Batch 
Processing 

• System maintenance & 
upgrade 

• Backup & recovery 

• Facilitated Sessions for 
building process maps 
and narratives 

• Capture COSO Objective, 
Financial assertions, Risk 
Control Activities 

• Capture Control types, 
control category control 
method 

• Interface with the finance 
team and audit team in 
building the process maps 
and understanding 
application control 
implemented 

• Identify gaps 

• Compile a list of best 
practice recommendations 
for remediating each 
control gap identified 

• Include recommendations 
for technical 
configurations and policy 
& process improvements 

• Classify each 
recommendation as 
technical, administrative 
or business process 
related 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  45             
 

   
 

In summary, our IT-focused team will utilize its in-depth risk and controls knowledge and experience to 
identify and assess key controls and comment on opportunities to enhance the benefits available from the 
system, using efficient and effective testing approaches. 

SINGLE AUDIT APPROACH 

Single Audit procedures will be employed in the event the City is required to have a Single Audit of their 
Federal programs. We would utilize an integrated audit approach. This means we will coordinate the 
Single Audit testing of major federal programs with the testing of internal controls and systems in 
conjunction with the financial statement audit. Each major program requires a separate opinion on 
compliance with federal rules and regulations. The scope of our testing will be sufficient and specific 
enough to allow opinions on each of the City’s major programs. We will perform risk assessment 
procedures including: 

• Review of prior years’ reported findings, and  

• Consideration of the extent of continuing or new personnel assigned to administer each major 
federal program.  

Our procedures for testing major federal programs will be performed as follows:  

• Hold a planning meeting with the accounting managers and grant administrators  

• Make a preliminary assessment of the condition of the records and controls and determine the 
procedures necessary to more fully document the systems  

• Obtain copies of the grant agreements under which federal financial assistance is provided  

• Document any program-specific compliance requirements contained in the agreements beyond 
those included in the OMB Compliance Supplement  

• Review reports completed to meet the federal financial reporting requirement  

• Document our understanding of program requirements, and other laws and regulations  

• Establish detailed work plans, and audit timetables in conjunction with management  

• Schedule regular status meetings to monitor the audit process  

• Review the inventory of grants and other federal and state assistance  

• Test the completeness and accuracy of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards  

• Examine any external, state and federal audit reports for control weaknesses, compliance 
exceptions or questioned costs.  

The extent of testing and sampling depends on many factors, including environmental controls, previous 
audits and the number of locations at which controls are administered. Our sampling plan will be in 
conformity with the AICPA’s guidance for testing compliance. 
 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS OR CLASSES OF TRANSACTIONS 
 
Grant Accounting – Accounting for the various types of grants can be complex. We would select a sample 
of grant awards for the year, read the grant agreement and determine if the receivables, revenues and 
resulting net assets are recorded in accordance with GASB Statements 33 and 36.  
 
Claims and Judgments – Because the City is self-insured for its risks of loss, we will obtain an 
understanding of the process the City uses to determine and measure all known risks, and report them in 
the financial statements. Our analysis will also include the estimate of incurred but not reported claims.  
We will perform a retrospective review of prior estimates to determine if there appears to be bias in the 
development of these estimates. A McGladrey professional liability actuary assists the engagement team 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  46             
 

   
 

in assessing the qualifications of actuaries used by clients, actuarial assumptions used, and the 
reasonableness of valuation methodologies. 
 
Pension and other Post-employment Benefits – Vasquez has access to actuaries who assist the 
engagement team with reviewing the reputation and qualifications of actuaries used by clients, actuarial 
assumptions used, and the overall valuations. Additionally, we will test the information provided to the 
various actuaries to ensure it reflects current and complete data.    
 
Personnel Services Expenses – We will select individual payroll transactions for testing monetary 
accuracy and compliance with key controls. Control characteristics which will be tested include:  

• Accuracy of initial payroll information 
• Supervisory approval of payroll transactions 
• Payroll department’s audit of payroll change notices 
• Proper distribution of checks to employees 
• Labor distribution into the payroll files for the classification and accumulation of payroll changes to 

the various departments 
• Hours charged or allocated to federal programs were accurate 
• Personnel files are properly documented and employee classified as the department and fund 

 
Revenues – Our test of revenues will focus on the key controls to ensure that: 

• All revenues earned have been recorded in the appropriate amount 
• Revenues are recorded in the proper accounts and funds 
• Revenues are recorded in the appropriate fiscal period 
• Revenue transactions are in compliance with policies and procedures 
• Accruals have been reversed 
 

Other Than Personnel Services Expenditures – We will test transactions to ensure that they were: 
• Properly authorized 
• Monetarily accurate 
• Properly classified 
• In compliance with department and City control procedures 

The audit tests will also be designed to determine whether charges to federal and state awards: 
• Were necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program 
• Conformed to any limitations or exclusions in the award 
• Were given consistent accounting treatment and applied uniformly to both federally-assisted and 

other recipient activities 
• Were net of applicable credits 
• Did not include costs properly chargeable to other federally-assisted programs 
• Were properly recorded (i.e., correct amount, date) and supported by source documentation 
• Were approved in advance, if subject to prior approval 
• Were incurred in accordance with the competitive purchasing procedures 
• Were allocated equitable to benefiting activities, including nonfederal activities 

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  47             
 

   
 

Cash – Our audit procedures will include: 
• Confirmation of balances with financial institutions 
• Review of bank reconciliations with detail tests of selected reconciliation items 
• Detail tests of selections from subsequent bank statements 
• Proper financial statement disclosure, including whether or not there are restrictions on the cash 

accounts 
 
Investments – Our audit procedures will include: 

• Review Investment Policy and oversight process  
• Assess asset allocation, hiring of advisors, authorizations for sales and purchases 
• Evaluation and testing of due diligence process 
• Derivatives – confirm activities, to test existence; access valuation methodology  
• Confirmation of investments held and transactions for the period with custodian 
• Confirmation of alternative investments with fund managers, when applicable 
• Examination of agreements with investment managers and investment policies 
• Fair value testing 
• Detail and analytical tests of investment income and unrealized and realized gains and losses 
• Alternative investments – confirm balances, review contracts, partnership/operating agreements, 

and     investment reports; assess reasonableness of valuations, review external audit reports. 
• Fee and investment expense testing 
• Proper breakout between cash equivalents and investments 
• Review of compliance of overall portfolio with City policies and guidelines 

 
Receivables – Our audit procedures will include: 

• Examination of reconciliation to ledger and sub ledger and tests of reconciliation items 
• Analytical review of significant fluctuations in account balances 
• Confirmation of balances, as practical 
• Detail tests of subsequent cash receipts for selections 
• Analytical tests of aging analysis and reserve requirements 
• Tests of accounts receivable allowances through independent estimates using historical 

reimbursement and write-off experience 
• Detail testing of accrued income receivable 
• Review detail for transactions with related parties, credit balances, etc. 
• Examine revenue recognition policies • Proper financial statement disclosure 

 
Capital Assets: – Our procedures for the audit of capital assets will be based on the manner in which the 
City manages its capital assets, rather than based on the manner in which the City accounts for those 
transactions and activities.  We will also ensure that adequate procedures are performed related to the 
activity and balances in each of those opinion units with material capital assets-related transactions.   Our 
audit procedures could include:    

• Review of underlying documentation (such as, statutes and regulations, governing board minutes, 
grant contracts, donor letters, and contracts to lease or sell capital assets) and inquiry of 
management to determine any legal and contractual provisions relating to capital assets and related 
accounts that could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  48             
 

   
 

• Analytical review of construction work-in-progress to identify projects that have been completed and 
need to be placed in service and depreciated or projects that may have been abandoned and need 
to be evaluated for impairment. 

• Compare budgeted and actual capital outlays for the period and investigate significant variances.   
• Evaluation of support for reported fair values of any significant donated capital assets 
• Determination whether the City has satisfactory title to capital assets or other evidence supporting 

the reporting of infrastructure assets and certain intangible assets (patents, copyrights, and 
trademarks), whether any liens exist, or whether any capital assets have been pledged. 

• Evaluation of whether depreciation expense is properly charged to the various functions. 
• Evaluation of whether capital asset impairments have been properly reported. 
• Evaluation of whether transfers of capital assets and related debt between funds, component units, 

and other entities have been properly reported. 
• If eligible infrastructure assets are accounted for using the modified approach, a determination of 

whether the asset management system and the documentation of the condition of the assets 
comply with the standards in GASB Statement No. 34, as amended, 

• Review of financial statement disclosures for capital assets and related accounts. 
 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses – Our audit procedures will include:  

• Analytical review of significant fluctuations in account balances 
• Tests of management’s methodology and assumptions 
• Subsequent disbursements testing 
• Test of reconciliation between ledger and sub ledger and test of reconciliation items 
• Examination of detail for credit balances, related party transactions, aging, etc. 
• Comparison of prior year estimates against actual to assess adequacy of prior year reserves. 
 

Debt:  Our audit procedures will include: 
• Confirmation of balances with financial institutions and other debtors 
• Comparison of roll forward to ledger and agreements 
• Recalculation of carrying amount of loans 
• Testing of capital lease agreements 
• Analytical and detail tests of interest expense and accrued interest 
• Examination of classification and detail testing of activity 
• Proper financial statement disclosure 

 
Net Position: Our audit procedures will include: 

• Testing of restricted nature of net position 
• Compliance with legal or regulatory restrictions and reporting requirements 
• Proper financial statement disclosure including: 

− Net investment in capital assets 
− Restricted 
− Nonexpendable 

o Expendable o Unrestricted 

 
  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  49             
 

   
 

CITY PARTICIPATION IN THE AUDIT PROCESS 

Our audit approach assumes that representatives of the City staff will fully participate in the planning, 
fieldwork, and completion of the audit process.  Full participation means that the City will provide the 
resources necessary to allow Vasquez to complete the audit in a timely and effective manner while 
meeting your deadlines.  We anticipate that the management and staff of the City will participate and 
assist in the following areas: 
• Participating in audit planning sessions to provide perspective on risk areas in the audit; 
• Assisting in the documentation of internal controls; 
• Providing information such as expenditure reports prior to commencing year end fieldwork. 
• Participation in fact finding interviews with various City staff and consultants, as necessary. 
• Encouraging the free exchange of information between the City staff and Vasquez staff; 
• Committing to a year round audit approach and interaction with the auditors; 
• Providing open access to the City management 
• Timely responses to information requests and audit resolution issues  
 

Sample size and the extent to which statistical sampling is to be used in this engagement 
We will test transaction cycles using statistical and judgmental sampling methodologies to determine 
whether the necessary control procedures as prescribed are followed satisfactorily.  The sample size will 
range from 10 items to 25 items, depending on how we assess control audit risk and audit detection risk.   In 
addition, if there are any deviations in our sample selection, we will expand the sample size and if the 
additional sample confirms the deviation problem, we will use statistical techniques to extrapolate the dollar 
value of the deviation. 

Type and extent of analytical procedures to be used in the engagement 
Analytical review techniques will be utilized to identify other areas that might require attention.  Until the 
year-end account balances are finalized, our review will focus on budgets compared to actual/projected 
information.  We can thus, identify certain sensitive areas to determine whether they are indeed areas 
requiring extra attention.  We will also focus on unusual fluctuations occurring within individual funds to 
identify accounts and areas which merit further investigation. 

Based on our understanding of the City's operating environment, through our analytical review and other 
planning procedures, we will meet with the City personnel to highlight areas to be emphasized during the 
audit.  We will concentrate our efforts on the identified areas of audit concern and areas we know are 
important to the City Officials.  Some of our preliminary audit concerns are elaborated as follows: 

• Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and reporting requirements 
• All matters of compliance with GASB statements and interpretations 
• Receipt of all revenue to which the City is entitled 
• Purchases are authorized and within budgetary limitations 
• Encumbrances and liabilities are recorded and charged to proper budgetary accounts 
• Proper accounting and disclosure of developer agreements and similar commitments 
• Proper accounting for fixed assets including infrastructure assets 
• Proper recording of outstanding obligations 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  50             
 

   
 

Approach to be taken to gain and document an understanding of the City’s internal 
controls structure 

To gain and document our understanding of the City’s internal control structure, we will review the City’s 
policies and procedures, meet with appropriate management personnel to ascertain actual operation of 
policies and procedures and carry out compliance tests to document internal control strengths and 
weaknesses.  In reviewing controls over EDP systems emphasis would be placed on the following: 

• Determination of the organizational and operational controls over the data being processed including 
but not limited to, system development and maintenance controls, hardware controls, and access 
controls 

• Evaluation of the degree of “control consciousness” among personnel 
• Determination of the potential impact of general control strengths and weaknesses  
• Consideration of the possibility of management override of controls 

 
Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulations that will be subject to audit 
test.  
In planning for a single audit we would perform the following: 

• The City would be requested to prepare a schedule that lists each grant program it administered 
during the audit period. The grants should be categorized by grantor agency and grant numbers.  The 
compliance requirements to be tested will be identified for all major grant programs received by the 
City.  The compliance requirements for the major grants will be extracted from "Major Compliance 
Features of Programs Administered by State and Local Governments" for grants covered in that 
document. 

• Compliance with Laws and Regulations -The purpose of testing compliance with laws and regulations 
is to determine whether the City is complying with laws and regulations, specifically as they apply to 
state and federal financial assistance.  Compliance procedures will include reviewing state and 
federal grant requirements, applicable laws and regulations, allowable costs, eligibility, and other 
specific agency requirements.   

 
Approach to be taken in drawing audit samples for purposes of test of compliance  

Vasquez utilizes statistical sampling whenever possible to reduce the number of test items selected and 
to increase the reliability of our testing procedures.  The decision whether or not to utilize statistical 
sampling, in many instances, depends upon the degree of reliance to be placed on internal accounting 
controls.  The stronger the internal controls, the more likely statistical sampling can and will be used.  
Statistical sampling is most often employed in our compliance testing procedures during the Single Audit. 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  51             
 

   
 

COST PROPOSAL 
Our fees for the services outlined in this proposal are based on our estimates of the time needed to 
complete the project at our standard hourly rates. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree 
of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  The fees are 
based on the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit along 
with the following: 

Engagement Assumptions:  The proposed fees assume the following: 
1. Staff availability to answer questions within the agreed timeframe. 
2. Audit fieldwork procedures conducted at a centralized location. 
3. No instances of fraud that will require additional procedures. 
4. Staff to prepare all financial statements/schedules.  
5. All information requested provided within agreed timeframe. 
6. No major programs subject to Single Audit Act for 2014 and one major program for 2015 and 

all subsequent years. 
7. Information provided is complete and correct for the year being audited. 
8. Other unforeseen events such as: 

a. Accounting problems. 
b. Litigation. 
c. Changes in your business or business environment. 
d. Contractual difficulties with suppliers, third-party service providers or clients. 

The cost proposal contains all pricing information relative to performing the audit engagement as 
described in this Request for Proposal. The total all-inclusive maximum price contains all direct and 
indirect costs including all out-of-pocket expenses.  

EXHIBIT A 

Total Maximum Price 
Fiscal Year 

 

* All inclusive total for services, out-of-pocket expenses, meals, lodging, transportation, printing, and other 
costs (should tie to maximum price on Exhibit B.) 

Contract Authorization 

The undersigned bidder acknowledges that he/she has thoroughly reviewed all pages for this request for 
proposal. Bidder further acknowledges that he/she is aware of all the requirements of these documents 
and agrees to same. The bidder shall be bound to furnish the services specified according to 
requirements herein, upon acceptance by City of Cudahy. 

Vasquez & Company LLP 801 S. Grand Avenue Los Angeles 90017 
Company Name Address City Zip Code 
  Partner 10/09/2014 
Signature of Authorized Representative Title Date 
Federal Tax ID Number 33-0700332 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Total
City Audit $ 74,258 46,765    47,700  48,654      49,627      $ 267,005
Single Audit 0 9,997      10,197  10,401      10,609      41,204
Gann Limit 1,071 993         1,013    1,033        1,054        5,164
SCO Report 0 3,014      3,074    3,136        3,198        12,423
Low  Mod Report 2,500 2,550      2,601    2,653        2,706        13,010
Total $ 77,829 63,319    64,585  65,877      67,195      $ 338,805

 



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  52             
 

   
 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses 

Scope of Service: City Audit  Fiscal Year: 2013-14 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       80 22,800$          
Managers 136$       150 20,400$          
Supervisory Staff 101$       160 16,160$          
Staff 78$         191 14,898$          
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 581 74,258$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) -$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 74,258$  

 

 
Scope of Service: Gann Limit  Fiscal Year: 2013-14 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       1 285$               
Managers 136$       2 272$               
Supervisory Staff 101$       2 202$               
Staff 78$         4 312$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 9 1,071$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) -$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 1,071$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  53             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Low Mod Audit Report Fiscal Year: 2013-14 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       2 570$               
Managers 136$       4 544$               
Supervisory Staff 101$       6 606$               
Staff 78$         12 936$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 24 2,656$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (156)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 2,500$    

 

 “Our proposed fees for fiscal year 2014 reflect additional audit hours associated with the following 
circumstances: 

1. The prior auditors’ disclaimed on the City’s financial statements as of June 30, 2013.  
Accordingly, additional hours will be required to audit and satisfy ourselves as to the material 
accuracy of the account balances for the beginning of fiscal year 2014. 

2. The City did not have adequate time to correct, in 2014, the various internal control weaknesses 
existing and reported upon for fiscal year 2013.  Accordingly, internal controls cannot be relied 
upon in some areas, and additional substantive audit tests will have to be performed. 

3. Transactions between the Successor Agency and the City may require additional time to audit 
due to their complexity and evolving guidance as to appropriate accounting and reporting. 

4. The changes in key personnel and the internal control deficiencies cited in prior years will render 
the City a “high risk” audit, resulting in additional hours expended testing recorded transactions 
and balances. 

5. Additional hours will be required to audit the Low-Mod Fund which will be reported in the City’s 
CAFR.  

6. As a new client, additional hours will be incurred to update our assessment of the City’s systems 
and controls and to create templates for financial reporting purposes. 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  54             
 

   
 

EXHIBIT B 

Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses 

Scope of Service: City Audit  Fiscal Year: 2014-15 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       25 7,125$            
Managers 136$       90 12,240$          
Supervisory Staff 101$       140 14,140$          
Staff 78$         170 13,260$          
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 425 46,765$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) -$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 46,765$  

 

Scope of Service: Single Audit  Fiscal Year: 2014-15 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       5 1,425$            
Managers 136$       25 3,400$            
Supervisory Staff 101$       18 1,818$            
Staff 78$         43 3,354$            
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 91 9,997$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) -$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 9,997$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  55             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Gann Limit  Fiscal Year: 2014-15 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       1 285$               
Managers 136$       2 272$               
Supervisory Staff 101$       2 202$               
Staff 78$         3 234$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 8 993$               

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) -$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 993$       

 

Scope of Service: State Controller’s Report Fiscal Year: 2014-15 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       2 570$               
Managers 136$       4 544$               
Supervisory Staff 101$       8 808$               
Staff 78$         14 1,092$            
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 28 3,014$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) -$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 3,014$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  56             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Low Mod Audit Report Fiscal Year: 2014-15 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 285$       2 570$               
Managers 136$       4 544$               
Supervisory Staff 101$       6 606$               
Staff 78$         12 936$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 24 2,656$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (106)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 2,550$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  57             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: City Audit Fiscal Year: 2015-16 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 293$       25 7,325$            
Managers 140$       90 12,600$          
Supervisory Staff 104$       140 14,560$          
Staff 80$         170 13,600$          
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 425 48,085$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (385)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 47,700$  

 

Scope of Service: Single Audit Fiscal Year: 2015-16 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 293$       5 1,465$            
Managers 140$       25 3,500$            
Supervisory Staff 104$       18 1,872$            
Staff 80$         43 3,440$            
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 91 10,277$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (80)$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 10,197$  

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  58             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Gann Limit Fiscal Year: 2015-16 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 293$       1 293$               
Managers 140$       2 280$               
Supervisory Staff 104$       2 208$               
Staff 80$         3 240$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 8 1,021$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (8)$          
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 1,013$    

 

Scope of Service: State Controller’s Report Fiscal Year: 2015-16 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 293$       2 586$               
Managers 140$       4 560$               
Supervisory Staff 104$       8 832$               
Staff 80$         14 1,120$            
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 28 3,098$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (24)$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 3,074$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  59             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Low Mod Audit Report Fiscal Year: 2015-16 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 293$       2 586$               
Managers 140$       4 560$               
Supervisory Staff 104$       6 624$               
Staff 80$         12 960$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 24 2,730$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (129)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 2,601$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  60             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: City Audit Fiscal Year: 2016-17 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 302$       25 7,550$            
Managers 144$       90 12,960$          
Supervisory Staff 107$       140 14,980$          
Staff 82$         170 13,940$          
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 425 49,430$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (776)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 48,654$  

 

Scope of Service: Single Audit Fiscal Year: 2016-17 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 302$       5 1,510$            
Managers 144$       25 3,600$            
Supervisory Staff 107$       18 1,926$            
Staff 82$         43 3,526$            
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 91 10,562$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Specify) (161)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 10,401$  

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  61             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Gann Limit Fiscal Year: 2016-17 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 302$       1 302$               
Managers 144$       2 288$               
Supervisory Staff 107$       2 214$               
Staff 82$         3 246$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 8 1,050$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (17)$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 1,033$    

 

Scope of Service: State Controller’s Report Fiscal Year: 2016-17 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 302$       2 604$               
Managers 144$       4 576$               
Supervisory Staff 107$       8 856$               
Staff 82$         14 1,148$            
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 28 3,184$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (48)$        
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 3,136$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  62             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Low Mod Audit Report Fiscal Year: 2016-17 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 302$       2 604$               
Managers 144$       4 576$               
Supervisory Staff 107$       6 642$               
Staff 82$         12 984$               
Other (Specify) -$        0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 24 2,806$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$        
Transportation -$        
Other (Discount) (153)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$        

Total Maximum Cost 2,653$    

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  63             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: City Audit Fiscal Year: 2017-18 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 310$          25 7,750$            
Managers 148$          90 13,320$          
Supervisory Staff 110$          140 15,400$          
Staff 84$            170 14,280$          
Other (Specify) -$           0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 425 50,750$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$           
Transportation -$           
Other (Discount) (1,123)$      
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$           

Total Maximum Cost 49,627$     

 

Scope of Service: Single Audit Fiscal Year: 2017-18 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 310$          5 1,550$            
Managers 148$          25 3,700$            
Supervisory Staff 110$          18 1,980$            
Staff 84$            43 3,612$            
Other (Specify) -$           0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 91 10,842$          

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$           
Transportation -$           
Other (Discount) (233)$         
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$           

Total Maximum Cost 10,609$     

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  64             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Gann Limit Fiscal Year: 2017-18 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 310$          1 310$               
Managers 148$          2 296$               
Supervisory Staff 110$          2 220$               
Staff 84$            3 252$               
Other (Specify) -$           0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 8 1,078$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$           
Transportation -$           
Other (Discount) (24)$           
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$           

Total Maximum Cost 1,054$       

 

Scope of Service: State Controller’s Report Fiscal Year: 2017-18 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 310$          2 620$               
Managers 148$          4 592$               
Supervisory Staff 110$          8 880$               
Staff 84$            14 1,176$            
Other (Specify) -$           0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 28 3,268$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$           
Transportation -$           
Other (Discount) (70)$           
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$           

Total Maximum Cost 3,198$       

 

  



City of Cudahy 
Proposal Audit Services  65             
 

   
 

Scope of Service: Low Mod Audit Report Fiscal Year: 2017-18 

Rate Hours
Cost                  

(rate x hours)
Partners 310$          2 620$               
Managers 148$          4 592$               
Supervisory Staff 110$          6 660$               
Staff 84$            12 1,008$            
Other (Specify) -$           0 -$                
Subtotal Staff 24 2,880$            

Billable Expenses
Meals & Lodging -$           
Transportation -$           
Other (Discount) (174)$         
Subtotal Billable 
Expenses -$           

Total Maximum Cost 2,706$       

 



1 
 

10F 
ORDINANCE NO. 634 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING ZONE TEXT 
AMENDMENT 14-01 TO ADD NEW DEFINITIONS TO 
SUBSECTION 20.08.10 ADDING “EMERGENCY 
SHELTERS” AND “TARGET POPULATION” AND 
“TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING,” 
MODIFYING CMC SUBSECTION 20.64.040 TO ADD 
“TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING,” AND 
MODIFYING CMC SUBSECTION 20.68.080 TO ADD 
“EMERGENCY SHELTERS.”  
 

 
WHEREAS, the Cudahy City Council, pursuant to law, on November 4, 2014 
conducted a public hearing and first reading of Ordinance No. 634; and           
 
WHEREAS, the Cudahy City Council has carefully considered all oral and written 
testimony offered at the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cudahy City Council, pursuant to law, on November 25, 2014 
approved a second reading of Ordinance No. 634; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Cudahy Planning Commission heard on March 17, 2014 the 
proposed modifications and recommended approval of Resolution 14-04, approving 
Zone Ordinance Amendment No. 14-01. 

 
WHEREAS, California (“State”) Senate Bill 2 (“SB 2”), also known as the “Fair Share 
Zoning Bill” became effective as January 1, 2008, and generally requires that every 
city and county identify in the Housing Element of its General Plan at least one 
zoning district in which homeless shelters are allowed as a permitted use, without a 
conditional use permit, or other discretionary review. Each zone or zones must be 
sufficient to accommodate the locality’s identified need for emergency shelter; 
provided that regardless of actual need determined, each local jurisdiction must 
identify at least one zone that can accommodate at least one year-round jurisdiction 
must identify at least one zone that can accommodate at least one year-round 
emergency shelter. SB 2 was intended to disperse homeless services, shelters, and 
housing issues to be “fairly shared” among all California communities in order to 
share responsibility for the State’s homeless problems.   

 
WHEREAS, SB 2 does not mandate that cities and counties build or fund homeless 
projects, only that there is zoning in place that permits development by right without 
a conditional use permit process or other discretionary review.  SB 2 does not 
mandate where homeless shelter uses should be allowed in a city or county, but 
does require every city and county to identify actual zone or zones and site or sites 
that can accommodate the locality’s actual unmet need.  
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed amendment to the Zoning Code will bring the City into 
compliance with State Law outlined in SB 2, as well as allow Cudahy to obtain 
proper certification of its Housing Element.  This code amendment is one of the 
actions that must be completed for the City to qualify for an eight-year review cycle 
rather than four years. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES 
FIND AND ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1: City Council held a first reading of Ordinance No. 634 and opened the 
public hearing on November 4, 2014 to consider the zone text amendment.  All 
evidence, both written and oral, presented during said public hearing was 
considered by the Planning Commission in making its determination, and 
 
A public hearing was held before the City Council of the City of Cudahy on 
November 18, 2014 to consider the zone text amendment.  All evidence, both written 
and oral, presented during November 4, 2014 first reading, and public hearing was 
considered by the Planning Commission in making its determination. 

 
 Section 2: A record of the public hearing indicates that the City Council of the 
City of Cudahy hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 

A. That the proposed amendments to Title 20 (Zoning) are consistent with the 
goals, policies, and objectives of the General Plan; and 
 

B. That the proposed amendments will not adversely affect properties in the City of 
Cudahy. 

 
Section 3: Based upon the findings contained in this Ordinance and on all other 

written and oral evidence in the record, the City Council hereby approves the zone 
text amendment based on the amendment’s ability to meet the findings stated above 
and approves Section 20.08.010, Section 20.64.040, and Section 60.68.080 to read 
as follows: 

 
Section 20.08.010: Definitions. 

 
This chapter includes definitions for specific terms used herein. This list of terms is 
designed to clarify the zoning code’s intent as it relates to land uses and 
development requirements. The word “shall” indicates a mandatory requirement, 
except when used in connection with an action or decision of the city council or any 
city commission, board, or official. In these latter instances, the word “shall” shall be 
directory only. Whenever used in this zoning code, the word “day” shall mean a 
single calendar day. 

 
“Abut” or “abutting” means the same as “adjoining.” 
 



3 
 

“Access” means the place, or way, by which pedestrians and vehicles are 
provided adequate and usable ingress and egress to a property or use as 
required by this zoning code. 
 
“Accessory use” means a use incidental to, related, and clearly subordinate to 
the principal use established on the same lot or parcel of land where such 
accessory use is located. 
 
“Adjacent” means two or more lots or parcels of land separated by an alley, 
street, highway or recorded easement, or two or more objects located near or in 
close proximity to each other. 
 
“Adjoining” means two or more lots or parcels of land sharing a common 
boundary line, or two or more objects in physical contact with each other. 
“Affordable unit” refers to a housing development project in which 80 percent of 
the units shall be designated for very low-income households and 20 percent 
reserved for low-income households as those terms are defined in the health and 
safety code. 
 
“Alley” means a public or private right-of-way, other than a street or highway, 
permanently reserved as a secondary means of vehicular access to adjoining 
properties. 
 
“Amendment” means a change in the wording, Context, content, or substance of 
this zoning code or in the zoning map. Such changes must be adopted by 
ordinance by the city council in the manner prescribed by law. 
 
“Amusement arcade” means any place open to the public where five or more 
amusement games are maintained for use by the public. When only a portion of 
the premises is used for the operation of amusement games, only that portion 
shall be considered as an amusement arcade. 
 
“Amusement game” means any entertainment device for which a fee is paid to 
play, including, but not limited to, pinball, video or other electronic games. 
 
“Animals – retail sales” means the retail sales of small animals (such as dogs, 
cats, birds, and fish), provided such activities take place within an entirely 
enclosed building. 
 
“Antique shop” means an establishment primarily engaged in the sale of 
antiques. 
 
“Apartment house” means a building, or a portion of a building, designed or used 
for occupancy by three or more households living independently of each other 
and containing three or more individual dwelling units within a single structure. 
 
“Apartment unit” means a room or suite of two or more rooms with a single 
kitchen in a multiple family dwelling, suitable for occupancy as a dwelling unit for 
one household. 
 



4 
 

Arcade. See “Amusement arcade.” 
 

“Artists’ studio” means a building containing work space and retail sales space 
for artists and artisans producing individual one-of-a-kind works of art, including 
individuals practicing a fine art, or skilled in an applied art or craft; provided, that 
the use does not impact any other use or property with noise, odor, dust, 
vibration, or other nuisance. This classification includes, but is not limited to, 
painters’ studios, ceramic studios, and custom jewelry studios. 
“Assessor” means the assessor of the county of Los Angeles. 
 
“Atlantic Boulevard Corridor” refers to a specific portion of the city located 
adjacent to, or in the vicinity of, Atlantic Boulevard as shown on the map on file in 
the office of the city clerk, entitled 
 
“Atlantic Boulevard Corridor Map.” 
 
“Automobile wrecking or automobile dismantling” means a business 
establishment engaged in the dismantling and/or wrecking of used motor 
vehicles or trailers, and/or the storage, sale, or dumping of dismantled, partially 
dismantled, obsolete, or wrecked vehicles or parts. 
 
“Awning” means a roof-like cover supported entirely from the exterior wall of a 
building, and installed over or in front of openings or windows in a building, and 
consisting of a fixed or movable frame and a top of canvas or other similar 
material covering the entire space enclosed between the frame and the building. 
 
“Balcony” means a platform that projects from the wall of a building, typically 
above the first level, and is surrounded by a rail, balustrade, or parapet on at 
least one side. 
 
“Balcony, unenclosed” means a balcony open to the sky and not fully enclosed 
on more than two sides. 
 
“Balloon” means a floating air-filled or gas filled object tethered to a fixed location 
(also see “Sign, balloon”). 
 
“Banks and savings and loans” means a state or federally chartered financial 
institution that provides retail banking services to individuals and businesses. 
 
“Bars” and “cocktail lounges” means establishments where alcoholic beverages 
are sold for consumption on the premises. This classification excludes 
restaurants and commercial recreation uses that may serve alcoholic beverages 
incidental to the primary use. 
 
“Basement” means that portion of a building located between the ground level or 
first floor of a structure. 
 
“Billiard parlor” means an establishment that provides five or more billiard and/or 
pool tables. 
 



5 
 

“Building” means any structure having a roof supported by columns or by walls 
and intended for the shelter, housing, or enclosure of persons, animals, or 
property of any kind. 
“Building – accessory” means a detached subordinate building, the use of which 
is incidental to that of the primary building or to the principal use of the land, and 
which is located on the same lot or parcel of land with the main building or 
principal use of the land. 
 
“Building height” or “height” means the vertical distance as measured 
continuously along a line at existing grade bisecting the width of the lot to the 
highest point of a building or structure, except as provided elsewhere in this 
zoning code. 
 
“Building – main” means a building in which is conducted a principal use of the lot 
or parcel of land upon which it is situated. In a residential or agricultural zone, 
any residential unit shall be deemed to be a main building upon the lot or parcel 
of land on which it is situated. 
 
“Building material sales” means an establishment engaged in retailing or 
wholesaling of building supplies or equipment. This classification includes lumber 
yards and tool and equipment sales, but excludes businesses engaged in the 
retail sales of paint and hardware, building contractor’s yards, and activities 
classified under “equipment leasing and rentals.” 
 
“Building wall” means the vertical surface, or any element thereof, including any 
structural member or group of structural members attached to the vertical surface 
that defines the exterior boundaries of a building. 
  
“Business and trade school” means an establishment which provides on-site 
training of business, commercial, and/or trade skills such as accounting, data 
processing, and computer repair. This classification excludes establishments 
providing training in an activity that is not otherwise permitted in the applicable 
zone. Incidental instructional services in conjunction with another primary use 
shall not be considered a business and trade school. 
 
“Camp – day” means a facility with an organized daytime program involving the 
supervision and care of children. 
  
“Canopy” has the same meaning as “awning” as defined in this chapter, except 
that a canopy contains separate supporting posts and is not supported entirely 
from the exterior wall of a building. 
 
“Carport” means a permanently roofed structure with no more than two enclosed 
sides, used or intended to be used for automobile shelter and storage. Cellar. 
See “Basement.” 
 
“Center-line” means the center-line of any street, as established by the city 
engineer by official surveys, and on file in the office of the city engineer. 
“Check-cashing” means a business that, for compensation, engages in the 
business of cashing checks, warrants, drafts, money orders, or other commercial 



6 
 

paper serving the same purpose. This classification does not include a state or 
federally chartered bank, savings association, credit union, or industrial loan 
company. Further, this classification does not include establishments selling 
consumer goods where the cashing of checks or money orders is incidental to 
the main purpose of the business. 
 
“Church” means a facility used for religious worship and incidental religious 
education and/or activities, but not including private schools as defined in this 
chapter. 
 
“Child care center” means a facility that provides nonmedical care to children 
under 18 years of age in need of personal services, supervision, or assistance 
essential for sustaining the activities of daily living or for the protection of the 
individual on less than a 24-hour basis. “Child care center” includes day care 
centers and family day care homes. 
 
“City” means the city of Cudahy, state of California, referred to in this zoning 
code as “city,” and everyone acting on behalf of the city of Cudahy, including 
employee, associate, attorney, accountant, representative, officer, city manager, 
director, or agent of the city of Cudahy. 
 
“Club, private” means any building or premises used by an association of 
persons, whether incorporated or unincorporated, organized for some common 
purpose, but not including a group organized solely or primarily to render a 
service customarily carried on as a commercial enterprise. This definition does 
not include “adult” business establishments. 
 
“Clubs and lodges” means private or nonprofit organizations providing meeting, 
recreational, or social facilities primarily for use by members and/or guests. 
 
“Commercial printing” means a business providing printing, blueprinting, 
photocopying, engraving, binding, or related services. 
  
“Commercial vehicle” means a vehicle which, when operated on a street, is 
required to be registered as a commercial vehicle under the State Vehicle Code, 
and which is used or maintained for the transportation of persons for hire, 
compensation, or profit, or which is designed, used, or maintained primarily for 
the transportation of property. 
 
“Commission” refers to the planning commission of the city of Cudahy. 
 
“Communications facility” means an establishment engaged in broadcasting, 
recording, and other communication services accomplished through electronic or 
telephonic mechanisms. This classification includes, but is not limited to, radio, 
television, or recording studios, telephone switching centers, and telegraph 
offices. 
 
“Communications facilities, wireless” means an unstaffed facility for the 
transmission or reception of wireless telecommunication services, commonly 



7 
 

consisting of an antenna array, connection cables, a support structure, and 
ancillary support facilities. 
 
“Community center” means a building, buildings, or portions thereof used for 
recreational, social, educational, and cultural activities where buildings and 
associated improvements are owned and/or operated by a public, nonprofit, or 
public serving group or agency. 
 
“Condominium” means an undivided interest in common in a portion of real 
property coupled with a separate interest in space called a “unit,” the boundaries 
of which are described on a recorded final map, parcel map, or condominium 
plan. The description of the unit may refer to: (a) boundaries described in the 
recorded final map, parcel map, or condominium plan, (b) physical boundaries, 
either in existence, or to be constructed, such as walls, floors, and ceilings of a 
structure or any portion thereof, (c) an entire structure containing one or more 
units, or (d) any combination thereof. An individual condominium within a 
condominium project may include, in addition, a separate interest in other 
portions of the real property. This term shall also include stock cooperative 
developments. 
 
“Condominium project” means a common interest development consisting of 
condominiums. The following terms, when used in reference to condominiums or 
condominium projects, shall be defined as follows: 
 
“Condominium common area” means the entire project excepting all units or 
common area granted or reserved. 
 
“Condominium documents” means the declaration and the condominium plan. 
 
“Convalescent facilities” means a business establishment engaged in providing 
care on a 24-hour basis for persons requiring regular medical attention, but 
excluding facilities providing surgical or emergency medical services. 
 
“Convalescent home” means a home or establishment offering or providing 
lodging, meals, nursing, dietary, or other personal services to five or more 
convalescents, invalids, or aged persons, but shall not include surgery or the 
care of persons with contagious or communicable diseases. 
 
“Conversion (condominium)” means a change in the type of ownership of a 
parcel or parcels of land, together with the existing structures, from rental 
housing, as defined in this chapter, to a condominium, community apartment, 
planned development, stock cooperative, or common interest development. 
 
“County” refers to the county of Los Angeles. 
 
“Court” means an open, unoccupied space, bounded on two or more sides by the 
walls of a building. “Inner court” is a court entirely enclosed within the exterior 
walls of a building. All other courts are referred to as outer courts. 
 



8 
 

“Day care center, adult” means a state-licensed facility designed to provide 
necessary care and supervision to persons 18 years of age or older on less than 
a 24-hour basis. “Adult day care centers” include the various types of adult day 
services as defined under state law that include “adult day care facilities,” “adult 
social day care facilities,” and “adult day health care facilities.” 
 
“Day care center, children” means a state licensed facility, other than a family 
day care home, providing nonmedical care and supervision to children under 18 
years of age on less than a 24-hour basis. “Child day care centers” shall include 
“day care centers” as defined under state law, which include infant centers, 
preschools, and extended day care facilities. 
 
“Deck” means a platform other than a balcony, either freestanding or attached to 
a building, without a roof, that is supported by pillars, posts, or walls. 
 
“Director,” “director of planning” and “planning director” refers to the community 
development director or his or her designee. 
 
Drive-Thru. See “Establishment with drive-up service.” 
 
“Driveway” means an appropriately paved and privately owned surface or road 
that provides access to off-street parking or loading facilities. 
 
“Duplex” means a structure consisting of two dwelling units. 
 
“Dwelling” or “dwelling unit” means a building, or portion thereof, consisting of 
one or more rooms, including a kitchen, which is designed and used or available 
for use exclusively as a single residence and which otherwise conforms to the 
provisions of this zoning code. 
 
“Dwelling, multiple-family” or “multifamily residential development” means one or 
more buildings located on a lot containing a total of two or more dwellings within 
a structure. 

 
“Dwelling, single-family” means a structure consisting of one dwelling unit, 
designed exclusively for the occupancy of a single household, no portion of 
which shall be rented, leased, or otherwise conveyed as additional dwelling units. 
 
“Emergency Shelter” Emergency Shelter means housing with minimal 
supportive services for homeless persons that is limited to occupancy of 
six months or less by a homeless person. No individual or household may 
be denied emergency shelter because of an inability to pay. 
 
“Establishment with drive-up service” means a business or institution providing 
services accessible to persons who remain in their automobiles. 
 
“Facilities maintenance and construction shops” means business establishments 
or activities supporting the maintenance of facilities on the same site as the 
primary use, including, but not limited to, machine shops, carpenter shops, 
electric shops, sheet metal shops, and mechanical and plumbing shops. 



9 
 

 
“Family” means an individual or two or more persons related by blood, marriage, 
or adoption, or a group of not more than five persons, excluding servants, who 
need not be related by blood, marriage, or adoption, living together in a dwelling 
unit, but not including limited residential care facilities. 
 
“Family day care home – large” means a dwelling that regularly provides care, 
protection, and supervision for 12 or fewer children under the age of 10, in the 
provider’s own home, for periods of less than 24 hours per day. 
 
“Family day care home – small” means a dwelling that regularly provides care, 
protection, and supervision for one to six children, inclusive, including children 
under the age of 10. 
 
“Fire arm sales or rearms business” means an establishment having at least 25 
percent of its gross floor area devoted to the sale of fire arms, ammunition and 
ammunition components, and hunting or shooting equipment. 
 
“Floor area, gross” means the total horizontal area of all the floors of a building 
included within the surrounding walls, exclusive of vent shafts and courts. 
 
“Floor area, net” means the total usable floor area within all floors of a building 
included within the surrounding walls. 

 
“Floor area ratio” means the numerical value obtained through dividing the gross 
floor area of a building or buildings by the total area of the lot or parcel of land on 
which such building or buildings are located. 
 
“Food and beverage sales” means a business establishment where the primary 
use involves the retail sales of food and beverages for off-site preparation and 
consumption. Typical uses include grocery markets and delicatessens. This 
category does not include liquor stores. 
 
“Food manufacturing” means a business establishment engaged in 
manufacturing, processing, and/or packaging of food products for wholesaling 
and distribution. This use may include incidental direct sale to consumers of the 
products manufactured on site, souvenirs, and ancillary tasting facilities for the 
public. 
 
“Garage, common parking garage” means a structure with a common vehicular 
entrance and exit which is used to park vehicles in parking spaces and which 
otherwise conforms to the requirements of this zoning code. 
 
“Garage, private” means a detached accessory building, or a portion of a main 
building on the same lot, enclosed on three sides and with a door capable of 
enclosing the fourth side, for the parking or temporary storage of vehicles owned 
by the occupants of the premises. 
 
“General plan” means the general plan of the city of Cudahy, consisting of the 
general plan and map, adopted by the city council. 



10 
 

 
“Grade, existing” means the surface of the ground or pavement at a specific 
location as it existed prior to disturbance in preparation for a construction project. 
 
“Grade, finished” means the finished surface elevation of the ground or pavement 
at a specific location after the completion of a construction project. 
 
“Grade, ground level” means the average level of the finished ground surface 
surrounding a building, measured at the center of all walls of the building. 
 
“Gradient” means the rate of vertical change of a ground surface expressed in a 
percentage and determined by dividing the vertical distance by the horizontal 
distance. 
 
“Guest house” refers to living quarters, having no kitchen facilities, located within 
an accessory building located on the same premises with a main building and 
occupied solely by members of the family, temporary guests, or persons 
permanently employed on the premises. 
 
“Hazardous waste” means any waste, or combination of wastes, which because 
of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics 
may: (a) exhibit toxicity, corrosivity, flammability, and/or reactivity; (b) cause, or 
significantly contribute to, an increase in serious irreversible, or incapacitating 
reversible, illness; or (c) present a substantial present or potential hazard to 
human health or the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, 
or disposed of, or otherwise managed. 
 
“Hazardous waste facility” means all contiguous land, structures, other 
appurtenances, and improvements within a property, used for handling, treating, 
storing, or disposing of hazardous wastes. 
 
“Health and physical fitness clubs” means private athletic clubs and gymnasiums 
including, but not limited to, weight training facilities, aerobic exercise floors, 
racquetball courts, swimming pools, and similar athletic facilities.  
 
Height. See “Building height.” 

 
“Home occupation” means an occupational activity carried on by the occupant(s) 
of a residential dwelling as a secondary use in connection with which there is no 
display, no walk-in customers, no stock-in-trade, nor commodity sold upon the 
premises, no person employed, and no mechanical equipment used, except such 
as is necessary for housekeeping purposes. 
 
“Hospital” means a facility providing medical, surgical, psychiatric, and/or 
emergency medical services to sick or injured persons, primarily on an in-patient 
basis. This classification includes incidental facilities for out-patient treatment, as 
well as training, research, and administrative services for patients and 
employees. 
 



11 
 

“Hotel” or “motel” means one or more buildings containing guest rooms or 
dwelling units, with one or more such rooms or units having a separate entrance 
leading directly from the outside of the building or from an interior court. Such 
facilities are designed to be used, or intended to be used, rented, or hired out for 
temporary or overnight accommodations for guests, and are offered primarily to 
patrons by signs or other advertising media. This classification may contain 
public meeting rooms and eating, drinking, and banquet services associated with 
the facility. 
 
“Household” means a single individual or group of individuals, unrelated or 
related by blood or marriage, residing in a dwelling unit. 
 
“Household pet” means a domesticated animal commonly maintained within a 
residence. 
 
“Junk yard” means the use of a lot, or the use of any portion of a lot, for the 
dismantling of machinery or for the storage or keeping for sale of parts and 
equipment resulting from such dismantling or wrecking, or for the storage or 
keeping of junk, including scrap metals or other scrap materials. 
 
“Kennel” means any lot or premises on which four or more dogs or cats at least 
four months of age are boarded or trained. 
 
“Kitchen” means a room in a building or dwelling unit that is used in the cooking 
or preparation of food. 
 
“Laboratory” means an establishment providing analytical or testing services, 
including, but not limited to, chemical labs, dental-medical labs, optical labs, and 
labs conducting mechanical, electrical, physical, or environmental tests, as well 
as research and development. 
 
“Landscaping” means the planting and maintenance of live trees, shrubs, ground 
cover, and lawn areas, including the installation of irrigation systems required by 
the provisions of this zoning code. “Landscaping” may include inorganic 
decorative materials of natural or manmade origin if used to accent or 
complement, but in no case imitate, the natural vegetation. Inorganic decorative 
materials used in landscaping may include rock, stone, wood, waterfalls, 
fountains, pools, sculptures, benches, and architectural screens, walls, and 
fences. 
 
“Liquor store” means a business establishment having at least 50 percent of its 
gross floor area used for the sale of alcoholic beverages intended for off-site 
consumption. 
 
“Loading space” means an off-street space on the same lot with a main building, 
or contiguous to a group of buildings, for the temporary parking of commercial 
vehicles while loading or unloading, and which has access from a street, alley, or 
other permanent means of ingress and egress. 
 



12 
 

“Lot” means real property with a separate and distinct number or other 
designation shown on a plat recorded in the office of the county recorder as a 
part of an approved subdivision. 
 
“Lot area” means the total area, measured in a horizontal plane, included within 
the lot lines of a lot or parcel of land. 
 
“Lot, corner” means a lot located at the intersection of two or more streets at an 
angle of not more than 135 degrees. If the angle is greater than 135 degrees, the 
lot shall be considered an interior lot. 
 
“Lot, cul-de-sac” means a lot fronting on, or with more than one-half (50 percent) 
of its lot frontage, on the turnaround end of a cul-de-sac street. 
“Lot depth” means the horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines, 
measured in the mean direction of the side lot lines. 
 
“Lot, interior” means a lot other than a corner or reversed corner lot. 

 
“Lot, key” means any lot where the side property line abuts the rear property line 
of one or more lots, and where such lots are not separated by an alley or any 
public way. 
 
“Lot line” means any line bounding a lot as defined in this chapter. 
 
“Lot line, exterior” means a lot line abutting a street. 
 
“Lot line, front” means, on an interior lot, the front lot line of the property line 
abutting the street, except in those cases where the latest tract deed restrictions 
specify another line as the front lot line. On a corner or reversed corner lot, the 
front lot line is the shorter property line abutting a street. On a through lot, or a lot 
with three or more sides abutting a street, or a corner or reversed corner lot with 
lot lines of equal length, the zoning administrator shall determine which property 
line shall be the front lot line for purposes of compliance with the setback 
provisions of this zoning code. 
 
“Lot line, interior” means a lot line not abutting a street. 
 
“Lot line, rear” means a lot line not abutting a street that is opposite and most 
distant from the front lot line. For triangular lots where there is no rear lot line, the 
rear lot line shall be defined as the point at which the side lot lines intersect. 
 
“Lot line, side” means any lot line that is not classified as a front lot line or rear lot 
line. 
 
“Lot line, zero” means a lot line that does not have any side yard setback. 
 
“Lot, reversed corner” means a corner lot, the side line of which is substantially a 
continuation of the front lot lines of the lot to its rear. 
 



13 
 

“Lot, through” means a lot having frontage on two parallel or approximately 
parallel streets. A through lot may have no rear lot line. 
 
“Lot width” means the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured at 
right angles to the lot depth line at a distance located midway between the front 
and rear lot lines. 
 
Exhibit 20.08-1 
Illustration of “Lot” Definitions* 
* Code reviser’s note: Exhibit 20.08-1 is on file in the office of the city clerk. 
 
“Main building” means a building that is designed, and used for, or intended to be 
used, to accommodate the principal use on the lot. In residential zones, any 
dwelling shall be considered the main building on the lot. 
 
“Maintenance and repair services” means an establishment providing household 
appliance repair, furniture repair, office machine repair, bicycle repair, or building 
maintenance services. This classification excludes maintenance and repair of 
motor vehicles, boats, or ships. 
 
“Mansard” or “mansard roof” means a roof having two slopes on all sides with the 
lower slope steeper than the upper one. 
 
“Manufactured housing” means a mobile home, or manufactured housing unit, as 
defined by and installed in accordance with California Health and Safety Code 
Sections 18008 and 18551, respectively, and factory-built housing as defined by 
California Health and Safety Code Section 19971. 
 
“Medical clinic” means any facility providing physical or mental health service, 
and medical or surgical care of the sick or injured, but shall not include in-patient 
or overnight accommodations. Activities included within this definition are health 
centers, health clinics, and doctors’ offices. 
 
“Mini-warehouse” or “self-storage facilities” means a warehouse operation 
serving the public where customers rent or lease, and have direct access to, 
individual storage areas, compartments, or rooms within a larger structure or 
structures provided for storage use. This use may also include limited caretaker 
facilities. 
 
“Mortuary” means an establishment providing services such as preparing the 
deceased for burial, and arranging and managing funerals and related services, 
and may include limited caretaker facilities. This classification excludes 
cemeteries, crematoriums, and columbariums. 
 
Motel. See “Hotel.” 
 
“Nonconforming improvement” means a building and/or improvement, or portion 
thereof, which does not conform to current zoning code regulations. 
 



14 
 

“Nonconforming structure, lawful or legal” means any structure or improvement 
that was lawfully established and in existence at the time this zoning code or any 
amendment became effective, but no longer complies with all of the applicable 
regulations and standards of the zone in which the structure or improvement is 
located. 
 
“Nonconforming use, lawful or legal” means any use of land or property that was 
lawfully established and in effect at the time this zoning code or any amendment 
became effective, but no longer complies with all of the applicable regulations 
and standards of the zone in which the use is located. 
 
“Offices, government” means administrative, clerical, or public contract offices of 
a government agency, including postal facilities, together with incidental storage 
and maintenance of vehicles. 
 
“Offices, medical” means offices or health facilities providing health services, 
including without limitation preventative and rehabilitation treatment, diagnostic 
services, and testing and analysis, but excluding in-patient services and 
overnight accommodations. This classification includes without limitation offices 
providing medical, dental, surgical, rehabilitation, podiatric, optometric, 
chiropractic, and psychiatric services, and medical or dental laboratories 
incidental to such offices. 
 
“Offices, professional” means offices for firms or organizations providing 
professional, executive, management or administrative services, such as 
architectural, engineering, real estate, insurance, investment, or legal offices. 
This classification excludes savings and loan associations, banks, and medical 
offices. 
 
“Off-street parking facility” means a lot, or portion thereof, improved and used for 
the parking of vehicles, including, but not limited to, enclosed garages and 
parking structures, open parking areas, aisles, driveways, and appurtenant 
landscaped planters and their improvements. 
 
“Outdoor advertising” means the use of signs or other measures soliciting public 
support or directing public attention to the sale, lease, hire, or use of any objects, 
products, services, or functions which are not produced, sold, or otherwise 
available on the premises where such signs are erected or maintained. 
 
“Outdoor living space” means either an open passive landscaped area 
specifically designed, improved, and maintained to enhance the architectural 
design, privacy, and general environmental quality of a residential development 
or an easily accessible public or private activity area specifically designed, 
improved, and maintained for outdoor living and/or recreation by occupants of the 
residential development. 
 
“Parcel” means a contiguous quantity of land owned by, or recorded as the 
property of, the same claimant or person. 
 



15 
 

“Parking space” means a space within an off street parking facility that has the 
minimum attributes of size, location, and design specified in Chapter 20.80 CMC 
(Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements). 

 
“Parks and recreation facilities” uses include, but are not limited to, land and 
interests in land; swimming pools; tennis, volleyball and basketball courts; 
baseball grounds; play areas; turf; sprinkler systems; community center 
buildings; recreation buildings; and other works, properties, structures, and 
facilities necessary or convenient for public park, playground, or recreation 
purposes. 
 
“Pawn shop” means a business establishment engaged in the buying or selling of 
new or secondhand merchandise and offering loans secured by personal 
property. 
 
“Performance art facilities” means a public building used for theatrical 
performances, concerts, recitals, and similar entertainment. This classification 
excludes commercial cinemas or theaters. 
 
“Personal convenience service” means a business establishment providing 
recurrently needed services of a personal nature. This classification includes, but 
is not limited to, barber and beauty shops, seamstresses, tailors, shoe repair 
shops, photocopying, retail dry cleaning establishments (excluding wholesale dry 
cleaning plants), self-service laundromats, and similar services. This 
classification excludes massage parlors, tattoo parlors, and/or skin piercing 
establishments. 
 
“Personal improvement service” means a business establishment providing 
instructional services or facilities, including, but not limited to, photography, fine 
arts, crafts, dance or music studios, driving schools, modeling agencies, reducing 
salons, and health or physical fitness clubs. Incidental instructional services 
associated with a retail use shall be classified as “retail sales” rather than 
“personal improvement services.” 
 
“Planned unit development” means the planning, construction, or implementation 
and operation of any use or structure, or a combination of uses and structures, 
on a single parcel of land based on a comprehensive and complete design or 
plan treating the entire complex of land, structures, and uses as a single project. 
 
“Plant nursery” means a site used to raise trees, shrubs, flowers, and other 
plants for sale or for transplanting, and where all merchandise (other than plants) 
is kept within an enclosed building or fully screened enclosure, and fertilizer of 
any type is stored and sold in package form only. 

 
“Public building” means a building owned and operated by a public agency for 
public use. 
“Public safety facility” means a public facility providing public safety and 
emergency services, including police and fire protection, and associated support 
and training facilities. 
 



16 
 

“Public utility facility” means a building or structure used by any public utility 
including, but not limited to, any gas treatment plant, reservoir, tank, or other 
storage facility, water treatment plant, well, reservoir, tank or other storage 
facility, electric generating plant, distribution or transmission substation, 
telephone switching or other communications plant, earth station or other 
receiving or transmission facility, any storage yard for public utility equipment or 
vehicles, and any parking lot for parking vehicles or automobiles to serve a public 
utility. The term “public utility” shall include every gas, electrical, telephone and 
water corporation serving the public or any portion thereof for which a certificate 
of public convenience and necessity has been issued by the state Public Utility 
Commission. 
 
“Recreational facility” means a publicly owned and operated recreational 
structure or building, such as a tennis court, swimming pool, multipurpose 
community building, or similar use. 
 
“Recyclable material” means a reusable material, including, but not limited to, 
metals, glass, plastic, and paper, and which is intended for reuse, remanufacture, 
or reconstitution for the purpose of using the altered form. “Recyclable material” 
shall not include refuse or hazardous materials. “Recyclable material” may 
include used motor oil collected and transported in accordance with Section 
25250.11 and Section 25143.2(b)(4) of the State Health and Safety Code. 
 
“Recycling facility” means a center for the collection and/or processing of 
recyclable materials. “Certified recycling facility” or “certified processor” refers to 
a recycling facility certified by the State Department of Conservation as meeting 
the requirements of the State Beverage Container Recycling and Lifter Reduction 
Act of 1986. A “recycling facility” does not include storage containers or 
processing activities located on the premises of a residential, commercial, or 
manufacturing use, and used solely for the recycling of material generated by 
such residential property, business, or manufacturer. 
 
“Recycling, collection facility” means a center for the acceptance of recyclable 
materials from the public by donation, redemption, or purchase. 
 
“Recycling, processing facility” means a building or enclosed space used for the 
collection and processing of recyclable materials. “Processing” means the 
preparation of material for efficient shipment, or to an end user’s specifications, 
by such means as baling, briquetting, compacting, flattening, grinding, crushing, 
mechanical sorting, shredding, cleaning, and remanufacturing. 
“Rental unit” means a housing unit leased for the occupancy of a residential 
household. 
 
“Residence” means one or more rooms designed, used, or intended to be used 
as permanent living quarters for a household, and not as temporary or overnight 
accommodations. 
 
“Residential care facility, limited” means a business establishment providing 24-
hour nonmedical care for six or fewer persons in need of personal services, 
supervision, protection, or assistance essential for sustaining the activities of 



17 
 

daily living. This classification includes only those services and facilities licensed 
by the state of California.  
 
Rest Home. See “Convalescent home.” 
 
“Restaurant, delivery” means a business establishment that is maintained, 
operated, and/or advertised or held out to the public as a place where orders for 
food and beverages may be placed in person or by telephone, facsimile, copier, 
or other off-site means of communication, from a limited menu, and which orders 
are delivered to a location directed by the customer. 
 
“Restaurant, fast-food” means a business establishment that is maintained, 
operated, and/or advertised or held out to the public as a place where food and 
beverages are served to customers from a serving counter in disposable 
containers or wrappers and where food and meals are generally prepared in 
advance for immediate sale, and which may include inside seating, drive-through 
service, delivery service, and take-out/carry-out service. 
 
“Restaurant, sit-down” means a business establishment that is maintained, 
operated, and/or advertised or held out to the public as a place where food and 
beverages are served to the public on demand from a menu during stated 
business hours, served in and on reusable containers and dinnerware, to be 
consumed on the premises primarily inside the building at tables, booths, or 
counters, with chairs, benches, or stools. This use may include incidental delivery 
service utilizing no more than two delivery vehicles. 
 
“Restaurant, take-out” means a business establishment that is maintained, 
operated, and/or advertised or held out to the public as a place where food and 
beverages are served in disposable containers or wrappers from a serving 
counter for consumption exclusively off the premises. 
 
“Retail sales” means a business establishment engaged in the retail sale of 
merchandise not specifically listed under another use classification as defined in 
this chapter. This classification includes, but is not limited to: department stores, 
clothing stores, furniture stores, and businesses retailing the following goods: 
toys, hobby materials, handcrafted items, jewelry, cameras, photographic 
supplies, books, electronic equipment, records, sporting goods, kitchen utensils, 
hardware, appliances, antiques, art supplies, paint and wallpaper, carpeting and 
floor covering, office supplies, bicycles, and new automotive parts and 
accessories (excluding service and installation). This classification excludes thrift 
shops and pawnshops. 
 
“Room” means an unsubdivided portion of the interior of a dwelling, excluding 
bathrooms, kitchens, closets, hallways, and service porches. 
 
“School, private” means an educational institution having a curriculum 
comparable to that required in the public schools of the state of California. 
 
“Secondary residential unit” means a detached dwelling unit that provides 
complete, independent living facilities for one or more persons. A secondary 



18 
 

residential unit shall include permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 
cooking, and sanitation on the same lot on which the primary unit is situated. 
 
“Senior housing project” means a housing development in which 100 percent of 
the project rental units are intended to be occupied by persons who are 62 years 
of age or older, or married couples, of which one spouse is over 62 years of age.  
 
Service Station. See “Vehicle – service station.” 
 
“Setback” means a required open space on an improved lot that is unoccupied by 
buildings and unobstructed by structures from the ground upward, except for 
projections and accessory buildings permitted by the provisions of this zoning 
code. Setbacks shall be measured as the shortest distance between a property 
line and the nearest vertical support or wall of the building, enclosed or covered 
porch, or other structure. 
 
Exhibit 20.08-2 
Illustration of “Setback” Definitions* 
 
* Code reviser’s note: Exhibit 20.08-2 is on file in the office of the city clerk. 
 
“Setback, between buildings” or “setback between dwelling units” means a 
required open space between separate buildings or between separate dwelling 
units on the same lot or building site. Such setback shall be measured as the 
minimum distance between the nearest vertical support or wall of each building 
or enclosed or covered porch. 
 
“Setback, exterior side” means a side setback abutting a street. 
 
“Setback, front” means a setback extending across the full width of the front of 
the lot, the minimum and/or average dimensions of which are determined by the 
property development standard of the applicable zone in which such lot is 
located. 
 
“Setback, rear” means a setback extending across the full width of the rear of a 
lot, the minimum and/or average dimensions of which are determined by the 
property development standards of the applicable zone in which such lot is 
located. 
 
“Setback, side” means a setback extending from the required front setback to the 
required rear setback, or to the front and/or rear property lines where no front 
and/or rear setback is required by the provisions of this zoning code, the 
minimum and average dimensions of which are determined by the property 
development standards of the applicable zone in which such lot is located. 
 
“Sign” means any device used for visual communication that includes any 
announcement, declaration, demonstration, display, illustration, or insignia, 
visible from the outside, and which is used to advertise or promote the interests 
of any person, business, group, or enterprise. 

 



19 
 

Exhibit 20.08-3 
Illustration of “Sign” Definitions* 
 
* Code reviser’s note: Exhibit 20.08-3 is on file in the office of the city clerk. 
“Sign, A-frame” means a freestanding sign usually hinged at the top or attached 
in a similar manner, and widening at the bottom to form a shape similar to the 
letter “A.” Such signs are usually designed to be portable, and are not considered 
to be permanent signs or displays. 

 
“Sign, animated” means any sign that uses movement or change in lighting, 
either natural or artificial, to depict action or create a special effect or scene. 
“Animated signs” shall include, but are not limited to: any sign, all or a portion of 
which rotates, moves, or appears to move in some manner by mechanical, 
electrical, natural, or other means; and flashing riders, arrows, and other similar 
attachments which, by method or manner of illumination or lighting, flash on or 
off, wink, or blink, with varying light intensity, show motion or create the illusion of 
motion, or revolve in a manner to create the illusion of being on or off. “Animated 
signs” do not include time-temperature signs. 
 
“Sign, area” means the entire area within a single continuous perimeter that 
encloses the extreme limits of writing, representation, emblem or any figure of 
similar character, together with any frame, background area of sign, structural 
trim, or other material or color forming an integral part of the display or used to 
differentiate such sign from the background against which it is placed. Those 
portions of the sign that support (or the base) and that do not function as a sign 
shall not be considered part of the sign area. 
 
“Sign, awning or canopy” means a nonelectric sign that is printed on, painted on, 
or attached to an awning or canopy. 
 
“Sign, balloon” means one or more balloons used as a permanent or temporary 
sign or as a means of directing attention to any business or profession, or to a 
commodity or service sold, offered, or manufactured, or to any entertainment. 
 
“Sign, banner or flag” means any cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, or similar material 
used for advertising purposes attached to or pinned on or from any structure, 
staff, pole, line, framing, or vehicle, but not including official national, state, or 
municipal flags. 
 
“Sign, billboard” means a structure of any kind erected or used for promoting or 
advertising an interest other than that of a business, individual, products, or 
service available on the premises where the sign is located. Signs of an official 
nature are not considered billboard signs. 
 
“Sign, construction” means a temporary sign erected on the lot on which 
construction is taking place, indicating the names of the architects, engineers, 
contractors, painters, and similar artisans, and the owner, financial supporters, 
sponsors, and similar individuals or firms having a major role or interest with 
respect to the structure or project. 
“Sign copy” means the words, letters, or symbols displayed on a sign. 



20 
 

 
“Sign, directional” means a sign designed solely to provide direction or guidance 
to pedestrians or vehicular traffic. 
 
“Sign, directory” means a sign listing the tenants or occupants and their suite 
number of a building or center. 
 
“Sign, freestanding” means a sign that is completely supported by structures or 
other supports that are placed on or anchored in the ground and are independent 
from any building or other structure. 
 
“Sign, hanging” means any sign which is supported or suspended from the 
underside of an awning, canopy, parapet overhang of a building, or pedestrian 
arcade. 
 
“Sign, identification” means a sign providing the name, address, and lawful use of 
the activity to which it relates and contains no other form of advertisement. 
“Sign, information” means a sign which provides a service, direction, or courtesy 
information intended to assist the public and which is not displayed for the 
general purpose of advertising products or services. Information signs shall 
include the location of business facilities (e.g., store entrances, walk-up windows, 
self-service operations); and courtesy information (hours of operation, menus, 
“credit cards accepted,” restrooms, “no solicitors”). “Information signs” do not 
include fuel price signs or traffic directorial signs, nor shall they be part of any 
sign whose primary function is business identification. 
 
“Sign, logo” means a symbol, design, or graphic representation, separate from 
the sign text that identifies a business, activity, product, or company. 

 
“Sign, menu board” means a portable or freestanding sign displaying the type 
and price of food and beverages sold in connection with permitted outdoor 
dining, or a freestanding sign permanently affixed to the ground in connection 
with drive through restaurant service. This definition is not meant to apply to 
signs displaying menu information that are attached to a building (such signs are 
included within definitions for wall or projecting signs, whichever the case may 
be). 
 
“Sign, monument” means an independent structure other than a pole sign 
supported from grade to the bottom of the sign with the appearance of having a 
solid base. 
 
“Sign, pennant” means any all-weather lightweight plastic, fabric, or other 
material, whether or not containing a message of any kind, suspended from a 
rope, wire, or string, usually in series, designed to move in the wind. 
“Sign, pole” means a freestanding sign permanently affixed to the ground by a 
single pole. 
 
“Sign, political” means a temporary sign supporting or opposing political 
candidates, ballot propositions, or issues of national, state, or local concern. 
 



21 
 

“Sign, portable” means any sign not permanently attached to the ground or other 
permanent structure, or a sign designed to be transported, including, but not 
limited to, signs designed to be transported by means of wheels; A-frames; 
sandwich board signs; and umbrellas used for advertising. 
 
“Sign, projecting” means any sign which projects from and is supported by a wall 
of a building with the display surface of the sign perpendicular to the building 
wall. 
 
“Sign, pylon” means a freestanding sign other than a pole sign, permanently 
affixed to the ground by supports, but not having the appearance of a solid base. 
“Sign, reader board and changeable copy” means a sign announcing events, or 
containing text and/or graphics, the message of which is periodically changed. 
 
“Sign, real estate” means a temporary sign advertising real property for sale, 
rent, or lease. 
 
“Sign, roof” means a sign erected on a roof or projecting above the eave of a 
building or coping of a parapet. A sign erected on top of a canopy, arcade, 
awning, or marquee is a roof sign. 
 
“Sign, temporary” means any sign not constructed or intended for long-term use. 
“Temporary signs” include, but are not limited to, banners, flags, pennants, 
balloons, dirigibles, beacons, and searchlights. 
 
“Sign, time-temperature” means an electronic or mechanical device that indicates 
time and/or temperature, but contains no business identification or advertising. 
 
“Sign, vehicle” means any sign permanently or temporarily attached to or placed 
on a vehicle or trailer. 
 
“Sign, wall” means any sign affixed to or painted directly upon a building face or 
wall in such a manner that the face of the sign is substantially parallel to the 
plane of the building face or wall. 
 
“Sign, window” means any sign that is displayed on or through a window and 
which may be viewed from a street, walkway, parking lot, or pedestrian area. 
 
“Snack shop” means a business establishment that is maintained, operated, 
and/or advertised or held out to the public as serving snack foods, such as 
donuts, ice cream, yogurt, candy, cookies, bakery items, beverages, and similar 
items to be consumed either on the premises or off the premises. 
 
“Solid fill” means any noncombustible materials insoluble in water, such as soil, 
rock, sand, or gravel, that can be used for grading land or filling depressions. 
 
“Story” means “story” as defined in the currently adopted and effective Uniform 
Building Code of the city. 
 



22 
 

“Story, half” means a story with at least two of its opposite sides situated 
immediately under a sloping roof, with the floor area of said story not in excess of 
two-thirds of the floor area of the floor immediately below it. 
 
“Street” means a public thoroughfare or right-of- way acquired for use as such, or 
an approved private thoroughfare or right-of-way, other than an alley, which 
affords the principal means of access to abutting property. “Street” shall include 
all major and secondary highways, traffic collector streets, and local streets. 

 
Street, Center-Line. See “Center-line.” 
 
“Street line” means the boundary line between the street right-of-way and 
abutting property. 
 
“Structural alteration” means any change in the supporting members of a 
building, such as bearing walls, columns, beams, girders, floor joists, ceiling 
joints, or roof rafters. 
 
“Structure” means any physical improvement constructed or erected, including an 
edifice or building of any kind, or any piece of work artificially constructed or 
composed of parts jointed together in some definite manner, and which structure 
requires location on or in the ground or is attached to another improvement or in 
the ground, including fences, walls, swimming and wading pools, and patios. 
 
 
“Supportive Housing” means housing with no limit on length of stay, that 
is occupied by the target population, and that is linked to onsite or offsite 
services that assist the supportive housing resident in retaining the 
housing, improving his or her health status, and maximizing his or her 
ability to live and, when possible, work in the community; as defined by 
Section 50675.14 of the Health and Safety Code. Supportive Housing shall 
be considered a residential use of property, and shall be subject to only 
those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same type 
in the same zone. 
 
“Swap meet” means any indoor or outdoor place, location, or activity where new 
or used goods or secondhand personal property is offered for sale or exchange 
to the general public by a multitude of individual licensed vendors, usually in 
compartmentalized spaces; and where a fee may be charged to prospective 
buyers for admission, or a fee may be charged for the privilege of offering or 
displaying such merchandise. The term “swap meet” is interchangeable with, and 
applicable to, flea markets, auctions, open air markets, farmer’s markets, or other 
similarly named or labeled activities; but the term does not include the usual 
supermarket or department store retail operations. 
 
“Structure, advertising” means a structure existing, erected, or maintained to 
serve exclusively as a stand, frame, or background for the support or display of 
signs. 
 



23 
 

“Tandem parking” means a sequence of two or more parking spaces, occurring 
in a single vertical or horizontal row, one behind the other, connected by the 
smaller side of the parking stall, usually front and back. 
 
“Target population” means persons, including persons with disabilities, 
and families who are “homeless,” as that term is defined by Section 11302 
of Title 42 of the United States Code, or who are “homeless youth,” as that 
term is defined by paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of Section 11139.3 of the 
Government Code. 
 
“Thrift shop” means a business establishment primarily engaged in the sale of 
used clothing, household goods, furniture, or appliances. This classification does 
not include antique shops. 
 
“Townhouse” means a single-family dwelling which visually appears to share one 
or more common walls with an adjacent single-family dwelling,  but which, in fact, 
is structurally and functionally independent of any other single-family dwelling. 

 
“Trailer coach” means any vehicle, with or without motor power, designed or 
used for human habitation and constructed to travel on the public thoroughfares 
in accordance with the provisions of the California State Vehicle Code. 
 
“Trailer park” or “mobile home park” mean a site designed and equipped for the 
harboring, parking, or storing of one or more trailers or mobile homes being used 
as living and/or sleeping quarters. 

 
“Trailer site” means that portion of a trailer park designated for use or occupancy 
of one trailer coach and including all appurtenant facilities. 
 
“Transfer station, waste” means an area, including any necessary building or 
structures, for the temporary storage and the salvage of rubbish, garbage, or 
industrial waste. This definition also includes material recovery facilities. 

 
“Transitional Housing” means a building or buildings configured as rental 
housing developments, but operated under program requirements that call 
for the termination of assistance and recirculation of the assisted unit to 
another eligible program recipient at some predetermined future point in 
time, which shall be no less than six months; as defined in Section 50675.2 
of the Health and Safety Code. Transitional Housing does not include state 
licensed residential care facilities, also referred to as care homes. 
Transitional Housing shall be considered a residential use of property, and 
shall be subject to only those restrictions that apply to other residential 
dwellings of the same type in the same zone. 
 
“Triplex” means a structure containing three individual residential dwelling units. 
 
“Trucking terminal” means a business engaged in the storage and distribution of 
goods having more than five heavy trucks (having a rating of more than 10,000 
pounds and/or an unladen weight of more than 6,000 pounds) on the premises at 



24 
 

any one time, but excluding trucking accessory to another industrial use on the 
site. 
 
“Use” means the purpose for which land or a building is arranged, designed, or 
intended, or for which either land or a building is or may be occupied, utilized, or 
maintained. 
 
“Variance” means a modification of a literal provision of this zoning code, granted 
by an administrative or quasi-judicial act in accordance with the provisions of this 
zoning code. 
 
“Vehicle – automobile washing” means a business engaged in the washing, 
waxing, cleaning, and/or detailing of automobiles or similar light vehicles. 
 
“Vehicle – body and fender shop” means a business establishment involved in 
the repairing, restoring, and/or painting of the bodies of motor vehicles. 
 
“Vehicle – rentals” means a business engaged in the sale, lease and/or rental of 
automobiles and light trucks (having a rating of less than 10,001 pounds, an 
unladen weight of less than 6,001 pounds, and equipped with an open box-type 
bed less than nine feet in length), including storage and incidental maintenance 
and repair. 
 
“Vehicle – repair garage” means any site and improvements used for the repair 
and maintenance of automobiles, motorcycles, light trucks (having a rating of 
less than 10,001 pounds, an unladen weight of less than 6,001 pounds, and 
equipped with an open box-type bed less than nine feet in length), or other 
similar passenger vehicles licensed by the State Department of Motor Vehicles. 
This classification shall not include the repair or maintenance of motor homes or 
commercial vehicles as defined in Section 3-7.901 of this zoning code. “Motor 
vehicle repair garage” shall be construed broadly to include the place where the 
following types of commonly known garage or shop activities occur: tune-up and 
muffler work, parts and tire sales and installation, wheel and brake work, engine 
and transmission overhaul, and installation of car alarms and car stereos. “Motor 
vehicle repair garage” shall not include automobile wrecking, dismantling, or 
salvage, motor vehicle body and fender shops, or tire retreading or recapping. 
 
“Vehicle – service station” means a business establishment primarily engaged in 
the retail sale of vehicle fuel and lubricants. This classification includes facilities 
having service bays for vehicle service and repair. Such service and repair may 
include the sale of tires, batteries, and other parts and products related to the 
operation of a motor vehicle; minor tune-up; lubrication and parts replacement; 
nonmechanical car-washing, polishing, and waxing; and other light work related 
to preventive maintenance and upkeep, but may not include maintenance and 
repair of large trucks or other large vehicles, or body and fender work on any 
vehicles. 
 
“Vehicle – towing/storage” means a business establishment providing towing 
and/or storage of operative or inoperative vehicles. This classification includes 



25 
 

the storage of parking tow-aways, impound yards, and storage lots for buses and 
recreational vehicles, but does not include vehicle dismantling. 
 
“Visual obstruction” means any physical obstruction which limits the visibility of 
persons in motor vehicles or pedestrians approaching intersecting or intercepting 
streets, alleys, driveways, or other public rights-of-way. 
 
“Wall” or “fence” means a structure forming a physical barrier, including, but not 
limited to, concrete, concrete block, wood, or other materials which are solid and 
are so assembled as to form a barrier. 
 
“Warehouse retail” means an off-price or wholesale retail/warehouse 
establishment exceeding 70,000 square feet of gross floor area and offering a full 
range of general merchandise to the public. 
 
“Warehouse retail, specialty” means an off price or wholesale retail/warehouse 
establishment exceeding 30,000 square feet of gross floor area and offering a 
limited range of merchandise, serving both wholesale and retail customers. 
 
“Wholesaling, distribution and storage” means a business engaged in storage 
and distribution, and having five or fewer heavy trucks (having a rating of more 
than 10,000 pounds and/or an unladen weight of more than 6,000 pounds) on the 
premises at any one time. Wholesaling establishments may include no more than 
10 percent or 1,000 square feet of floor area, whichever is less, for the incidental 
direct sale to consumers of only those goods distributed wholesale. This 
classification excludes “mini-warehouse” or “self-storage facilities” and “vehicle – 
towing/storage.” 
 
“Wholesale dry-cleaning plant” means a dry cleaning establishment having at 
least 51 percent of its gross sales to licensed dry cleaners. “Without prejudice” is 
a term used when rights or privileges are not waived or lost. 
 
“Yard” means an open space on a lot or parcel of land, other than a court, 
unoccupied and unobstructed by a building from the ground upward. 
 
“Yard, front” means a yard extending across the full width of the lot or parcel of 
land. The depth of a required front yard shall be a specified horizontal distance 
between the front lot line, where the front lot line is coterminous with the street 
line, and the front elevation of the structure located on the parcel. 
 
“Yard, rear” means a yard extending across the full width of the lot or parcel of 
land. The depth of a required rear yard shall be a specified horizontal distance 
between the rear lot line and a line parallel thereto on the lot or parcel of land. 
 
“Yard, side” means a yard extending from the required front yard, or the front lot 
line where no front yard is required, to the required rear yard or the rear lot line 
where no rear yard is required. The width of a required side yard shall be a 
specified horizontal distance between each side lot line and a line parallel thereto 
on the lot or parcel of land. Where a side yard is bounded by a street, the width 
of such required side yard shall be a specified horizontal distance between the 



26 
 

side lot line on the street side, where said side lot line is coterminous with the 
street line of a fully widened street or the ultimate street line of a partially 
widened street, and a line 
 
Exhibit 20.08-4 
Illustration of “Yard” Definitions 
 
* Code reviser’s note: Exhibit 20.08-4 is on file in the office of the city clerk. 

 
“Zoning map” means the official zoning map delineating the boundaries of zones 
within the city of Cudahy. (Ord. 587 § 20-1.0200). 

 
 
 
Section 20.64.040: Principal uses permitted in the Zone LDR district.  

(Corresponding Numbers of subsequent permitted uses will shift accordingly with the 
addition of “transitional and supportive housing”) 
 

Premises in Zone LDR may be used for the following principal uses: 
 
(1) One-family dwellings, including site-built homes and manufactured housing. 
(2) The growing of nursery stock, field crops, tree, bush and berry crops, and 

vegetable or flower gardening. The provisions of this section shall not be 
construed to permit roadside stands, retail sales from the premises, or signs 
advertising products produced on the premises. 

(3) Parking lots as a transitional use on lots or parcels of land adjoining or across 
an alley from any commercial or manufacturing zone pursuant to the 
provisions of CMC 20.76.320, Principal uses subject to special conditions. 

(4) Home occupations; provided, that there is: 
(a) No display or storage of goods, wares, merchandise, or stock in trade 
maintained on the premises; and 
(b) No one, other than one person residing on the lot where the home occupation 
is located, shall be regularly employed in such occupation; and 
(c) No equipment used in conjunction with such occupation, which emits dust, 
fumes, noise, odor, etc., which would or could interfere with the peaceful use and 
enjoyment of adjacent properties; and 
(d) Not more than 200 square feet of the floor space of the dwelling devoted to 
such use; and 
(e) No appreciable increase of traffic, pedestrian and vehicular, by reason of the 
dwelling devoted to such use; and 
(f) No alteration of the structure, nor the use of any signs not otherwise permitted 
in the zone in which the occupation is located; and 
(g) Authorization to inspect home offices once a month to assure compliance with 
the above items. (Ord. 587 § 20-1.1615). 

 
(5)Transitional and Supportive Housing; subject to the following 

restrictions: 
 



27 
 

(a) Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing shall be considered a 
residential use of property, and shall be subject only to those restrictions 
that apply to other residential dwellings of the same type in the same zone. 
 
 
Section 20.68.080: CC Zone – Principal uses permitted.  

(Corresponding Numbers of Subsequent permitted uses will shift accordingly with 
the addition of “emergency shelters”).  

 
Premises in Zone CC may be used for the following principal uses, provided all 
sales are retail only and all retail sales are of new merchandise, except as 
otherwise listed: 

 
(1) Antique shops. 
(2) Appliance stores, household. 
(3) Art supply shops. 
(4) Automobile supply stores. 
(5) Bakery shops, including baking only when incidental to retail sales from the 
premises. 
(6) Barber and beauty shops. 
(7) Bicycle sales. 
(8) Bicycle, scooter, and similar vehicle rentals. 
(9) Blueprint shop. 
(10) Book stores. 
(11) Candy stores. 
(12) Children’s clothing apparel stores. 
(13) Children’s book store. 
(14) Clothing stores. 
(15) Confectionery stores. 
(16) Costume design studios. 
(17) Delicatessens (deli). 
(18) Department stores. 
(19) Dress shops. 
(20) Drug stores. 
(21) Dry goods stores. 
 
 
(22) Emergency Shelters; subject to the following restrictions: 

(a) Occupancy. A maximum of 15 beds or persons may be served nightly, 
with associated support service not open to the public. Any Emergency 
Shelter for Homeless with greater than 15 beds shall be subject to approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit consistent with CMC Chapter 20.44. 

 

(b) Parking. One (1) vehicle parking space shall be provided per 5 beds. A 
covered and secured area for bicycle parking shall be provided for use by 
staff and clients, commensurate with demonstrated need, but no less than 
a minimum of eight (8) bike parking spaces. 



28 
 

 

(c) Waiting and Intake Area. A client waiting and intake area shall be 
provided and contain a minimum of ten (10) square feet per bed provided at 
the facility. The client waiting and intake area shall be screened from the 
public right of way by a solid wall of at least six (6) feet in height, and shall 
be sufficient in size to accommodate all persons waiting to enter the 
facility. 

 

(d) Support Services. Emergency Shelters shall allocate sufficient areas on 
site, outside of any required landscape areas, to provide the following 
minimal support services: 

   1. Food preparation and dining areas 

   2. Laundry facilities 

   3. Restrooms and showers 

   4. Areas to secure and store client belongings 

5. Indoor and outdoor recreational facilities and/or open space 

6. A private area providing referral services to assist shelter 
clients in entering programs aimed at obtaining permanent 
shelter and income. Referral services refers to the initial 
assessment of a homeless client to identify the areas in which 
assistance is needed, and connecting clients with appropriate 
off-site programs and services depending on their need. 

 

(e) Hours of Operation. Emergency Shelters for Homeless providing less 
than 15 beds are not required to be open 24 hours a day. Clients for 
Emergency Shelters for Homeless shall have a specified check out time as 
detailed in the Management and Operation Plan, but may remain on the 
premises to utilize onsite services offered. 

 

(f) Length of Stay. The length of stay of an individual client shall not exceed 
six (6) months within a twelve (12) month period; days of stay need not be 
consecutive. 

 

(g) Management and Operation Plan. The applicant or operator shall submit 
a Management and Operation Plan for the Emergency Shelter for review 
during the over the counter approval process for review and feedback  by 



29 
 

the Community Development Director or designee in consultation with Law 
Enforcement at the time the project is proposed, prior to issuance of 
permits. If Site Plan Review applies, then the Management and Operational 
Plan should be submitted and reviewed concurrently with those 
applications. The Plan shall remain active throughout the life of the facility, 
with any changes subject to review and approval by the Community 
Development Director or designee in consultation with the Chief of Police. 
The Plan should be based on “Best Practices” and include, but not limited 
to, a security plan, procedures, lists of services, staff training, “good 
neighbor” communication plan, client transportation and active 
transportation plan, ratio of staff to clients, client eligibility and intake and 
check out process, detailed hours of operation, and an ongoing outreach 
plan to Cudahy homeless population. The City may inspect the 
 facility at any time for compliance with the facility’s Operational Plan 
and other applicable laws and standards. 

 

(h) Restrooms. The number of toilet and showers shall comply with 
applicable Building Codes and Plumbing Codes. 

 

(i) Trash Enclosure and Loading Zone. Each facility shall have a trash 
enclosure and loading zone as provided in CMC Chapters 20.64 and 20.80. 

 

(j) Applicable Laws. The facility shall comply with all other laws, rules and 
regulations  that apply, including Building and Fire codes and shall be 
subject to City inspections prior to Operational Plan approval. 

 
(23) Equipment rental services, including rototillers, power mowers, sanders, 
power saws, cement mixers, and other similar equipment. 
(24) Feed and grain sales. 
(25) Fire stations. 
(26) Florist shops. 
(27) Food markets. 
(28) Furniture stores. 
(29) Furniture repair and restoration. 
(30) Gift shops. 
(31) Hardware stores. 
(32) Hat cleaning and blocking establishments. 
(33) Health food stores. 
(34) Hobby supply shops. 
(35) Ice cream shops. 
(36) Ice sales, not to include ice plants. 



30 
 

(37) Interior decorating shops. 
(38) Jewelry stores with incidental repairs. 
(39) Knit shops. 
(40) Leather goods stores. 
(41) Libraries. 
(42) Locksmith shops. 
(43) Manager’s office, property management office. 
(44) Manicure parlors. 
(45) Manufacturer’s agent, carrying no inventory other than samples. 
(46) Meat markets, not to include slaughtering. 
(47) Medical clinics. 
(48) Millinery shops; hats. 
(49) Printing services. 
(50) Mortuaries. 
(51) Museums. 
(52) Music stores. 
(53) Newspaper stores. 
(54) Notions or novelty stores. 
(55) Offices, business and professional. 
(56) Paint and wallpaper stores. 
(57) Parks and playgrounds. 
(58) Pet shops. 
(59) Pet supply shops. 
(60) Photography shops. 
(61) Photography studios. 
(62) Plumbing shops. 
(63) Police stations. 
(64) Post offices. 
(65) Pottery stores. 
(66) Poultry markets, not to include slaughtering. 
(67) Public health centers. 
(68) Radio and television stores. 
(69) Real estate offices. 
(70) Shoe repair shops. 
(71) Shoe stores. 
(72) Sporting goods stores. 
(73) Stationery stores. 
(74) Tailor shops. 
(75) Tile sales, ornamental. 
(76) Tobacco shops. 
(77) Tourist information centers. 
(78) Toy shops. 
(79) Typewriter sales and incidental repairs. 
(80) Watch repair shops. 
(81) Wearing apparel shops. 
(82) Other similar uses that the planning commission finds to fall within the intent 
and purpose of this zone, that will not be more obnoxious or materially 
detrimental to the public welfare, and which the planning commission finds to be 
of a comparable nature and of the same class as the uses enumerated in this 
section. (Ord. 587 § 20-1.1740). 



31 
 

 
 Section 4: In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
and the State CEQA Guidelines, the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from 
CEQA review pursuant to California Code of Regulations section 15061(b)(3), in that 
the proposed amendment to the Zoning Code will not have a significant effect on the 
environment. A Notice of Exemption will be filed upon adoption of this ordinance. 
 
 Section 5: Any provision of the Cudahy Municipal Code or appendices thereto 
that conflicts with the provisions of this Ordinance, to the extent of such conflict and 
no further, is hereby repealed or modified to the extent necessary to affect the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 6: If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part 
thereof.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, 
subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective 
of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

 Section 7: The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of 
this Ordinance.  The City Clerk shall cause the same to be published once in the 
official newspaper within fifteen (15) days after its adoption.  This Ordinance shall 
become effective thirty (30) days after adoption. 

  
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Cudahy on this 2nd day of December, 2014. 
 
 
 

       
Chris Garcia 
Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST      

 
 
 

__________________________   
Donna G. Schwartz, CMC 
Interim City Clerk     

 
 
 
 
 
 



32 
 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 
 
 
I, Donna G. Schwartz, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that 
Ordinance 634 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy on 4th day of November, 2014, and adopted and passed at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the City of Cudahy held on the 2nd day of December, 2014, by the 
following vote: 
 

AYES:  Council Member(s):  
 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
 
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 

 
 

      
Donna G. Schwartz, CMC 
Interim City Clerk 



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

STAFF REPORT 
!
Date:   December 2, 2014 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 

Subject: Renewal of the City-County Municipal Services Agreement with the 	
	 	 County of Los Angeles Department of Animal Care and Control for 	
	 	 Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Service Level Request 

RECOMMENDATION 

The City Council is requested to approve a services agreement with the County of Los Angeles 
Department of Animal Care and Control for animal control services effective July 1, 2014 through 
June 30, 2019 and FY 2014-15 Service Level Request - Billing Rates.  
!
BACKGROUND 

1. On November 18, 2013 a one-year contract (effective July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014) was signed 
with the County of Los Angeles Department of Animal Care and Control. 


2. On March 31, 2014 the City received correspondence from the County of Los Angeles 
Department of Animal Care and Control Administrative Office.  The letter advised the City that 
our one-year contract was due to expire June 30, 2014.  At that time they advised us that the 
County Auditor-Controller was developing the contract city billing rates for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2014-15. (See attachment A)


3. On September 24, 2014 staff requested a copy of the new service agreement effective July 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2019 and new billing rates for FY 2014-15. (See attachment B and C) An 
email was provided to us with the service contract on the same day. 


!
ANALYSIS 

Services are provided by the Department of Animal Care and Control Administrative through a 
General Services Agreement (five-year contract set for renewal June 30, 2015) with the County of 

�  of 21
Staff Report 
12/2/2014

Item Number

10G



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

Los Angeles.  This service agreement specifies that the County Auditor-Controller will determine 
rates with all County of Los Angeles services. 


The Department of Animal Care and Control provides the City kennel services, dog license 
processing, dead animal disposal, field services and animal license enforcement. The current five-
year City-County Municipal Services Agreement for the above mentioned services expired June 30, 
2014.  


Staff intends to lower animal control costs for Animal License Enforcement Services since one 
hundred percent of revenue collected through License Enforcement (which the City intends to 
coordinate an increase in the City) on behalf of the City is credited to our monthly invoice, this 
includes license fees, penalties, and field enforcement fees.  


Additionally, if needed the City may terminate this Agreement as of the first day of July of any year 
upon notice in writing to the other party of not less than 60 days prior thereto. The agreement may 
also be terminated at anytime, with or without cause, by either party upon written notice given to 
the other party at least 180 days before the date specified for such termination. 


!
CONCLUSION 

If the service agreement is not approved the City will not receive animal care and control services 
such as kennel services, dog license processing, dead animal disposal, field services or animal 
license enforcement. 


If the service agreement is approved, staff will work closely with the County to agree on a time and 
scope of service to assure animal license enforcement services take place in the City to ensure 
program costs fit within our budget parameters.  


!
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

As noted in the FY 2014-15 City Budget, $30,000 from the General Fund has been allocated for 
animal regulation. 


!
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Services Agreement Correspondence, March 31, 2014

B. City-County Municipal Services Agreement County of Los Angeles Department of Animal Care 

and Control and City of Cudahy 

C. City-County Municipal Services Agreement County of Los Angeles Department of Animal Care 

and Control and City of Cudahy FY 2014-15 Service Level Request - Billing Rates

D. County of Los Angeles General Services Agreement (five-year contract/expiration June 30, 

2015)

�  of 22
Staff Report 
12/2/2014





















































"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

STAFF REPORT 
!
Date:   December 2, 2014 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members


From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director

	 	 By: Jennifer Hernandez, Acting Human Resources Specialist 

Subject:	 A Resolution of the City of Cudahy City of Cudahy Approving Projects/
	 	 Programs for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding 	
	 	 During the Fiscal Year 2015-16 

RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council is requested to:

1. Conduct a public hearing;

2. Consider all public testimony; and

3. Adopt Resolution No. 14-85, approving Projects/Programs for Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Funding during the Fiscal Year (FY)  2015-16.
!
BACKGROUND 
1. The Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is responsible for 

administering the CDBG program.  In order to receive funds, a city must submit an annual 
application to HUD.  In the case of Cudahy, the City submits its application through the Los 
Angeles County Community Development Commission (CDC). The primary national objectives 
of the CDBG program are to undertake activities that benefit low and moderate-income 
persons, and/or eliminate slum and blight conditions.  The program requires that a minimum of 
70 percent of the program funds be expended on activities that benefit low and moderate-
income persons.


2. Prior to each new fiscal year, the CDC notifies the City of its final CDBG allocation for the 
coming fiscal year.  At this time, the CDC also distributes the forms that the City must submit to 
receive these CDBG funds and conduct training sessions on the preparation of these forms. 


�  of 41
Staff Report 
12/2/2014

Item Number

11A



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

3. On November 14, 2014, City Staff reviewed a variety of projects and prepared the 
recommendation list of projects/programs/activities.


4. On November 19, 2014, a public hearing notice soliciting suggestions and recommendations for 
the use of CDBG funds for FY 2015-16 was posted at City Hall and other public buildings within 
the City.  The public hearing notice informed the community that the Community Development 
Advisory Board/Planning Commission would consider the various suggestions it receives at this 
public hearing prior to recommending specific projects and budgets for approval by the City 
Council.


!
ANALYSIS 
The purpose of this public hearing is to review the City’s current use of CDBG funds and, more 
importantly, to determine the projects to be undertaken using CDBG funds during the coming fiscal 
year.  It would be appropriate for the Community Development Advisory Board/Planning 
Commission to open the public hearing and receive suggestions from the public for the use of the 
available CDBG funds.  After receiving such suggestions, the Board should close the public hearing, 
deliberate on the public testimony, and ultimately determine the projects it wishes to recommend to 
the City Council for the use of these funds. 

!
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES FOR FUNDING 
The types of activities that can be funded under the program, provided that they meet one of the 
national objectives stated above, include the following:

!
•	 Land acquisition and disposition;

•	 Development of, and improvements to, public facilities;

•	 Street and other infrastructure improvements;

•	 Demolition and clearance of property improvements;

•	 Code enforcement;

•	 Public service activities;

•	 Housing and commercial rehabilitation;

•	 Economic development activities; and

•	 Program administration.
!
INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
On the other hand, there are certain activities or projects for which CDBG funds cannot be used. 
These ineligible activities include:

!
•	 Construction of city halls, county administrative buildings, or other facilities in which the 

            legislative, judicial, or general administrative affairs of the government are conducted;
!

�  of 42
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

•	 Purchase of equipment, unless otherwise required for program purposes;
!
•	 Operating and maintenance expenses;
!
•	 General government expenses; and
!
•	 Political activities.
!
!
The CDC has notified the City that its preliminary CDBG allocation for the 2015-16 fiscal year is 
approximately $335,610. In considering potential projects/programs for funding, it should be 
pointed out that up to 15 percent of the coming year’s allocation, or $50,341, can be budgeted for 
public services. Administrative delivery services for the Housing Rehabilitation Programs are not to 
exceed 20 percent of their recommended budgets. 

!
PROPOSED PROJECTS 
The CDBG Projects/Budgets being proposed to the City Council for the 2015-16 Program Year are 
as follows:
!
ONGOING PROGRAMS/PROJECTS (funded in previous years) 

!

• Clara Street Park Food Distribution Program 
Activity Summary - This continuing program will provide a monthly food distribution for 
Cudahy residents. Once a month, households will receive various food products. The food 
will be distributed at Clara Street Park. This program will provide food supplies to 
approximately 800 clients and will have up to 3000 clients over the course of the fiscal year. 

Activity Accomplishments for 2014-15: 2,159 units 
!

• Business Assistance Program 
Activity Summary - This is a continuing project that will provide funds to assist 28 existing/
potential new business owners in retaining, expanding, or opening a business in the City of 
Cudahy. The program offers assistance with completing applications for permits and 
business licenses and will provide technical assistance through one-to-one consultations, 
trainings, and workshops to address the needs of the City's business community. Topics 
will include, but not be limited to business expansion plans, how to market your business, 
how to obtain a business loan and how to strengthen your business. These services will be 
delivered to the business community by City staff, long-time business owners and 
commercial bank personnel. 

Activity Accomplishments for 2014-15: 26 Clients 
!

• Code Enforcement Program 
This continuing project aids in arresting the decline of primarily residential and 
neighborhood commercial businesses located in the following designated areas: Census 

�  of 43
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

Tracts 5343.01, 5343.02, 5343.03, 5344.03, 5344.04, 5344.05, and 5344.06, which have 
been deemed deteriorating or deteriorated. This program together with CDBG-funded City 
program Single-Unit Housing Rehabilitation is expected to prevent  the decline of the area. 
The following are the most common violations that will be addressed through this CDBG-
funded activity: prohibited conditions, unsightliness, and violation of building code. 
!!!

• Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation Program  
This is a continuing project, offering grants (up to $10,000 each for single-family homes and 
up to $8,000 for mobile homes), below market interest rate loans (no maximum amount, 
interest rates from 3% to 6%), deferred loans (up to $3,000 each, interest rates 0% to 3%), 
and emergency grants (up to $1,500). Programs may be used in combination. These 
programs are designed to assist existing low-to-moderate income households with the 
repair or rehabilitation of owner-occupied units. Mobile home units affixed to the foundation 
and part of the City's permanent housing stock will only be assisted through the grant 
program.
!Activity Accomplishments for 2014-15: 4 Rehabilitated Units
!

NEW PROJECTS 

• ADA Compliance in Public City Facilities/Parking Lots 
This is a one-time project, which includes the construction of a new ADA compliant ramp, 
re-striping of handicap parking stalls and installation of ADA required signage in the Cudahy 
Park (5220 Santa Ana Street) parking lot, the installation of ADA compliant doors at all 
public City buildings (includes automatic sliding doors and panic bars at existing doors) and 
an ADA Transition Plan Study/Assessment to be carried out by a consultant.


!
CONCLUSION 
The City Council has a limited time frame to approve the proposed Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) projects. Projects that are not Council approved and submitted to the Los Angeles 
County Community Development Commission's CDBG Grants Management Unit by the end of 
January 2015 generally run significant risk of not receiving a receiving a July 1, 2015 program start 
date. Not receiving a July 1, 2015 start date can delay program start dates, which could temporarily 
suspend project services, or potentially impact the City's General Fund. 


!
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
At the moment, is it estimated that the CDBG funding allocation for FY 2015-16 will be 
approximately $335,610. Additionally, the unallocated funding balance remaining from the FY 
2014-15 program year is currently $184,950. In total, the City has approximately $520,650 in 
Federal funding to put towards CDBG Projects for the FY 2015-16 Program Year.


!
�  of 44

Staff Report 
12/2/2014



"Serving The People" "Sirviendo A La Comunidad"

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution No. 14-85, approving Projects/Programs for Community Development Block Grant 

Funding during the 2015-16 Fiscal Year.


�  of 45
Staff Report 
12/2/2014



RESOLUTION NO. 14-85 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVING PROJECTS/PROGRAMS FOR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
FUNDING DURING THE 2015-16 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 1974, the President of the United States signed into law the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Act); and 
 
WHEREAS, the primary goals of Title I of the Act are the development of viable urban 
communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, and 
expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (“City”) has been designated an “Entitlement City” by 
the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, which entitles the 
City to receive an annual allocation of Community Development (“CDBG”) funds to 
implement housing and community development projects throughout the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received notification of the availability of $335,610 in federal 
CDBG funds to further the attainment of these goals during Fiscal Year 2015-16; and 
 
WHEREAS, community-based and other local non-profit organizations that serve the 
residents of Cudahy have been invited to submit proposals for the utilization of these 
funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cudahy City Council has published information regarding eligible 
activities under the Act and has conducted a public hearing to solicit suggestions from 
the community for the utilization of these funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Cudahy City Council hereby allocates 
the City’s available CDBG funds for the following purposes: 

     
 Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation   $  100,000 
 ADA Compliance in Public Facilities/Parking Lots $  171,816 

Business Assistance Program    $    23,403 
Code Enforcement      $  175,000 
Parenting Classes/ JADE     $    21,730 
Clara Street Park Food Distribution   $    28,611              

Total    $  520,560 
 
 

 



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its regular 
meeting on this 2nd day of December, 2014. 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Chris Garcia, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:        

 

_____________________________              
Donna G. Schwartz, CMC      
Interim City Clerk       

 








	120214 CC_SA Meeting Agenda
	10A. Second reading, Ordinance 643, Water Conservation
	10B. Staff Report - PSA Interim City Clerk
	10B. Attachment A - PSA for D  Schwartz (Interim City Clerk Services)
	10C. Staff Report - 2015 Holiday Schedule
	10C. Attachment A, Resolution No. 14-84 - Desginating Holidays On Which City Offices Will Be Closed In 2015
	10D. Staff Report - MTA 2015 Call For Projects
	10D. Attachment A - Avant-Garde Proposal
	10D. Attachment B - 1st Amendment to TransTech Service Agreement
	10D. Attachment C - Avant Garde-Call For Projects Contract 2014
	NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and
	other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
	acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows:
	I.
	ENGAGEMENT TERMS

	10E. Staff Report - PSA with Vasquez and Company for Audit Services
	10E. Attachment A - Vasquez n Co. - 1st Amendment with Exhibit A -Master Agreement
	10E. Attachment B - Exhibit B - Audit Services Planning Calendar
	10E. Attachment C - Vasquez Proposal for Audit Services to the City of Cudahy -revised
	TRANSMITTAL LETTER
	VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP
	Roger A. Martinez, CPA
	Partner
	801 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 400
	Los Angeles, CA 90017-4646
	t) 213-873-1703
	f) 213-873-1777
	e) rmartinez@vasquezcpa.com
	INDEPENDENCE
	LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA
	FIRM’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE
	OFFICE LOCATION

	PARTNER, SUPERVISORY AND STAFF QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE
	To ensure that our professional staff remains up to date on the latest audit and accounting developments, and to meet the requirements for maintaining active licensure in good standing, we see to it that our professional staff receives the required nu...
	SIMILAR ENGAGEMENTS WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES
	SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH
	PAPERLESS AUDIT SYSTEM

	Phase I – Audit Planning
	Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulations that will be subject to audit test.

	COST PROPOSAL

	10F. Second reading, Ordinance 634,  ZTA 14-01 - Option A
	10G. Staff Report - Renewal with LA County for Animal Services
	10G. Attachment A
	10G. Attachment B
	10G. Attachment C
	10G. Attachment D - LA County-General Services dated 061810
	11A.  Staff Report CDBG FY 2015-2016 Budget
	11A. Attachment A - Resolution No.14-85, Approving Projects-Programs for CDBG Funding FY 2015-16
	12A. Letter re Appt - Greater LA Cty Vector Control District

